GOVERNMENT OF KERALA

KERALA SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT (KSWMP)

REQUEST FOR BIDS NO : IN-SUCM-399856-CW-RFB

NATIONAL OPEN COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT

(Two-Envelope Bidding Process with e-Procurement)

Design-Build Works

NAME OF WORK	:	Biomining and Bioremediation of 08 Legacy Waste Dumpsites across Kerala
PERIOD OF SALE OF BIDDING DOCUMENT	:	From 12 January 2024
PRE-BID MEETING ¹	:	19 January 2024 at 15.00 hrs.
LAST DATE AND TIME FOR RECEIPT OF BIDS	:	12 February 2024 at 16.00 hrs.
TIME AND DATE OF OPENING BIDS – Technical Part	:	12 February 2024 at 16.30 hrs.
PLACE OF OPENING OF BIDS	:	Office of the Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project, Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala, India.
OFFICER INVITING BIDS	:	Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project.

January 2024

REQUEST FOR BIDS

(RFB)

GOVERNMENT OF KERALA KERALA SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT (KSWMP)

REQUEST FOR BIDS (RFB) E-Procurement Notice (Two-Envelope Bidding Process with e-Procurement)

NATIONAL OPEN COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT

Name of Project	:	Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP)	
Contract title	: Biomining and Bioremediation of 08 Legacy Waste Dumpsites across Kerala		
Loan No./ Credit No./ Grant No.	:	IBRD-P4960	
RFB No. Reference No.:	:	IN-SUCM-399856-CW-RFB	
Date	:	12 January 2024	

- 1. The Government of Kerala through the Government of India has received financing from the World Bank toward the cost of the Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP) and intends to apply part of the proceeds toward eligible payments under the contract for execution of works as detailed below.
- 2. Bidding will be conducted through national open competitive procurement using a Request for Bids (RFB) as specified in the World Bank's "Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers, July 2016, Fourth Edition November 2020" ("Procurement Regulations") and is open to all Bidders as defined in the Procurement Regulations.
- 3. The Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP) (*implementing agency*) now invites online Bids from eligible Bidders for the design and execution of works detailed below in the table. Interested bidders may obtain further information and inspect the bidding document at the address given below during office hours or download the bidding document from e-procurement system https://etenders.kerala.gov.in Bidders are advised to note the clauses on eligibility (Section I Clause 4) and minimum qualification criteria (Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria), to qualify for the award of the contract. In addition, please refer to paragraphs 3.14 and 3.15 of the "Procurement Regulations" setting forth the World Bank's policy on conflict of interest.
- 4. The bidding document is available online on e-procurement system from 12 January 2024 to 12 February 2024 for a non-refundable fee as indicated in the table below, in the form of Online Payment/ NEFT/ RTGS as per the provision provided on e- tender portal (Payment documents are to be submitted as per the procedure described in paragraph 8 below).

Bidders will be required to register on the website. The bidders would be responsible for ensuring that any addenda available on the website is also downloaded and incorporated.

- 5. For submission of the bid, the bidder is required to have Class III Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) in the name of the person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder from one of the Certifying Authorities authorised by Government of India for issuing DSC (e.g. Verasys/Sify/nCode/ eMudhra² etc.), with their profile. It is mandatory for the bidder to register their firm with e-procurement system and obtain user ID and password for participating in e-procurement in this Project. A non-refundable fee of Rs 15,000/- (Inclusive of tax) is required to be paid. The mode of payment shall be in the form of online Payment/ NEFT/ RTGS as per the provision provided on e- tender portal. Payment documents are to be submitted along with other documents listed in paragraph 8 below before the bid submission deadline.
- 6. Bids comprise two Parts, namely the Technical Part and the Financial Part, and both parts must be submitted simultaneously online on the e-procurement system on or before 16.00 hours on 12 February 2024 and the 'Technical Part' of the bids will be publicly opened online on the same day at 16.30 hours, in the presence of the bidders designated representatives who wish to attend. The "Financial Part" shall remain unopened in the e-procurement system until the second public Bid opening for the financial part. Any bid or modifications to bid (including discount) received outside e-procurement system will not be considered. If the office happens to be closed on the date of opening of the bids as specified, the bids will be opened on the next working day at the same time and venue. The electronic procurement system would not allow any late submission of bids.
- 7. All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security of the amount specified for the work in the table below, drawn in favor of the **Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project.** Bid security will have to be in any one of the forms as specified in the bidding document and shall have to be valid for 45 days beyond the validity of the bid. Procedure for submission of bid security is described in **Para** 8.
- 8. The bidders are required to submit (a) original payment documents towards the cost of bid document; and registration on e-procurement website (if applicable); (b) original bid security and (c) original affidavit regarding correctness of information furnished with bid document with *to the address specified at para 11* before the bid submission deadline, either by registered post/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened.
- 9. A pre-bid meeting will be held on 19 January 2024 at 15.00 hours at the office of Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project/ Online Video Conferencing. to clarify the issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage as stated in ITB Clause 7.4 of 'Instructions to Bidders' of the bidding document. The prospective bidders wishing to join the pre-bid meeting VC can access the link to the online meeting from KSWMP website https://www.kswmp.org. Bidders are advised to download the bidding document prior to the pre-bid meeting in order for bidders to have a good understanding of

² For details of certifying authorities refer CCA website https://cca.gov.in/digital_signature.html

the scope of work under this contract for discussion and clarification at the pre-bid meeting. The bidders who wish to visit the project sites can raise their written request to the implementing agency at the communication link mentioned below. The Bidders may visit the project site on their own arrangements, the implementing agency shall facilitate such visit by providing necessary information and intimating the respective ULBs of the visit. The Point of Contact for site Visit purpose is provided in clause BDS7.4 of this RFB

- 10. Other details can be seen in the bidding document. The Employer shall not be held liable for any delays due to system failure beyond its control. Even though the system will attempt to notify the bidders of any bid updates, the Employer shall not be liable for any information not received by the bidder. It is the bidders' responsibility to verify the website for the latest information related to this bid.
- 11. The address for communication is as under:

Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP) Address: Upper Ground Floor, Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud, Thiruvananthapuram -695014, Kerala, India Telephone: +91 471-2333011 E-Mail: tenderkswmp@gmail.com; Website: www.kswmp.org

Package	Name of Work		Bid Security	Cost of	Period of
No			*	Document	Completion
			(Rs.)	(Rs.)	
1	2		3	4	5
01	Biomining	and	5,00,000	15,000 (Rupees	270 days
	bioremediation	of 08	(Rupees Five	Fifteen	
	Legacy Waste	Dumpsites	Lakh Only)	Thousand Only)	
	across Kerala	-	•	•	

TABLE

Seal of office

Table of Contents

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	7
Section I - Instructions to Bidders	8
Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	
Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	41
Section IV - Bidding Forms	
Section V - Eligible Countries	
Section VI - Fraud and Corruption	
PART 2 – Employer's Requirements	
Section VII - Employer's Requirements	137
PART 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms	110
Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract	
Section IX - Particular Conditions of Contract	144
Section X - Contract Forms	

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures

Section I - Instructions to Bidders

A. General				
	A. Ochciai			
1. Scope of Bid	1.1 In connection with the Specific Procurement Notice - Request for Bids (RFB), specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Employer, as specified in the BDS, issues this bidding document for the provision of Works as specified in Section VII, Employer's Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this RFB are specified in the BDS.			
	1.2 Throughout this bidding document:			
	 (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, and fax, including if specified in the BDS, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Employer) with proof of receipt; 			
	(b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa;			
	 "Day" means calendar day, unless otherwise specified as "Business Day". A Business Day is any day that is a working day of the Borrower. It excludes the Borrower's official public holidays; 			
	(d) the term " ES " means environmental and social (including Sexual Exploitation, and Abuse (SEA), and Sexual Harassment (SH));			
	(e) "Sexual Exploitation and Abuse" "(SEA)" means the following:			
	 (i) "Sexual Exploitation" is defined as any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another. 			
	(ii) "Sexual Abuse" is defined as the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions;			
	(f) "Sexual Harassment" "(SH)" is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or			

	physical conduct of a sexual nature by the Contractor's Personnel with other Contractor's or Employer's Personnel;	
	 (g) "Contractor's Personnel" is as defined in Sub-Clause 1 (ii) of the General Conditions of Contract; and (h) "Employer's personnel" is as defined in GCC Sub-Clause 1 (nn) of the General Conditions of Contract. A non-exhaustive list of (i) behaviors which constitute SEA and (ii) behaviors which constitute SH is attached to the Code of Conduct form in Section IV. 	
2. Source of Funds	2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has received or has applied for financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called "the Bank") in an amount specified in the BDS , toward the project named in the BDS . The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract(s) for which this bidding document is issued.	
	2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank, and will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the loan account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, equipment, plant, or materials, if such payment or import is prohibited by a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the proceeds of the Loan (or other financing).	
3. Fraud and Corruption	3.1 The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in Section VI.	
	3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, bidders shall permit and shall cause their agents (whether declared or not), subcontractors, sub- consultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any initial selection process, prequalification process, bid submission, proposal submission, and contract performance	

	(in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors	
	appointed by the Bank.	
4. Eligible Bidders	A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, or a state-owned enterprise or institution subject to ITB 4.6, or any combination of them in the form of a joint venture (JV), under an existing agreement, or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent, unless otherwise specified in the BDS . In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the Bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. This authorization shall be evidenced by submitting a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of all members. Unless specified in the BDS , there is no limit on the number of members in a JV. The joint venture agreement shall be registered in the place specified in BDS so as to be legally valid and binding on members. Joint venture agreement must allocate the scope and parts of the contract to be carried out by each member commensurate with the qualifications and capacity of the members as claimed in the bid.	
	 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. All Bidders found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this Bidding process, if the Bidder: (a) directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or (b) receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or (c) has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or (d) has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through 	
	(d) has a relationship with another Bidder, directly of through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this bidding process; or	
	(e) any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the works that are the subject of the Bid; or	

	 (f) any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Employer or Borrower as Project Manager (Engineer) for the Contract implementation;
	(g) would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm;
	(h) has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding document or specifications of the contract, and/or the Bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract.
4	3 A firm that is a Bidder (either individually or as a JV member) shall not participate in more than one Bid, except for permitted alternative Bids. This includes participation as a Subcontractor in other Bids. Such participation shall result in the disqualification of all Bids in which the firm is involved. A firm that is not a Bidder or a JV member may participate as a subcontractor in more than one Bid.
4	4 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.8. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or sub-consultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
4.	5 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank, pursuant to the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines, in accordance with its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework as described in Section VI paragraph 2.2 d., shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, initially selected for, bid for, propose for, or be awarded a Bank-financed

	 of the Employer. 4.7 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from Bidding by the Employer as the result of the operation of a Bid–Securing or Proposal-Securing Declaration.
	4.8 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country. When the Works are implemented across jurisdictional boundaries (and more than one country is a Borrower, and is involved in the procurement), then exclusion of a firm or individual on the basis of ITB 4.8 (a) above by any country may be applied to that procurement across other countries involved, if the Bank and the Borrowers involved in the procurement agree.
	A Bidder shall provide such documentary evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.
5. Eligible Materials, Equipment and Services	5.1 The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank may have their origin in any country subject to the restrictions specified in Section V, Eligible Countries, and all expenditures under the Contract will not contravene such restrictions. At the Employer's request, Bidders may be required to provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and services.

6. Sections of Bidding Document	6.1 The bidding document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the sections specified below, and which should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.		
	PART 1 Bidding Procedures		
	• Section I - Instructions to Bidders (ITB)		
	• Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)		
	• Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria		
	Section IV - Bidding Forms		
	Section V - Eligible Countries		
	Section VI - Fraud and Corruption		
	PART 2 Employer's Requirements		
	Section VII - Employer's Requirements		
	PART 3 Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms		
	• Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract (GCC)		
	• Section IX - Particular Conditions of Contract (PCC)		
	Section X - Contract Forms		
	6.2 The Specific Procurement Notice - Request for Bids (RFB) issued by the Employer is not part of this bidding document.		
	6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Employer or downloaded from the official website specified in the 'E-Procurement Notice', the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the bidding document, responses to requests for clarification, the minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the bidding document in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Employer or downloaded from the official website specified in the 'E-Procurement Notice' shall prevail.		
	6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the bidding document and to furnish with its Bid all information and documentation as is required by the bidding document.		
7. Clarification of Bidding Document, Site	7.1 The electronic procurement system specified in the BDS provides for online clarifications. A Bidder requiring any clarification on the bidding document may notify the Employer online on the e- procurement system or raise its inquiries during the pre-Bid meeting if provided for in accordance with ITB 7.4. Clarifications		

Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting	requested through any other mode shall not be considered by the Employer. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of Bids within a period specified in the BDS . Description of clarification sought and the response of the Employer shall be uploaded on the e-procurement system for information of all Bidders without identifying the source of request for clarification. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the bidding document, the Employer shall amend the bidding document following the procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2. It is the bidder's responsibility to check on the e-procurement system, for any addendum/ amendment/ corrigendum to the bidding document.
	7.2 The Bidder is advised to visit and examine the Site of Works and its surroundings and obtain for itself on its own responsibility all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for execution of the Works. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.
	7.3 The Bidder and any of its personnel or agents will be granted permission by the Employer to enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit, but only upon the express condition that the Bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and indemnify the Employer and its personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, and any other loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the inspection.
	7.4 If so specified in the BDS , the Bidder's designated representative is invited to attend a pre-Bid meeting and/or a Site of Works visit. The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.
	7.5 The Bidder is requested, to submit any questions only through the e-procurement system, not later than one week before the meeting. Clarifications requested through any other mode shall not be considered by the Employer.
	7.6 Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting, if applicable, including the text of the questions asked by Bidders, without identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared after the meeting, will be uploaded online on e-procurement system. Any modification to the bidding document that may become necessary as a result of the pre-Bid meeting shall be made by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an addendum pursuant to ITB 8 and not through the minutes of the pre-Bid

	procurement system, for corrigendum to the bidding doc	sponsibility to check on the e- any addendum/ amendment/ ument. Nonattendance at the pre- for disqualification of a Bidder.
8. Amendment of Bidding Document	At any time prior to the dead Employer may amend the biddin	line for submission of bids, the ng document by issuing addenda.
	The addenda will appear on t "Latest Corrigendum", and automatically sent to those bidd the tender, unless otherwise spe shall not be liable for any inform	communicated to all the bidders. he e-procurement system under
	-	asonable time in which to take an paring their Bids, the Employer ne deadline for the submission of
	C. Preparation of Bids	
9. Cost of Bidding	submission of its Bid, and the	e Employer shall in no case be osts, regardless of the conduct or .
10. Language of Bid	written in English. Supporting that are part of the Bid may be i are accompanied by an accu	der and the Employer, shall be documents and printed literature n another language provided they rate translation of the relevant ase, for purposes of interpretation
11. Documents Comprising the Bid	-	ts, namely the Technical Part and two Parts shall be submitted
	 2 The Technical Part shall contain (a) Letter of Bid – Technical ITB 12 and ITB 14; 	n the following: Part prepared in accordance with

	(b)	Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration in accordance with ITB 19.1;
	(c)	Alternative Bid – Technical Part, if permissible, in accordance with ITB 13, the Technical Part of any Alternative Bid;
	(d)	Authorization: written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.3, and in accordance with ITB 20.4 in case of a JV;
	(e)	Bidder's Eligibility: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to Bid;
	(f)	Qualifications : documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its Bid is accepted;
	(g)	Conformity : a technical proposal in accordance with ITB 16;
	(h)	Design Methodology, Work Management Strategy, Statement of Work Methods, Equipment, Personnel, Schedule and any other information as stipulated in Section IV, Bidding Forms
	(i)	Contractor Registration certificate (as per RFB); and
	(j)	any other document required in the BDS.
11.3	The	Financial Part shall contain the following:
	(a)	Letter of Bid – Financial Part: prepared in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14;
	(b)	Completed Schedules including priced Schedule of Activities in accordance with ITB 12 and ITB 14, as specified in BDS;
	(c)	Alternative Bid - Financial Part: if permissible in accordance with ITB 13; and
	(d)	any other document required in the BDS.
11.4	Bid price	Technical Part shall not include any information related to the price. Where material financial information related to the Bid e is contained in the Technical Part the Bid shall be declared responsive.

	11.6	information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.
12. Process of Bid Submission	12.1	The Letter of Bid – Technical Part, Letter of Bid – Financial Part, Schedules including Schedule of Activities, and all documents listed under Clause 11, shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.3. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
	12.2	Entire Bid including the Letters of Bid, Schedules and filled-up Schedule of Activities shall be submitted online on e-procurement system specified in ITB 7.1. Details and process of online submission of the tender and relevant documents are given in the website mentioned above. Scanned copies of documents listed in ITB Clauses 11 and 12.3 should also be uploaded on this website.
		Submission of Original Documents : The bidders are required to separately submit (i) original payment documents towards the cost of bid document; and registration on e-procurement website (if applicable); (ii) original bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration in approved form; and (iii) original affidavit regarding correctness of information furnished with bid document, with the office specified in the BDS , before the Bid submission deadline, either by registered/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. Hard copy of rest of the bid or any other document are not to be submitted. These original documents shall be sealed in an envelope(s) that (a) shall bear the name and address of the Bidder; (b) shall be addressed to the Employer; and (c) shall bear the specific identification of this bidding process as indicated in BDS 1.1.
13. Alternative Bids	13.1	Unless otherwise specified in the BDS , alternative Bids shall not be considered.
	13.2	When alternative times for completion are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be included in the BDS and the method of evaluating different alternative times for completion

		will be described in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
	13.3	Except as provided under ITB 13.4 below, Bidders wishing to offer technical alternatives to the requirements of the bidding document must first price the Employer's design as described in the bidding document and shall further provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by the Employer, including drawings, design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, and proposed Work methodology and other relevant details. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the Bidder with the Most Advantageous Bid conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be considered by the Employer.
	13.4	When specified in the BDS , Bidders are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions for specified parts of the Works. Such parts will be identified in the BDS and described in Section VII, Employer's Requirements. The method for their evaluation will be stipulated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
14. Bid Prices and Discounts	14.1	The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid -Financial Part and in the Schedules including Schedule of Activities shall conform to the requirements specified below.
	14.2	The Bidder shall submit a Bid for the whole of the Works described in ITB 1.1 by filling in prices for all items of the Works, as identified in Section IV - Bidding Forms along with the total bid price (both in figures and words). The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works described in the Schedule of Activities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the rates for other items and prices in the Schedule of Activities. Corrections if any, in the bid can be carried out by editing the information before electronic submission on e-procurement system.
	14.3	The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid – Financial Part, in accordance with ITB 12.1, shall be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.
	14.4	The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid – Financial Part in accordance with ITB 12.1.

14	4.5	Unless otherwise specified in the BDS and the Conditions of Contract, the prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed.
14	4.6	If so specified in ITB 1.1, Bids are invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their Bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4, provided the Bids for all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.
14	4.7	All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the deadline for submission of Bids, shall be included in the rates and prices and the total Bid price submitted by the Bidder.
14	4.8	Bidders may like to ascertain availability of tax/duty exemption benefits available in India. They are solely responsible for obtaining such benefits which they have considered in their bid and in case of failure to receive such benefits for reasons whatsoever, the Employer will not compensate the bidder (Contractor). The bidder shall furnish along with his bid a declaration to this effect in the Declaration Format provided in Section IV of the bidding document.
		Where the bidder has quoted taking into account such benefits, it must give all information required for issue of certificates in terms of the Government of India's relevant Notifications as per the declaration format. In case the bidder has not provided the required information or has indicated to be furnished later on in the Declaration Format, the same shall be construed that the goods/ equipment for which certificate is required is Nil.
		To the extent the Employer determines the quantities indicated therein are reasonable keeping in view the Activity Schedules, Work management strategy and work methods, the certificates will be issued within 60 days of signing of the contract and no subsequent changes will be permitted. In case of materials pertaining to Variation items and quantities, the certificate shall be issued only on request from the Contractor when in need and duly certified by the Project Manager.
		No certificate will be issued for items where no quantity/capacity of equipment is indicated in the statement.
		If the bidder has considered the tax/duty exemption for materials/ equipment to be bought for the work, the bidder shall confirm and

		certify that the Employer will not be required to undertake any responsibilities of the Government of India Scheme or the said exemptions being available during the contract execution, except issuing the required certificate. The bids which do not conform to the above provisions or any condition by the bidder which makes the bid subject to availability of tax/duty exemption for materials/ equipment or compensation on withdrawal of any variations to the said exemptions will be treated as non-responsive and rejected. Any delay in procurement of the equipment/ machinery/goods as a result of the above shall not be a cause for granting any extension of time.
15. Currencies of Bid and Payment	15.1	The unit rates and prices shall be quoted by the Bidder and shall be paid for, entirely in Indian Rupees.
16. Documents Comprising the Technical Proposal	16.1	The Bidder shall furnish a technical proposal in the Technical Part of the Bid, including a design methodology, Work management strategy, statement of work methods, equipment, personnel, schedule and any other information as stipulated in Section IV, Bidding Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidders' proposal to meet the work's requirements and the completion time.
17. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder	17.1	To establish Bidder's eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid – Technical Part, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. In accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, to establish its qualifications to perform the Contract, the Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding information sheets included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
18. Period of Validity of Bids	18.1	Bids shall remain valid for 90 days or for the Bid Validity period specified in the BDS . The Bid Validity period starts from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline (as prescribed by the Employer in accordance with ITB 22.1). A Bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as nonresponsive.
	18.2	In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Bid validity period, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses

		shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in
		accordance with ITB 19, it shall also be extended for forty five (45) days beyond the deadline of the extended validity period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
	18.3	If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial Bid validity period, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
		(a) in the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the Bid price adjusted by the factor specified in the BDS ;
		(b) in the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made; or
		(c) in any case, Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.
19. Bid Security	19.1	The Bidder shall furnish as part of the Technical Part of its Bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a Bid Security as specified in the BDS , in original form and, in the case of a Bid security, for the amount specified in the BDS .
	19.2	A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
	19.3	If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
		 (a) an unconditional bank guarantee issued by a Nationalized or Scheduled bank located in India;
		(b) an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a Nationalized or Scheduled bank located in India;
		(c) a cashier's or certified check or demand draft issued by a Nationalized or Scheduled bank located in India;
		(d) another security specified in the BDS ,
		In the case of a bank guarantee, the Bid Security shall be submitted using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The form must include the complete name of the Bidder. The Bid Security shall be valid for forty-five (45) days beyond the

original validity period of the Bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under ITB 18.2.
9.4 If a Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
9.5 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the Contract and furnishing the Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security pursuant to ITB 50.
9.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security.
9.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed:
 (a) if a Bidder withdraws/modifies/substitutes its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid - Technical Part and repeated in Letter of Bid - Financial Part, or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or
(b) if the Bidder does not accept the correction of its Bid Price pursuant to ITB 36; or
(c) if the successful Bidder fails to:
(i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 49; or
(ii) furnish a Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security in accordance with ITB 50.
9.8 The Bid Security or the Bid-Securing Declaration of a JV shall be in the name of the JV that submits the Bid. If the JV has not been constituted into a legally enforceable JV, at the time of Bidding, the Bid Security or the Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent mentioned in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.
1

	19.9 If a Bid Security is not required in the BDS, pursuant to ITB 19.1, and:
	 (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Letters of Bid or any extended date provided by the Bidder; or if the Bidder does not accept the correction of its Bid Price pursuant to ITB Sub-Clause 36; or
	 (b) if the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 49; or furnish a Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security in accordance with ITB 50;
	the Borrower may, if provided for in the BDS , declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for a period of time as stated in the BDS .
20. Format and Signing of Bid	20.1 The Bidder shall prepare the Bid as per details given in ITB 21.
	20.2 Bidders shall mark as "CONFIDENTIAL" information in their Bids which is confidential to their business.
	20.3 The Bid shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be uploaded along with the Bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature.
	20.4 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives. Documents establishing authority to sign the bid on behalf of the JV shall be uploaded along with the bid.
	20.5 Any interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialled by the person signing the Bid.
I). Online Submission and Opening of Bids
21. Preparation of Bids	21.1 Bids, both Technical and Financial Parts, shall be submitted online on the e-procurement system specified in BDS 7.1. Detailed guidelines for viewing bids and submission of online bids are given on the website. The Request for Bids under this Project is published on this website. Any citizen or prospective bidder can logon to this website and view the Request for Bids

	1	
		and can view the details of works for which bids are invited. A prospective bidder can submit its bid online; however, the bidder is required to have enrolment/registration in the website, and should have valid Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) in the form of smart card/e-token obtained from any certifying agency authorised by the Government of India (for class of DSC specified in BDS).
		As part of the enrolment process, bidders are required to choose unique username and assign a password for their accounts. Upon enrolment, the Bidders will be required to register their valid Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) with their profile. The bidders should register their valid email address and mobile numbers as part of the registration process. These would be used for any communication from the e-procurement system. A bidder can then login the website through the secured login by entering the password of the e-token & the user id/ password chosen during registration. After getting the bid schedules, the Bidder should go through them carefully and submit the specified documents, along with the bid, otherwise the bid will be rejected.
	21.2	The completed bid comprising of documents indicated in ITB 12, should be uploaded on the e-procurement system along with scanned copies of requisite certificates as are mentioned in different sections in the bidding document and scanned copy of the bid security.
	21.3	All the documents are required to be signed digitally by the bidder. After electronic online bid submission, the system generates a bid summary and a unique bid identification number which is time stamped as per server time. This shall be treated as acknowledgement of bid submission, and a copy should be retained by the Bidder.
	21.4	Physical, e-mail, Telex, Cable or Facsimile bids will be rejected as non-responsive.
22. Deadline for Submission of Bids	22.1	Bids, both Technical and Financial Parts, must be uploaded online no later than the date and time specified in the BDS . The server time will be considered as the standard time for referencing the deadlines for submission of the bids, opening of bids etc.
	22.2	The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids by amending the bidding document in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

23. Late Bids	23.1 The electronic procurement system would not allow any late submission of bids after due date & time as per server time.
24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids	24.1 Bidders may modify their bids by using the appropriate option for bid modification on e-procurement system, before the deadline for submission of bids. For this the bidder need not make any additional payment towards the cost of bid document. For bid modification and consequential re-submission, the bidder is not required to withdraw his bid submitted earlier. The last modified bid submitted by the bidder within the bid submission time shall be considered as the bid. For this purpose, modification/withdrawal by other means will not be accepted. In online system of bid submission, the modification and consequential re-submission of bids is allowed any number of times. A bidder may withdraw his bid by using the appropriate option for bid withdrawal, before the deadline for submission of bids, however, if the bid is withdrawn, re-submission of the bid is not allowed (or allowed if specified in BDS) .
	24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall not be opened.
	24.3 No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiration of the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof. This will result in the forfeiture of the Bid Security or execution of the Bid-Securing Declaration pursuant to ITB 19.7.
	E. Public Opening of Technical Parts of Bids
25. Public Opening of Technical Parts of Bids	25.1 The Employer shall publicly open Technical Parts of all Bids received by the deadline, at the date, time and place specified in the BDS , in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. The Financial Parts of the bids shall remain unopened in the e-procurement system, until the subsequent public opening, following the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids. In all cases, original documents submitted as specified in ITB 12.3 shall be first scrutinized, and Bids that do not comply with the provisions of ITB 12.3 will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. Thereafter, bidders' names, the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid Securing Declaration, if one was required, alternative bids – technical parts, if any, and such other details as the Employer may consider appropriate will be notified, online by the Employer at the time of bid opening.

	25.2	In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a holiday for the Employer, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day. The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Employer will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Technical Parts of Bids, and technical parts of Alternative Bids if any, that are opened at technical Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.
	F. Eva	luation of Bids – General Provisions
26. Confidentiality	26.1	Information relating to the evaluation of Bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the Bidding process until information on Intention to Award the Contract is transmitted to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 45. In cases where ITB 45 is not applicable, such information shall not be disclosed until Notification of Award is transmitted in accordance with ITB 47.
	26.2	Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the evaluation of the Bids or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
	26.3	Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of Bid opening to the time of Contract award, if a Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the Bidding process, it shall do so in writing.
27. Clarification of Bids	27.1	To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid giving a reasonable time for a response. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing and shall be delivered to concerned bidders through e-procurement system/ official email id mentioned in IFB. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the Bids, in accordance with ITB 36.
	27.2	The bidder shall respond to the queries on e- procurement system. If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date

		and time set in the Employer's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.
28. Deviations,	28.1	During the evaluation of Bids, the following definitions apply:
Reservations, and Omissions		(a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the bidding document;
		(b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the bidding document; and
		(c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the bidding document.
29. Nonmaterial Nonconformities	29.1	Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any nonconformities in the Bid which do not constitute a material deviation, reservation or omission.
	29.2	Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price or substance of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
	29.3	Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or nonconforming activity or component in the manner specified in the BDS .
	G	. Evaluation of Technical Parts of Bids
30. Evaluation of Technical Parts	30.1	In evaluating the Technical Parts of each Bid, the Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this ITB and Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.
	30.2	The scores to be given to technical factors and sub factors are specified in the BDS .
31. Determination of Responsiveness	31.1	The Employer's determination of a Bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the Bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.

	31.2	A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the bidding document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
		(a) if accepted, would:
		(i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works specified in the Contract; or
		 (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding document, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the proposed Contract; or
		 (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bids.
	31.3	The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Employer's Requirements have been met without any material deviation, reservation or omission.
	31.4	If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the bidding document, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
32. Qualification of the Bidder	32.1	The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the eligible Bidders that have submitted substantially responsive Bid - Technical Parts meet the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
	32.2	The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17. The determination shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Bidder's subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors (other than Specialized Subcontractors if permitted in the bidding document), or any other firm different from the Bidder.
	32.3	If a Bidder does not meet the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, its Bid shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

	32.4 Only Bids that are both substantially responsive to the bidding document, and meet all Qualification Criteria shall have the Financial Parts of their Bids opened at the second public opening.
33. Subcontractors	33.1 Unless otherwise stated in the BDS , the Employer does not intend to execute any specific elements of the Works by subcontractors selected in advance by the Employer.
	33.2 The subcontractor's qualifications shall not be used by the Bidder to qualify for the Works unless their specialized parts of the Works were previously designated by the Employer in the BDS as can be met by subcontractors referred to hereafter as 'Specialized Subcontractors', in which case, the qualifications of the Specialized Subcontractors proposed by the Bidder may be added to the qualifications.
	33.3 Bidders may propose subcontracting up to the percentage of total value of contracts or the volume of works as specified in the BDS . Subcontractors proposed by the Bidder shall be fully qualified for their parts of the Works.
	33.4 Bidders shall be responsible for ensuring that any proposed subcontractor complies with the requirements of ITB 4 , and that any Works to be provided by the subcontractor comply with the requirements of ITB 5 and ITB 16 .
	H. Public Opening of Financial Parts of Bids
34. Public Opening of Financial Parts	34.1 Following the completion of the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids, and the Bank has issued its no objection (if applicable), the Employer shall notify in writing those Bidders whose Bids were considered non-responsive to the bidding document or failed to meet the Qualification Criteria, advising them of the following information:
	(a) the grounds on which their Technical Part of Bid failed to meet the requirements of the bidding document;
	(b) their Financial Part of Bid shall not be opened; and
	(c) notify them of the date, time, and location for public opening of Financial Parts of the Bids.
	34.2 The Employer shall, simultaneously, notify in writing those Bidders whose Technical Part have been evaluated as substantially responsive to the bidding document and met all Qualifying Criteria, advising them of the following information:

	(a) their Bid has been evaluated as substantially responsive to the bidding document and met the Qualification Criteria;
	(b) their Financial Part of Bid will be opened at the public opening of the Financial Parts; and
	(c) notify them of the date, time and location for public opening of the Financial Parts of the Bids, as specified in the BDS.
	 34.3 The opening date should allow Bidders sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the opening. The Financial Part of the Bids shall be opened publicly in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. The bidder's names, the Bid prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and Alternative Bid - Financial Part if any, and such other details as the Employer may consider appropriate, will be notified online by the Employer at the time of bid opening. In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a
	holiday for the Employer, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day.
	34.4 The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Employer will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Financial Parts of Bids, Financial Parts of Alternative Bids, and discounts that are opened at Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.
I. Evalu	ation of Financial Parts of Bids & Combined Evaluation
35. Evaluation of Financial Parts	35.1 To evaluate the Financial Part, the Employer shall consider the following:
	(a) the Bid price, excluding Provisional Sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the Grand Summary table;
	(b) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 36.1;
	(c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.4;
	(d) Not used;
	(e) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 29.3; and

	(f) the additional evaluation factors are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
	35.2 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
	35.3 If this bidding document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), each lot will be evaluated separately to determine the Most Advantageous Bid using the methodology specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. Discounts that are conditional on the award of more than one lotor slice shall not be considered for Bid evaluation .
36. Correction of Arithmetical Errors	36.1 In evaluating the Financial Part of each Bid, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
	(a) only for admeasurement contracts, if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected;
	(b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
	 (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
	36.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 36.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid and the Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration may be executed in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 19.7.
37. Conversion to Single Currency	37.1 Not used.
38. Margin of Preference	38.1 Not applicable.
39. Evaluation of combined Technical and Financial Parts	39.1 The Employer's evaluation of responsive Bids will take into account technical factors, in addition to cost factors in accordance with Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The weight to be assigned for the Technical factors and cost is specified in

		the BDS . The Employer will rank the Bids based on the evaluated Bid score (B).
40. Abnormally Low Bids	40.1	An Abnormally Low Bid is one where the Bid price, in combination with other constituent elements of the Bid, appears unreasonably low to the extent that the Bid price raises material concerns as to the capability of the Bidder to perform the Contract for the offered Bid price.
	40.2	In the event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Bid, the Employer, unless otherwise specified in the BDS , shall seek written clarifications from the Bidder, including detailed price analyses of its Bid price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, proposed methodology, schedule, allocation of risks and responsibilities and any other requirements of the bidding document.
	40.3	After evaluation of the price analyses, in the event that the Employer determines that the Bidder has failed to demonstrate its capability to perform the Contract for the offered Bid Price, the Employer shall reject the Bid.
41. Unbalanced or Front-Loaded Bids	41.1	If the Bid for an admeasurement contract, which results in the lowest evaluated cost is, in the Employer's opinion, seriously unbalanced or, front-loaded, the Employer may require the Bidder to provide written clarifications. Clarifications may include detailed price analyses (with breakdown of unit rates) to demonstrate the consistency of the Bid prices with the scope of works, proposed methodology, schedule and any other requirements of the bidding document.
	41.2	After the evaluation of the information and detailed price analysis presented by the Bidder, the Employer may as appropriate:
		(a) accept the Bid without any additional Performance Security; or
		(b) require that the amount of the Performance Security be increased at the expense of the Bidder to a level not exceeding twenty percent (20%) of the Contract Price to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the successful Bidder under the Contract; or
		(c) reject the Bid if the risk cannot be mitigated through additional performance security.
42. Most Advantageous Bid	42.1	The Employer shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. The Most Advantageous Bid is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the Qualification Criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be

	substantially responsive to the Bidding document and is the Bid with the highest combined technical and financial score.
43. Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids	43.1 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to annul the Bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to Contract Award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all documents submitted and specifically, Bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.
44. Standstill Period	Standstill Period shall not apply.
45. Notice of Intention to Award	45.1 Not used.
	J. Award of Contract
46. Award Criteria	 46.1 Subject to ITB 43, the Employer shall award the Contract to the successful Bidder. This is the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid as specified in ITB 42.
47. Notification of Award	47.1 Prior to the expiration of the Bid Validity Period, the Employer shall transmit the Letter of Acceptance to the successful Bidder. The Letter of Acceptance shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution of the contract (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").
	47.2 Within ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer shall publish the Contract Award Notice which shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
	(a) name and address of the Employer;
	(b) name and reference number of the contract being awarded, and the selection method used;
	 (c) names of all Bidders that submitted Bids, and their Bid prices as read out at Bid opening, and as evaluated;
	 (d) names of all Bidders whose Bids were rejected either as nonresponsive or as not meeting qualification criteria, or were not evaluated, with the reasons therefor; and
	(e) the name of the successful Bidder, the final total contract price, the contract duration and a summary of its scope.

	47.3	The Contract Award Notice shall be published on a National website (GoI website http://tenders.gov.in or GoI Central Public Procurement Portal <u>https://eprocure.gov.in/cppp/</u>) or on the Employer's website, and on the e-procurement system.
	47.4	Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.
48. Debriefing by the Employer	48.1	Not used.
49. Signing of Contract	49.1	Promptly upon Notification of Award, the Employer shall prepare the Contract Agreement, and keep it ready in the office of the Employer for the signature of the Employer and the successful Bidder, within 21 days following the date of Letter of Acceptance. The Contract Agreement shall incorporate all agreements between the Employer and the successful Bidder.
	49.2	Within twenty-one (21) days of receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the successful Bidder shall (a) furnish the performance security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security in accordance with ITB Clause 50 and revised Work methodology; (b) if the successful bidder is a JV, it shall also furnish the JV agreement duly signed by all the members, if it had submitted only a letter of intent to execute the JV agreement along with the bid; and (c) shall sign, date and return the Agreement to the Employer along with the documents stated at (a) and (b) above.
50. Performance Security	50.1	Within twenty-one (21) days of the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance from the Employer, the successful Bidder shall furnish the Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security in accordance with the General Conditions of Contract, subject to ITB 41.2 (b), using for that purpose the Performance Security and ES Performance Security Forms included in Section X, Contract Forms. The performance security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security of a Joint Venture shall be in the name of the Joint Venture specifying the names of all members.
	50.2	Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security or to sign the Contract Agreement shall constitute sufficient grounds for the

	50.3	 annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Employer may award the Contract to the Bidder offering the next Most Advantageous Bid. Upon the successful Bidder's signing the Agreement and furnishing of the Performance Security and if required in the BDS, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security pursuant to ITB Clause 50.1, the Employer shall promptly notify the name of the winning bidder to each unsuccessful bidder and shall discharge the Bid Securities of the bidders pursuant to ITB Clause 19.5 and 19.6.
51. Adjudicator	51.1	The Employer proposes the person named in the BDS to be appointed as Adjudicator under the Contract, at the daily fee specified in the BDS , plus reimbursable expenses (actual boarding, lodging, travel and other incidental expenses). If the Bidder disagrees with this proposal, the Bidder should so state in his Bid. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer does not agree on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Employer will request the Appointing Authority designated in the Particular Conditions of Contract (PCC) pursuant to Clause 23.1 of the General Conditions of Contract (GCC), to appoint the Adjudicator.

Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

The following specific data for the Works to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

ITB Reference	A. General
ITB 1.1	The number of the Request for Bids is: one
	The Employer is: Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP)
	The reference number of the Request for Bids (RFB) is:
	IN-SUCM-399856-CW-RFB
	The name of the RFB is: Biomining and bioremediation of 08 Legacy Waste Dumpsites across Kerala
	The number and identification of lots (contracts) comprising this RFB is: <i>One</i>
ITB 1.2	The Employer shall use the e-procurement system specified in BDS 7.1.
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Government of India. The sub-Borrower is Government of Kerala
	Loan or Financing Agreement amount: \$105 million
	The name of the Project is: Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP)
ITB 4.1	Bids from Joint ventures are acceptable .
	Where Joint Ventures are permitted:
	(a) Maximum number of members in the Joint Venture (JV) shall be: <i>Two</i>(2)
	(b) Place where the agreement to form JV to be registered is Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala
	(c) A statement to the effect that all members of the joint venture shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms, shall be included in the authorization nominating a Representative or member in charge, as well as in the Bid and in the Agreement [<i>in case of a successful bid</i>].
	(d) The joint venture agreement should define precisely the division of assignments to each member of JV. All members of JV should have active

ITB 4.5	participation in the execution during the currency of the contract. The scope and parts of the contract to be carried out by each member shall commensurate with the qualifications and capacity of the members as evidenced in the bid. This should not be varied/ modified subsequently without prior approval of the Employer.TTB 4.5A list of debarred firms and individuals is available on the Bank's external website: http://www.worldbank.org/debarr.				
	B. Contents of Bidding Document				
ITB 7.1	Electronic – Procurement System				
	The Employer shall use the following electronic-procurement system to manage this Bidding process: <u>https://etenders.kerala.gov.in</u>				
	Requests for clarification should be received by the Employer no later than: 14 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids				
ITB 7.4	 A Pre-Bid meeting will take place through Video Conference (VC) on 19 January 2024 at 15.00 Hours. The prospective bidders wishing to join the pre-bid meeting VC can access the link to the online meeting from KSWMP website https://www.kswmp.org. A site visit conducted by the Employer <i>"shall not be"</i> organized. However, the employer shall allow and facilitate with necessary information to the bidders intending to visit the site. The Bidders who desires to visit the site may raise a written request to the Employer. The bidder has to visit the site on their own arrangement. The Employer shall facilitate the site visit by the bidder by intimating the respective ULBs and providing necessary information to the bidder 				
	C. Preparation of Bids				
ITB 11.2 (j)	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its Bid: Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (MSIP) to manage the (ES) risks				
	The Bidder shall submit Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (MSIPs) to manage the following key Environmental and Social (ES) risks:				
	 Storage of retrieved wastes and its disposal Fire Safety Plan and Emergency (incl Incidents/Accidents) Response Plan: Implementation, monitoring and reporting 				

 is required at the time of Bid Stage. For submission of original documents, the Employer's address is:Attention: <i>Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project</i> Street Address: <i>Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud</i> Floor/ Room number: <i>Upper Ground Floor</i> City: <i>Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala</i> PIN/Postal Code: <i>695014</i> Country: INDIA ITB 13.1 Alternative Bids <i>shall not be</i> permitted. ITB 13.2 Alternative times for completion <i>shall not be</i> permitted. ITB 13.3 Not Applicable ITB 13.4 Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not Applicable ITB 14.5 The prices quoted by the Bidder "<i>shall not be</i>" subject to adjustment during the state of the st		bidders and filled up. The filled-up pages shall then be scanned and uploaded on the e-procurement system along with the scanned copies of the supporting documents. Documents which are to be submitted as scanned documents shall be printed or written in indelible ink (or legible photocopies in the case of copies) and all the pages shall be signed by person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder before scanning and uploading.				
Floor/ Room number: Upper Ground Floor City: Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala PIN/Postal Code: 695014 Country: INDIAITB 13.1Alternative Bids shall not be permitted.ITB 13.2Alternative times for completion shall not be permitted.ITB 13.3Not ApplicableITB 13.4Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not ApplicableITB 14.5The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment during the Works in t	ITB 12.3	For submission of original documents, the Employer's address is:Attention: <i>Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project</i>				
City: Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala PIN/Postal Code: 695014 Country: INDIAITB 13.1Alternative Bids shall not be permitted.ITB 13.2Alternative times for completion shall not be permitted.ITB 13.3Not ApplicableITB 13.4Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not ApplicableITB 14.5The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment durit						
PIN/Postal Code: 695014 Country: INDIAITB 13.1Alternative Bids shall not be permitted.ITB 13.2Alternative times for completion shall not be permitted.ITB 13.3Not ApplicableITB 13.4Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not ApplicableITB 14.5The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment duri						
Country: INDIAITB 13.1Alternative Bids <i>shall not be</i> permitted.ITB 13.2Alternative times for completion <i>shall not be</i> permitted.ITB 13.3Not ApplicableITB 13.4Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not ApplicableITB 14.5The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment durit						
ITB 13.2Alternative times for completion shall not be permitted.ITB 13.3Not ApplicableITB 13.4Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not ApplicableITB 14.5The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment durit						
ITB 13.3 Not Applicable ITB 13.4 Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not Applicable ITB 14.5 The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment durity	ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids shall not be permitted.				
ITB 13.4Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not ApplicableITB 14.5The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment durity	ITB 13.2	Alternative times for completion <i>shall not be</i> permitted.				
the Works: Not Applicable ITB 14.5 The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment durity	ITB 13.3	Not Applicable				
	ITB 13.4	Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works: Not Applicable				
the performance of the Contract.	ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the Bidder <i>"shall not be"</i> subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.				
		The adjustment of contract price, if provided, will be done in accordance with GCC Clause 49 and corresponding provisions under PCC and Appendix 2 to PCC.				
ITB 18.1The Bid validity period shall be 120 days.	ITB 18.1	The Bid validity period shall be 120 days.				
ITB 18.3 (a) Not Applicable & (b) Vot Applicable		Not Applicable				
ITB 19.1A Bid Security "shall be" required.	ITB 19.1	A Bid Security "shall be" required.				
A Bid-Securing Declaration "shall not be" required		A Bid-Securing Declaration "shall not be" required				
If a Bid Security shall be required, the Bidder shall furnish a Bid Security in the amount of Rs 5,00,000 (Rupees Five Lakh Only)		If a Bid Security shall be required, the Bidder shall furnish a Bid Security in the amount of Rs 5,00,000 (Rupees Five Lakh Only)				
ITB 19.3 (d) None						

ITB 19.9	Not used					
ITB 20.3	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of:					
	(a) Legally valid Power of Attorney is required to demonstrate the authority of the signatory to sign the Bid; and					
(b) In the case of Bids submitted by an existing or intended JV, if permitted as per ITB 4.1, the authorization shall be evidenced by a Power of Attorned signed by legally authorized signatories of all the members."]						
	D. Online Submission and Opening of Bids					
ITB 21.1	Class of DSC required is: Class III					
ITB 22.1	The deadline for uploading the Bids is:					
	Date: 12 February 2024					
	Time: 16.00 hrs.					
ITB 24.1	Re-submission of the bid is "not allowed", if withdrawn.					
	E. Public Opening of Technical Parts of Bids					
ITB 25.1The online Bid opening of Technical Parts of Bids shall take place at: of Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSW)						
	Street Address: Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud					
	Floor/Room number: Upper Ground Floor					
	City: Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala					
	Country: INDIA					
	Date: Same as mentioned at BDS 22.1					
	Time: 16.30 hrs.					
	F. Evaluation of Bids – General Provisions					
ITB 29.3	The price of any activity or sub-activity that the Bidder may have omitted is deemed to be included in the price of other activities or sub-activities in the Schedule of Priced Activities and Sub-activities and will not be paid for separately by the Employer.					
	G. Evaluation of Bids - Technical Parts					
ITB 30.2	The technical factors (sub-factors) and the corresponding weight in are:					
	Refer to sub-section-2 (Evaluation of Technical Proposal) of Section-III					

	A minimum score of 70 points out of 100 points shall also be used as a qualification criterion for the purpose of evaluation.					
ITB 33.1	At this time the Employer " <i>does not intend</i> " to execute certain specific parts of the Works by subcontractors selected in advance.					
ITB 33.2	Not Applicable					
ITB 33.3	Not Applicable					
	H. Public Opening of Financial Parts					
ITB 34.2 (c)	Following the completion of the evaluation of the Technical Parts of the Bids, the Employer will notify all Bidders of the date, time, and location of the public opening of Financial Parts.					
	The online bid opening of Financial Parts of Bids shall take place at: Office of Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP)					
	Street Address: Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud					
	Floor/Room number: Upper Ground Floor					
	City: Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala					
	Country: INDIA					
	Date: To be informed later.					
	Time: To be informed later					
	In addition to the above the Employer shall publish a notice of the public opening of the Financial Parts of the Bid on its website <u>https://etenders.kerala.gov.in</u>					
I. Eval	uation of Bids - Financial Parts & Combined Evaluation					
ITB 39.1	The weight to be given for cost is: 0.7					
ITB 40.2	Provisions related to Abnormally Low Bids does apply					
	J. Award of Contract					
ITB 50.1 and 50.2	The successful Bidder shall also be required to submit an Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security.					
	Throughout this bidding document the term 'performance security', unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, means and includes both 'the performance security and the ES performance security' to be submitted by the successful bidder in the amounts specified in GCC/ PCC 54.					

ITB 51	The Adjudicator proposed by the Employer is: <i>It will be notified before signing of the contract</i> . The daily fee for this proposed Adjudicator shall be:
	The daily fee for this proposed Adjudicator shall be:
	Professional fee: Rs. 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only) per day
	Transport: vehicle with driver or Travel cost reimbursement @ Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) per km if travelled by own car.
	Accommodation: Outstation stay in Government Guest House / Government Owned Hotel or Equivalent with a budget of Rs 3200 per including taxes.
	The biographical data of the proposed Adjudicator is as follows: To be informed before signing of the contractor

Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This section contains all the criteria that the Employer shall use to evaluate Bids and qualify Bidders. No other factors, methods or criteria shall be used other than specified in this Bidding document. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

Evaluation of Bids

1. Qualification

1.1 Update of Information

The Bidder's qualification shall be assessed in accordance with the Qualification table included in this section.

1.2 Subcontractors

Not applicable

1.3 Financial Resources

Using the relevant Form 3.1 in Section IV, Bidding Forms, the Bidder must demonstrate access to, or availability of, financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any contractual advance payments to meet the overall cash flow requirements for this Contract and its current Works commitment.

1.4 Contractor's Representative and Key Personnel

The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have a suitably qualified Contractor's Representative and suitably qualified (and in adequate numbers) Key Personnel, as described in the Employer's Requirement.

The Bidder shall provide details of the Contractor's Representative and Key Personnel and such other Key Personnel that the Bidder considers appropriate to perform the Contract, together with their academic qualifications and work experience. The Bidder shall complete the relevant Forms in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

1.5 Equipment

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has access to the key equipment listed hereafter:

No.	Equipment Type and Characteristics	Minimum Number required
1	Excavator	8

2	Earth Movers	8
3	Trommel Machine/ ballistic Separator	4
4	Tipper Trucks	8
5	Tractor with Trolley	8

The capacity of the above equipment should be such that it should be sufficient to process and dispose minimum $1,300 \text{ M}^3$ per day.

The Bidder shall provide further details of proposed items of equipment using the relevant Form in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

2. Evaluation of Technical Proposal

Assessment of adequacy of Technical Proposal with Requirements in accordance with ITB 30.1:

The bidders must meet the criteria mentioned in Section III 'A: Qualification' prior to being considered for technical evaluation by applying the scored technical factors/subfactors in accordance with BDS ITB 30.2. The criteria mentioned under 'A Qualification' is a Pass/fail type criteria and no scores shall be awarded to the bidders for the mentioned criteria.

The technical factors, and sub factors if any, to be evaluated and the scores to be given to each technical factor and sub factors as required under the BDS ITB 30.2 are specified below

Technical Proposal Scoring Methodology

S.	Technical Factor and sub-factors		Sub	Maximu	Documents	
No			Factor	m		
			Score	Technical		
				Factor		
				Score		
1	Bidders Past performance in Similar Contrac	ets		40		
1.1	Experience of successfully completion of Biomini Bioremediation of legacy waste dumpsites betwee January 2019 and bid submission deadline, wi Urban Local Body/ Government bodies/ Public Undertakings in India with direct contract with the a. From a Single Project- Biomining and Bioreme quantity per annum	een 1 st th any Sector	20		• certificates issued by the consumer with unique reference number for verification along with Performance/Completion Certificates issued by the Urban or Local Bodies confirming the same,	
	>1,46,000 M ³ to <=2,00,000 M ³	10			signed by officer above or equal to the rank of	
	>2,00,000 M ³ to <=2,63,000 M ³	14			Executive Engineer	
	>2,63,000 M ³	20			Proof in the form of photographs/ contour	
	b. From Multiple Projects (maximum three)- Bion and Bioremediation quantity per annum	-			maps/ drone map/image to be provided to prove land reclamation in the	
	>1,75,000 M ³ to <=2,34,000 M ³	10			eligible experience	
	>2,34,000 M ³ to <=2,92,000 M ³	14			projects	
	>2,92,000 M ³	20				
1.2	Experience in disposal of RDF (Refused derived from a single/multiple biomining project to cemen waste to energy/ thermal plants/ other Industries any one year between 1 st January 2019 and bid subm deadline a. From a Single project- RDF quant annum in preceding five years	t plant/ during nission	20		 Co-processing certificates issued by the consumer with unique reference number for verification along with Certificates issued by the 	
	>36,500 MT to <=51,000 MT	10			Urban or Local Bodies	
	>51,000 MT to <= 66,000 MT	14			confirming the same,	
	>66,000 MT	20			signed by officer above or equal to the rank of	
	b. From a multiple project (maximum three pro RDF quantity per annum				Executive Engineer	
	>44,000 MT to <=58,000 MT	10				
	>58,000,000 MT to <= 73,000 MT	14				
	>73,000 MT	20				
2	Bidders Financial Capability			30		

S.	Technical Factor and sub-factors		Sub	Maximu	Documents
No			Factor	m	
			Score	Technical	
				Factor	
				Score	
2.1	Average Annual Turnover within the last five	financial	10		Copies of audited balance
	years (1st April 2018 to 31st March 2023) (Ce	ertified by			sheets attested by statutory
	CA/ Statutory Auditor of Bidder)				auditor
	=Rs 1024 million	4			
	>Rs. 1024 million to <= Rs. 1230 million	8			
	>Rs. 1230 million	10			
2.2	Access to, availability of, liquid	assets,	10		Bankers' certificate
	unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, a	nd other			
	financial means (independent of any con	ntractual			
	advance payment) for amount				
	= Rs. 310 million	2			
	> Rs 310 million to <=Rs. 410 million	6			
	> Rs. 410 million	10			
2.3	Available bid capacity for Solid Waste Man	agement	10		The bidder shall submit
	= Rs. 512 Mn	4			certificate from its
	>Rs 512 Mn to <= Rs 615 Mn	8			statutory Auditor/
	> Rs 615 Mn	10			chartered Accountant
3	Method Statement for Biomining Activity			25	certifying his bid capacity
5	Method Statement for Diomining Activity	,		25	
3.1	Design Methodology		5		The bidder shall submit
	Required feature is absent; no relevant	0			the details in the form
	information to demonstrate how the				Appendix to Technical
	requirement is met Required feature present with deficiencies	1			Part 'Design
	such as insufficient or information that lacks	1			Methodology'
	clarity				
	Sufficient information to demonstrate how	2			
	the requirement will be met Sufficient information to demonstrate that the	4			
	requirement will be marginally exceeded	•			
	Sufficient information that significantly	5			
	exceed the requirement/proposal contributes				
3.2	to significant value addition Forward Linkage of fractions recovered	ed after	5		The bidder shall submit
5.2	biomining activity (Approach for disp		U		the details in the form
	biomining fractions)	500ur 01			Appendix to Technical
	Sufficient information to demonstrate th	ie 2.5			Part 'Method Statement'
	forward linkage/ disposal methodology for eac				
	recovered fraction from biomining operations				
	Memorandum of Understanding (MoU	·			
	Agreement from Authorized Cement/ Waste t	0			

S. No	Technical Factor and sub-factors Energy/ Thermal Plants for RDF take off or RDF Co-processing	Sub Factor Score	Maximu m Technical Factor Score	Documents
3.3	Work Management StrategyRequired feature is absent; no relevant information to demonstrate how the requirement is met0Sufficient information to demonstrate how the requirement will be met1Sufficient information to demonstrate that the requirement will be marginally exceeded2Sufficient information that significantly exceed the requirement/proposal contributes to significant value addition3	3		The bidder shall submit the details in the form Appendix to Technical Part 'Work Management Strategy'
3.4	Risk mitigation measures- Proposal for alternative plan in case proposed work management strategy and forward linkages are not viable at implementation of actual workRequired feature is absent; no relevant information to demonstrate how the requirement is met0Sufficient information to demonstrate how the requirement will be met1Sufficient information to demonstrate that the requirement will be marginally exceeded2Sufficient information that significantly exceed the requirement/proposal contributes to significant value addition3	,		The bidder shall submit the details in the form Appendix to Technical Part 'Method Statement'
3.5	Site Organization, team composition, qualifications and experience of Contractor's PersonnelSufficient information to demonstrate efficient1Site Organization2Availability of Minimum team composition proposed in this RFB and demonstration on efficiently integration of the team for this work2Experience of Contractor's personnel in similar work3	3		The bidder shall submit the details in the form Appendix to Technical Part 'Site Organization' & Key Personnel Schedule
3.6	Key equipment strategy	3		documentary evidence of ownership or leasing equipment

S.	Technical Factor and sub-factors	Sub	Maximu	Documents
No		Factor	m	
- • •		Score	Technical	
•		Score	Factor	
			Score	
	Availability of minimum Key Equipment 2		Jeore	Details of Equipment to be
	(Owned or Leased- shall be demonstrated			provided in Appendix to
	by providing documentary evidence of			Technical Part:
	ownership or leasing) listed in the RFB			
				Equipment
	demonstration on efficiently integration of 1			
	the Key Equipment for this work execution			
	including minimum processing capacity			
	per day, equipment deployment schedule			
3.7	Work Program and Schedule	3		The bidder shall submit
	Required feature is absent; no relevant 0	1		the details in the form
	information to demonstrate how the			Appendix to Technical
	requirement is met			Part 'Mobilization
	Sufficient information to demonstrate how the 1			Schedule' & 'Work
	requirement will be metSufficient information to demonstrate that the2			Schedule'
	requirement will be marginally exceeded			
	Sufficient information that significantly 3			
	exceed the requirement/proposal contributes			
	to significant value addition		-	
4	Management strategies and implementation plans		5	The bidder shall submit
	(MSIPs) for ES			the details in the form
	Required feature is absent; no 0 relevant information to			Appendix to Technical
	relevant information to demonstrate how the requirement			Part Environmental and
	is met			Social, Health
	Sufficient information to 3			Management Strategies
	demonstrate how the requirement			and Implementation
	will be met			Plans
	Sufficient information to 4 demonstrate that the requirement			
	will be marginally exceeded			
	Sufficient information that 5			
	significantly exceed the			
	requirement/proposal contributes			
l	to significant value addition TOTAL			100
	IUIAL			100

3. Financial Evaluation

Criteria for Financial Evaluation

In addition to the criteria listed in ITB 35.1 (a) - (e) the following criteria shall apply: None

4. Combined Evaluation

The Employer will evaluate and compare the Bids that have been determined to be substantially responsive.

An Evaluated Bid Score (B) will be calculated for each responsive Bid using the following formula, which permits a comprehensive assessment of the evaluated cost and the technical merits of each Bid:

$$B \equiv \frac{Clow}{C} * X * 100 + \frac{T}{Thigh} * (1 - X) * 100$$

Where:

C = Evaluated Bid Cost

 C_{low} = the lowest of all Evaluated Bid Costs among responsive Bids

T = the total Technical Score awarded to the Bid

 T_{high} = the Technical Score achieved by the Bid that was scored best among all responsive Bids

X = weight for Cost as specified **in the BDS**

The Bid with the best evaluated Bid Score (B) among responsive Bids shall be the Most Advantageous Bid provided the Bidder is qualified to perform the Contract.

5. Multiple Contracts – Not Applicable

A. Qualification

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	tisting or intended) v Each Member	vhere permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
1. Eli	gibility						
1.1	Nationality	Nationality in accordance with ITB 4.4	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Forms ELI – 1.1 and 1.2, with attachments
1.2	Conflict of Interest	No conflicts of interest in accordance with ITB 4.2	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Letter of Bid
1.3	Bank Eligibility	Not having been declared ineligible by the Bank, as described in ITB 4.5.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Letter of Bid
1.4	State-owned enterprise or institution of the Borrower country	Meets conditions of ITB 4.6	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Forms ELI – 1.1 and 1.2, with attachments
1.5	United Nations resolution or Borrower's country law	Not having been excluded as a result of prohibition in the Borrower's country laws or official regulations against commercial relations with the Bidder's country, or by an act of compliance with UN Security Council resolution, both in accordance with ITB 4.8 and Section V.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Forms ELI – 1.1 and 1.2, with attachments
2. His	storical Contra	ct Non-Performance					
2.1	History of Non-	Non-performance of a	Must meet requirement ⁷	Must meet requirements	Must meet	N/A	Form CON-2

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
	Performing Contracts	contract ³ did not occur as a result of contractor default since 1 st January 2019.	& 8		requirement ⁴		
2.2	Suspension Based on Execution of Bid/ Proposal Securing Declaration by the Employer or withdrawal of the Bid within Bid validity period	Not under suspension based on execution of a Bid/ Proposal Securing Declaration pursuant to ITB 4.7 or withdrawal of the Bid pursuant ITB 19.9	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Letter of Bid
2.3	Pending Litigation	Bidder's financial position and prospective long-term profitability sound according to criteria established in 3.1 below and assuming that all pending litigation will be resolved against the Bidder	Must meet requirement	N/A	Must meet requirement	N/A	Form CON – 2
2.4	Litigation History	No consistent history of court/arbitral award decisions	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	Form CON – 2

³ Non-performance, as decided by the Employer, shall include all contracts where (a) non-performance was not challenged by the contractor, including through referral to the dispute resolution mechanism under the respective contract, and (b) contracts that were so challenged but fully settled against the contractor. Non-performance shall not include contracts where Employers decision was overruled by the dispute resolution mechanism. Non-performance must be based on all information on fully settled disputes or litigation, i.e. dispute or litigation that has been resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution mechanism under the respective contract and where all appeal instances available to the Bidder have been exhausted.

⁴ This requirement also applies to contracts executed by the Bidder as JV member.

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance Requirements			Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		against the Bidder ⁵ since 1 st January 2019					
2.5	Declaration: Environmental and Social (ES) past performance	Declare any Solid Waste Management work contracts that have been suspended or terminated and/or performance security called by an employer for reasons of breach of environmental, or social (including Sexual Exploitation, and Abuse) contractual obligations in the past five years ⁶ .	Must make the declaration.	N/A	Each must make the declaration.	N/A	Form CON-3 ES Performance Declaration
3. Fin	ancial Situatio	n and Performance					
3.1	Financial Capabilities	(i) The Bidder shall demonstrate that it has access to, or has available, liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit ⁷ , and other financial means (independent of any contractual advance payment)	Must meet requirement	Must meet Requirement	Must meet at least 25% of the requirement as a minimum	Lead Member Must meet at least 50% of the requirement as a minimum	Form FIN – 3.1, with attachments

⁵ The Bidder shall provide accurate information on the Letter of Bid about any litigation or arbitration resulting from contracts completed or ongoing under its execution over the last five years. A consistent history of court/arbitral awards against the Bidder or any member of a joint venture may result in disqualifying the Bidder.

⁶ The Employer may use this information to seek further information or clarifications in carrying out its due diligence.

⁷ In case the bidder submits a letter of intent from a commercial bank with the bid, firm commitment from the bank to provide line of credit shall be required before contract signing.

	Eligibility and	Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Documentation		
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) v Each Member	where permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		sufficient to meet the Work execution cash flow requirements estimated as Rs. 310 Mn (Rupees Three Hundred Ten Million Only) for the subject contract(s) net of the Bidder's other commitments					
		(ii) The Bidders shall also demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Employer, that it has adequate sources of finance to meet the cash flow requirements on works currently in progress and for future contract commitments.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	N/A	
		(iii) The audited balance sheets or, if not required by the laws of the Bidder's country, other financial statements acceptable to the Employer, for the last five years shall be submitted and must demonstrate the current soundness of the Bidder's financial position and indicate its prospective long- term profitability.	Must meet requirement	N/A	Must meet requirement	N/A	

	Eligibility and Qualification Criteria			Compliance Requirements				
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	cisting or intended) v Each Member	where permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements	
3.2	Average Annual Turnover	Minimum average annual turnover of Rs. 1,024 Mn (Rupees One Thousand Twenty Four Million Only), calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in progress and/or completed within the last five financial years from the bid due date, divided by five years.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet 25%, (twenty five percent) of the requirement	Must meet 50%, (fifty percent) of the requirement as lead member	 (i) Form FIN – 3.2 (ii) Certificate issued from a practicing Chartered Accountant/ Statutory Auditor of Bidder, not older than six (6) months from the date of submission of this RFB, certifying the average Turnover of the Bidder (Individual bidder or all members of consortium/Joint venture as the case may be) in the preceding five financial years from the due date of bid submission. (iii) Copies of Audited Balance Sheets and Profit & Loss Statements for preceding five financial years 	

	Eligibility and	Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
4. Ex	perience						
4.1(a)	Not Applicable			NY/A	N7/4	M	
4.1 (b)	Design Experience	A minimum number of One (1) contract of Legacy Waste processing capacity of at least 1,300 M ³ / day (One Thousand Three Hundred Cubic Meter per day) or Multiple (maximum three) Concurrent contracts (should have been designed in the same year) of at least cumulative Legacy Waste Processing Capacity of 1,600 M ³ / day (One Thousand Six Hundred Cubic Meter per day) for the design of Legacy Waste Dumpsite remediation through Bioremediation and Biomining process/ Landfill mining/ Biomining/ Land reclamation through Biomining successfully	Must meet requirement	N/A	N/A	Must meet requirement	 (i) Form EXP - 4.1(b) (ii) Copy of Agreement for eligible projects with the concerned client (iii) Performance/ Credential Certificate(s) from the concerned client issued by an officer of rank not less than Executive Engineer or equivalent in support of "the technical capacity" clearly stating the required details

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	- Submission Requirements
		completed between 1 st January 2019 and bid submission deadline. The selected design contracts shall relate to Employer's <i>requirement</i> <i>under section VII</i>					
4.2 (a)	Not Applicable						
4.3 (a)	Specific Work & Contract Management Experience	(i) A minimum number of <i>One</i> (1) ⁸ similar contracts specified below that have been satisfactorily and substantially ⁹ completed as a prime contractor, joint venture member ¹⁰ , management contractor between 1st January 2019	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement ¹¹	Must meet the requirement for one contract of at least 25% value	Must meet the requirement for one contract of at least 50% value as lead member	Form EXP 4.3(a) (iii) Copy of Agreement for eligible projects with the concerned client (iii) Performance/ Credential

⁸ Cost of completed works of previous years shall be given weightage @5% per year based on rupees value to bring them to the price level of the financial year in which bids are received.

⁹ Substantial completion shall be based on 80% or more works completed under the contract.

¹⁰ For contracts under which the Bidder participated as a joint venture member, only the Bidder's share, by value, shall be considered to meet this requirement. The relevant work for technical qualification should have been undertaken for a State and Central Government Department, Urban Local Bodies, Public Sector Undertaking in India with a direct contract from the Government entity. Work done as Sub-contractor shall not be considered for evaluation

¹¹ In the case of JV, the value of contracts completed by its members shall not be aggregated to determine whether the requirement of the minimum value of a single contract has been met. Instead, each contract performed by each member shall satisfy the minimum value of a single contract as required for single entity. In determining whether the JV meets the requirement of total number of contracts, only the number of contracts completed by all members each of value equal or more than the minimum value required shall be aggregated.

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (exi All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		and bid submission deadline: (i) One contract of minimum value Rs. 410 Mn (Rupees Four Hundred Ten Million) Or, (ii) More than One Contract (maximum three) each of minimum contract value of Rs. 130 Mn (Rupees One Hundred Thirty Million Only), but with total value of all contracts equal or more than Rs. 512 Mn (Rupees Five Hundred Twelve Million Only) The similarity of the contracts shall be based on the following: Based on Section VII, Scope of Works, for Legacy Waste Dumpsite					Certificate(s) from the concerned client issued by an officer of rank not less than Executive Engineer or equivalent in support of "the technical capacity" clearly stating the required details

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		remediation through Bioremediation and Biomining process/ Landfill mining/Biomining/ Land reclamation through Biomining					
4.3 (b)		 For the above and any other contracts [substantially completed and under implementation] as prime contractor, joint venture member, between 1st January 2019 and Bid submission deadline, a minimum Work experience in the following key activities successfully completed¹²: <i>Biomining and Bioremediation of minimum 1,46,000 M³ per annum of Legacy Waste in a single</i> 	Must meet requirements	Must meet requirements	N/A	Must meet the following requirements for all the key activities listed below as lead member	Form EXP – 4.3 (b) (i) Copy of Agreement for eligible projects with the concerned client (ii) Performance/ Credential Certificate(s) from the concerned client issued by an officer of rank not less than Executive Engineer or equivalent in support of "the technical capacity"

¹² Volume, number or rate of production of any key activity can be demonstrated in one or more contracts combined if executed during same time period.

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria			Documentation		
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (exi All members Combined	sting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		 processing capacity of 800 M³ per day Or, Biomining and Bioremediation of minimum 1,75,000 M³ per annum of Legacy Waste in multiple projects (maximum three projects) with minimum cumulative processing capacity of 1000 M³ per day At least one of the eligible Biomining and Bioremediation project out of the multiple projects should qualify min. 50% of the capacity i.e. 87,500 M³ per day. AND, 					clearly stating the required details
		Responsibly disposed					

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (exi All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		of RDF (Refused derived fuel) of quantity not less than 36,500 MT/ annum from a single project Location or cumulative 44,000 MT annum cumulative from multiple locations (maximum three locations) to Cement Plant/ Waste to Energy/ Thermal Plants/ other Industries. Note: 1. If the eligible project Quantity is in Metric Ton (MT) then conversion factor for the sake of evaluation shall be considered as $1M^3=$ 0.8 MT. 2. Average Legacy Waste biomining and					
		bioremediation per annum during the project i.e Legacy Waste Processed per year/ no.					

	Eligibility and (Qualification Criteria		Compliance	Requirements		Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		of years; 3. minimum processing capacity per day calculated as Average biomining and bioremediation quantity/ 365 4. RDF supplied under Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) will not be considered for qualification					
4.3 I	Specific Experience in managing ES aspects	• For the contracts in 4.3 (a) above and/or any other contracts [substantially completed and under implementation] as prime contractor, joint venture member,	Must meet requirements	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement for at least any two aspects	Must meet requirement for at least any four aspects as lead member	Form EXP – 4.3 (c) Work order of relevant project clearly mentioning the scope of work. Corresponding to ES risk management

	Eligibility and Qualification Criteria			Compliance Requirements			Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (exi All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Requirements
		 or Subcontractor betweeⁿ 1st January 2019 and Application submission deadline, experience in managing ES risks and impacts in the following aspects: Managed Ambient Air Quality (Dust, Odour & other Emissions) in Project Area Drainage/Surface in Project Area Drainage/Surface run-off and Leachate Management Dumpsite Gas Management Pest, Flies & vectors Management through integrated management options Soil Pollution 					

Eligibility and Qualification Criteria			Compliance Requirements				Documentation			
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (existing or intended) where permittedAll membersEach MemberAt least one			Submission			
				Combined	Each Member	Member	Requirements			
		 Ambient Noise Level Management of health, and safety incidents/accidents at work site. 								
employ	ment of specialist s walification and exp Bid Capacity: Bidders who mee	The should fill this after careful review of the requirements for the work. Where the elements of work are specialized, and it is proposed to accept the specialist sub-contractors, this could be so specified for that activity and bidders may be requested to name the sub-contractors and furnish alification and experience. Bid Capacity: Bidders who meet the minimum qualification criteria will be qualified only if their available bid capacity for Solid Waste Management work is equal to or more than Rs 512 Mn (Rupees Five Hundred Twelve Million Only). The available bid capacity will be calculated as under:								
	Assessed Available bid capacity = $(A*N*1.15-B)$									
	Where,									
	A = Maximum value of Solid Waste Management works executed in any one year during the last five years (updated to the price level of the financial year 2023-2024. at the rate of 5% per year), taking into account the completed as well as works in progress).									
	N = Number of years prescribed for completion of the works for which bids are invited (period up to 6 months to be taken as half-year and more than 6 months as one year).									

	Eligibility and Qualification Criteria			Compliance Requirements			Documentation
No.	Subject	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture (ex All members Combined	isting or intended) w Each Member	here permitted At least one Member	Submission Boggingerents
	B = Value, at the current price level, of existing commitments on on-going works to be completed during the period of completion of the works for which bids are invited. Note: the statements in Section IV showing the value of existing commitments of on-going works as well as the stipulated period of completion remaining for each of the works listed should be countersigned by the Engineer in charge, not below the rank of an Executive Engineer or equivalent.						

General notes for the Proposer:

a. For contracts under which the Proposer participated as a joint venture member or sub-contractor, only the Proposer's share, by

value, shall be considered to meet this requirement

- b. Substantial completion shall be based on 80% or more Plant and installation completed under the contract.
- c. In the case of JV, the value of contracts completed by its members shall not be aggregated to determine whether the requirement of the minimum value of a single contract has been met. Instead, each contract performed by each member shall satisfy the minimum value of a single contract as required for single entity. In determining whether the JV meets the requirement of total number of contracts, only the number of contracts completed by all members each of value equal or more than the minimum value required shall be aggregated.
- d. The Proposer may use a single contract to satisfy two or more criteria requirements. In such cases, the Proposer shall complete separate EXP forms for each subject contract type. (For example, if a contractor undertook both design and construction on a similar contract, it may use that experience to qualify under Design Experience and Construction Experience. It such case it would complete forms EXP-4.2 and EXP4.3.)

Section IV - Bidding Forms

Letter of Bid – Technical Part

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE DOCUMENT

The Bidder must prepare this Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and business address.

Note: All italicized text is to help Bidders in preparing this form.

Date of this Bid submission: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] **RFB No.:** [insert number of RFB process] **Alternative No¹.:** [insert identification No. if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Employer]

We, the undersigned, hereby submit our Bid, in two parts, namely:

- (a) the Technical Part, and
- (b) the Financial Part

In submitting our Bid, we make the following declarations:

- (a) **No reservations:** We have examined and have no reservations to the bidding document, including Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8;
- (b) **Eligibility**: We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) **Bid-Securing Declaration:** We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Employer based on execution of a Bid-Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration in the Employer's Country in accordance with ITB 4.7
- (d) **Conformity:** We offer to execute in conformity with the bidding document the following Works: [*insert a brief description of the Works*]
- (e) **Bid Validity Period:** Our Bid shall be valid for a period specified in BDS ITB 18.1 (or as amended if applicable) from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline specified in BDS 22.1 (or as amended if applicable), and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (f) **Performance Security:** If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security [*and an Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security*, **Delete if not** *applicable*] in accordance with the bidding document;

¹ Delete if not applicable

- (g) **One Bid Per Bidder:** We are not submitting any other Bid(s) as an individual Bidder or as a subcontractor, and we are not participating in any other Bid(s) as a Joint Venture member, and meet the requirements of ITB 4.3, other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
- (h) Suspension and Debarment: We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Employer's Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council.
- (i) **State-owned enterprise or institution:** We are not a state-owned enterprise, or institution/ We are a state-owned enterprise or institution but meet the requirements of ITB 4.6²;
- (j) **Binding Contract**: We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your Letter of Acceptance, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed.
- (k) **Not Bound to Accept:** We understand that you are not bound to accept the Most Advantageous Bid or any other Bid that you may receive; and
- (1) **Fraud and Corruption:** We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption; and
- (m) **Adjudicator**: We accept the appointment of *[insert name proposed in Bid Data Sheet]* as the Adjudicator.

[or]

We do not accept the appointment of *[insert name proposed in Bid Data Sheet]* as the Adjudicator and propose instead that *[insert name]* be appointed³ as Adjudicator, whose daily fees and biographical data are attached.

Name of the Bidder: *[insert complete name of person signing the Bid]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder:**[*insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid*]

Title of the person signing the Bid: [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

² Use one of the two options as appropriate

³ In case appointment of Adjudicator was proposed from the list provided by an Institution in ITB 51, the replacement should also be proposed from the list of same institution.

Signature of the person named above: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]

Date signed [insert date of signing] **day of** [insert month], [insert year]

*: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder **: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid

Technical Proposal

Technical Proposal Forms

- Design Methodology
- Work Management Strategy
- Key Personnel Schedule
- Equipment
- Site Organization
- Method Statement
- Mobilization Schedule
- Work Schedule
- ES Management Strategies and Implementation Plans
- Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel (ES)
- Sub-contracting elements or works which in aggregate adds to more than 10% of Bid price (for each the qualifications and experiences on the identified subcontractor in the relevant field should be given)

Note: Work should not be split into small parts and sub-contracted; but sub-contracting specialized elements of works is acceptable.

- Others
- Bidder's Qualification
- Form of Bid Security Bank Guarantee
- Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

Appendix to Technical Part Design Methodology

The Bidder shall submit a design methodology which addresses as a minimum the following:

- (a) organizational arrangements for the design including: team structure, roles and responsibilities, interface arrangements, design review and approval procedures and quality assurance arrangements;
- (b) Proposed design deliverables in line with provision stipulated in 'Design and Engineering Phase' requirement mentioned in Section VII Scope of Work including but not limited to Egnagement of resources, processing capacity design, capacity of Machinery, Forward Linkages, Leachate Management, Storm Water Management, Site Profiling after completion of Work
- (c) design statement setting out how the Employers Requirements will be achieved;
- (d) Any added value the Bidder will bring including examples of innovative aspects of the design;
- (e) comments on the Employer's Requirements, including:
 - i. status of the information available and relevant design issues for the Works;
 - ii. comments on any errors, defects or ambiguities noted in the Employer's Requirements; and
 - iii. [details of any exceptions in the conceptual design taken to the Employer's Requirements];
- (f) Sustainable Procurement: sustainability aspects (e.g. energy efficiency, reduction of wastages, material reduction, sources of materials etc.) demonstrating the Bidder's approach and commitment to sustainable design and work execution practices;
- (g) strategy for gathering baseline ES information in time to inform design development;
- (h) details of how the ES requirements, and any proposal to enhance ES outcomes, will be incorporated into all design stages, and how the implications for the execution phase has been considered;
- (i) details of the approach to managing risks, stakeholder engagement, consultation and environmental permits/consents;
- (j) value engineering (value management) arrangements, including consideration of ES issues; and
- (k) [modify/include any other relevant information, as appropriate.]

Appendix to Technical Part Work Management Strategy

The Bidder shall submit a Work management strategy which addresses as a minimum:

- (a) organizational arrangements for the Work management including: team structure, roles and responsibilities, interface arrangements, approval procedures and quality assurance arrangements (including each site);
- (b) subcontractor selection and management;
- (c) proposals for training all personnel attending site;
- (d) stakeholder engagement;
- (e) obtaining and managing consents, permits and approvals;
- (f) site setup proposals including access, accommodation, welfare facilities, arrangement for plant and material storage;
- (g) Work execution phasing proposals including sequence of work at each site and management of conflicting activities (time is the essence);
- (h) ensuring that geotechnical investigations or other advance works meet the ES requirements;
- (i) risk management approach for geotechnical and subsurface aspects of the Works;
- (j) quality management system including a draft of the quality management plan;
- (k) sustainability aspects demonstrating the Bidder's approach and commitment to sustainable work execution practices (e.g. energy efficiency, reduction of wastages, material reduction and sources of materials etc.);
- preparation, approval (before start of any subproject related activities on sites) and implementation of the Contractor's environmental and social management plan (C-ESMP) (specific to each dumpsite, updating the EIA to reflect impacts and risks of actual work plan, and method; & ESMP presented in annexure)
- (m) preparation, approval and implementation of the Contractor's health and safety manual;
- (n) grievance redress mechanisms, ICC
- (o) reporting arrangements, including topics (that include ES) and timescales in accordance with the Particular Conditions Part B Sub-Clause 4.20;
- (p) Reporting arrangements for MIS tool for labor management/compliance provided by KSWMP
- (q) arrangements for testing upon completion of the works;
- (r) arrangements for site handover, including completion as per work plan, preparation of operation and maintenance manuals, and any other relevant aspects; and
- (s) Provide for Plan B (ex-situ processing of waste including transportation, processing, disposal/resued of recovered fractions etc at no additional cost to the authority)

Key Personnel Schedule

Forms for Personnel

Form PER – 1: Key Personnel Schedule

Bidders should provide the names and details of the suitably qualified Key Personnel to perform the Contract. The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form PER-2 below for each candidate.

Key Personnel

1.	Title of position:					
	Name of candidate:					
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]				
	Time commitment: for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]				
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gana chart]				
2.	Title of position:					
	Name of candidate:					
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will engaged]				
	Time commitment: for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]				
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]				
3.	Title of position:					
	Name of candidate:					
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]				
	Time commitment: for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]				
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]				
4.	Title of position:					

	Name of candidate:				
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]			
	Time commitment: for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]			
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]			
5.	Title of position: e [Where a Project SEA risks are assessed to be substantial or high, Key Personnel shall include an expert with relevant experience in addressing sexual exploitation, sexual abuse and sexual harassment cases]				
	Name of candidate:				
-	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]			
	Time commitment: for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]			
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]			
6.	Title of position:				
	Name of candidate				
	Duration of appointment:	[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position will be engaged]			
	Time commitment: for this position:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for this position]			
	Expected time schedule for this position:	[insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high level Gantt chart]			

Form PER-2:

Resume and Declaration

Key Personnel

Name of Bidder

Position [#1]:	[title of position from Form PER-1	1		
Personnel information	Name:	Date of birth:		
	Address:	E-mail:		
	D C			
	Professional qualifications:			
	Academic qualifications:			
	Language proficiency: [language and levels of speaking, reading and writing skills]			
details				
	Address of employer:			
	Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel officer):			
	Fax:			
	Job title:	Years with present employer:		

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

Project	Role	Duration of involvement [From - To]	Relevant experience
[main project details]	[role and responsibilities on the project]	[time in role]	[describe the experience relevant to this position]

	-	
J		

Declaration

I, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information contained in this Form PER-2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for this position as provided in the Bid:

Commitment	Details
Commitment to duration of contract:	[insert period (start and end dates) for which this Key Personnel is available to work on this contract]
Time commitment:	[insert the number of days/week/months/ that this Key Personnel will be engaged]

I understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:

- (a) be taken into consideration during Bid evaluation;
- (b) result in my disqualification from participating in the Bid;
- (c) result in my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: [insert name]

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Bidder:

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year):

Appendix to Technical Part: Equipment

Forms for Equipment

The Bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section III (Evaluation and Qualification Criteria). A separate Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment proposed by the Bidder. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested below, to the extent possible. Fields with asterisk (*) shall be used for evaluation.

Type of Equipment*				
Equipment Information	Name of manufacturer	r,	Model and	l power rating
	Capacity*		Year of m	anufacture*
Current Status	Current location			
	Details of current com	mitments		
Source	Indicate source of the o	equipment Rented	□ Leased	□ Specially manufactured

The following information shall be provided only for equipment not owned by the Bidder.

Owner	Name of owner Address of owner			
	Telephone	Contact name and title		
	Fax	Telex		
Agreements	Details of rental / lease / man	ufacture agreements specific to the project		

Site Organization

[Bidder to insert Site Organization information]

Method Statement

[insert method Statement – A detailed note should be submitted outlining bidders proposed methodology and program of Work execution including Contractor's Environmental and Social, Health Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (ES-MSIP), backed with equipment, materials and manpower planning and deployment, duly supported with broad calculations and quality control system/assurance procedures proposed to be adopted, justifying their capability of execution and completion of the work as per technical specifications within the stipulated period of completion as per milestones.

- Equipment and Resource Mobilization
- Legacy Waste Excavation
- Equipment and resource deployment strategy
- Method statement for Biomining operation
- Forward linkage for disposal of Biomining fraction
- Leachate Management
- Fire accident prevention and control
- Dumpsite Gas Management

Mobilization Schedule

[insert Mobilization Schedule]

In accordance with the Particular Conditions, Sub-Clause 16.2, the Contractor shall not carry out mobilization to Site unless the Project manager gives consent that appropriate measures are in place to address environmental and social risks and impacts, which as a minimum shall include applying the Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (MSIPs) and Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel, submitted as part of the Bid, and agreed as part of the Contract.

Work Schedule

[insert Work Schedule]

The Work schedule shall include the following activities and key milestone –

- (a) design of the Works, including the submission of the design deliverables, review, and approval of the design by the Engineer.
- (b) processes and deliverables needed to commence the Works.
- (c) execution of the Works within the Time for Completion, highlighting activities imposing constraints on the work sequence.
- (d) testing, commissioning and handing over of the completed Works.
- (e) No-objection to the Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel and Contractor's MSIPs, and EIA/EMP that shall be updated in line with the Contractors work method & plan / locations for disposal of retrieved wastes (to form the C-ESMP), in accordance with the Particular Conditions of Contract Sub-Clause 16.2.
- (f) insert any other, as may be appropriate.

Environmental and Social, Health Management Strategies and Implementation Plans

(ES-MSIP)

The Bidder shall submit comprehensive and concise Environmental and Social Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (ES-MSIP) as required by ITB 11.2 (j) of the Bid Data Sheet. These strategies and plans shall describe in detail the actions, materials, equipment, management processes etc.; based on existing site & work conditions. that will be implemented by the Contractor, and its subcontractors. Once on Board, the successful Bidder shall update the existing Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and Environmental Management Plan to prepare the C-EMP specific to each dumpsite in line with the contractor's design/work method & schedule for clearance from the Client before initiating any activity on site. The ESMSIPs prepared at this stage shall be useful for the same. The successful bidder shall be responsible for implementing the proposed activities mentioned in the Social Management Plan provided by KSWMP (SPMU) which includes Community health and safety, Labour compliance, Grievance management, ICC, Actions for GBV related issues, compliance with activities to ensure host community wellbeing in case of labour influx, Community consultations and citizen engagement activities (Refer Social Management Plan with Labour management plan, labor influx management plan, GBV action plan and site specific Citizen engagement plan)

In developing these strategies and plans, the Bidder shall have regard to the ES provisions of the contract including those as may be more fully described in the Works Requirements in Section VII.

Appendix to Technical Part Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel (ES) Form

Note to the Bidder:

The minimum content of the Code of Conduct form as set out by the Employer shall not be substantially modified. However, the Bidder may add requirements as appropriate, including to take into account Contract-specific issues/risks.

The Bidder shall initial and submit the Code of Conduct form as part of its bid.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL

We are the Contractor, [*enter name of Contractor*]. We have signed a contract with [*enter name of Employer*] for [*enter description of the Works*]. These Works will be carried out at [*enter the Site and other locations where the Works will be carried out*]. Our contract requires us to implement measures to address environmental and social risks related to the Works, including the risks of sexual exploitation, sexual abuse and sexual harassment.

This Code of Conduct is part of our measures to deal with environmental and social risks related to the Works. It applies to all our staff, laborers and other employees at the Works Site or other places where the Works are being carried out. It also applies to the personnel of each subcontractor and any other personnel assisting us in the execution of the Works. All such persons are referred to as "**Contractor's Personnel**" and are subject to this Code of Conduct.

This Code of Conduct identifies the behavior that we require from all Contractor's Personnel.

Our workplace is an environment where unsafe, offensive, abusive or violent behavior will not be tolerated and where all persons should feel comfortable raising issues or concerns without fear of retaliation.

REQUIRED CONDUCT

Contractor's Personnel shall:

- 1. carry out his/her duties competently and diligently;
- 2. comply with this Code of Conduct and all applicable laws, regulations and other requirements, including requirements to protect the health, safety and well-being of other Contractor's Personnel and any other person;
- 3. maintain a safe working environment including by:
 - a. ensuring that workplaces, machinery, equipment and processes under each person's control are safe and without risk to health;

- b. wearing required personal protective equipment;
- c. using appropriate measures relating to chemical, physical and biological substances and agents; and
- d. following applicable emergency operating procedures.
- 4. report work situations that he/she believes are not safe or healthy and remove himself/herself from a work situation which he/she reasonably believes presents an imminent and serious danger to his/her life or health;
- 5. treat other people with respect, and not discriminate against specific groups such as women, people with disabilities, migrant workers or children;
- 6. not engage in Sexual Harassment, which means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature with other Contractor's or Employer's Personnel;
- 7. not engage in Sexual Exploitation, which means any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another;
- 8. not engage in Sexual Abuse, which means the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions;
- 9. not engage in any form of sexual activity with individuals under the age of 18, except in case of pre-existing marriage;
- 10. complete relevant training courses that will be provided related to the environmental and social aspects of the Contract, including on health and safety matters, and Sexual Exploitation, and Abuse (SEA) and Sexual Harassment (SH);
- 11. report violations of this Code of Conduct; and
- 12. not retaliate against any person who reports violations of this Code of Conduct, whether to us or the Employer, or who makes use of the grievance mechanism for Contractor's Personnel or the project's Grievance Redress Mechanism.

RAISING CONCERNS

If any person observes behavior that he/she believes may represent a violation of this Code of Conduct, or that otherwise concerns him/her, he/she should raise the issue promptly. This can be done in either of the following ways:

- 1. Contact [enter name of the Contractor's Social Expert with relevant experience in handling gender-based violence, or if such person is not required under the Contract, another individual designated by the Contractor to handle these matters] in writing at this address [] or by telephone at [] or in person at []; or
- 2. Call [] to reach the Contractor's hotline (*if any*) and leave a message.

The person's identity will be kept confidential, unless reporting of allegations is mandated by the country law. Anonymous complaints or allegations may also be submitted and will be given all due and appropriate consideration. We take seriously all reports of possible misconduct and

will investigate and take appropriate action. We will provide warm referrals to service providers that may help support the person who experienced the alleged incident, as appropriate.

There will be no retaliation against any person who raises a concern in good faith about any behavior prohibited by this Code of Conduct. Such retaliation would be a violation of this Code of Conduct.

CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATING THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Any violation of this Code of Conduct by Contractor's Personnel may result in serious consequences, up to and including termination and possible referral to legal authorities.

FOR CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL:

I have received a copy of this Code of Conduct written in a language that I comprehend. I understand that if I have any questions about this Code of Conduct, I can contact [*enter name of Contractor's contact person with relevant experience*] requesting an explanation.

Name of Contractor's Personnel: [insert name]

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year): _____

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Contractor:

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year): _____

ATTACHMENT 1: Behaviors constituting Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and behaviors constituting Sexual Harassment (SH)

ATTACHMENT 1 TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT FORM

BEHAVIORS CONSTITUTING SEXUAL EXPLOITATION AND ABUSE (SEA) AND BEHAVIORS CONSTITUTING SEXUAL HARASSMENT (SH)

The following non-exhaustive list is intended to illustrate types of prohibited behaviors:

(1) **Examples of sexual exploitation and abuse** include, but are not limited to:

- A Contractor's Personnel tells a member of the community that he/she can get them jobs related to the work site (e.g. cooking and cleaning) in exchange for sex.
- A Contractor's Personnel that is connecting electricity input to households says that he can connect women headed households to the grid in exchange for sex.
- A Contractor's Personnel rapes, or otherwise sexually assaults a member of the community.
- A Contractor's Personnel denies a person access to the Site unless he/she performs a sexual favor.
- A Contractor's Personnel tells a person applying for employment under the Contract that he/she will only hire him/her if he/she has sex with him/her.

(2) Examples of sexual harassment in a work context

- Contractor's Personnel comment on the appearance of another Contractor's Personnel (either positive or negative) and sexual desirability.
- When a Contractor's Personnel complains about comments made by another Contractor's Personnel on his/her appearance, the other Contractor's Personnel comment that he/she is "asking for it" because of how he/she dresses.
- Unwelcome touching of a Contractor's or Employer's Personnel by another Contractor's Personnel.
- A Contractor's Personnel tells another Contractor's Personnel that he/she will get him/her a salary raise, or promotion if he/she sends him/her naked photographs of himself/herself.

Others

Sub-Contracting- Not Applicable

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Item	Element of work (Activity/Sub- Activity)	% of bid price	Name and address of sub-contractor	Qualification and experience of sub- contractor on similar works of the elements executed

The Bidder shall enter in this schedule a list of the major sections and appropriate value of the work for which he proposed to use subcontractors [for those costing more than 10% of the bid price for each element], together with the names, addresses and experiences of the proposed subcontractors.

The capability of the sub-contractor will also be assessed (on the same lines as for the main Contractor) before according approval to him.

(Work should not be split into small parts and sub-contracted; but sub-contracting specialized elements of works is acceptable).

Appendix to Technical Part Others

Bidder's Qualification

To establish its qualifications to perform the contract in accordance with Section III (Evaluation and Qualification Criteria) the Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding Information Sheets included hereunder

Appendix to Technical Part Form ELI -1.1: Bidder Information Form

	Date:
	RFB No. and title:
	Pageofpages
Bide	der's legal name
In c	ase of Joint Venture (JV), legal name of each member:
Bide	der's actual or intended country of registration:
[inc	licate country of Constitution]
Bide	der's actual or intended year of incorporation:
Bide	der's legal address [in country of registration]:
	der's authorized representative information
Nan	ne:
Add	lress:
Tele	ephone/Fax numbers:
E-m	ail address:
1. A	ttached are copies of original documents of
	Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.
	Authorization to represent the firm or JV named in above, in accordance with ITB 20.
	In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.
	In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.6 documents establishing:
•	Legal and financial autonomy
•	Operation under commercial law
•	Establishing that the Bidder is not under the supervision of the Employer
	ncluded are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

Appendix to Technical Part Form ELI -1.2: Information Form for JV Bidders

(Where permitted as per BDS ITB 4.1) (to be completed for each member of Joint Venture)

Date:	_
RFB No. and title:	

	Page of pages
	JV Information
Bide	der's Joint Venture legal name:
JV	member's legal name:
JV	member's country of registration:
JV	member's year of constitution:
JV	member's legal address in country of constitution:
JV	member's authorized representative information
Nan	ne:
Add	lress:
Tele	ephone/Fax numbers:
E-m	ail address:
1. A	ttached are copies of original documents of
	Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.
	Authorization to represent the firm or JV named in above, in accordance with ITB 20.
	In case of a state-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and is not under the supervision of the Employer, in accordance with ITB 4.6.

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

Form ELI -1.2 A

Specialized Subcontractor's Information Form (to be completed for each Specialized Subcontractor)

			Date:	
		RFB N		
		Page	No. and title: of	pages
Bide	der's legal name:			
Spe	cialized Subcontractor's legal name:			
Spe	cialized Subcontractor's country of registr	ration:		
Spe	cialized Subcontractor's year of constituti	on:		
Spe	cialized Subcontractor's legal address in co	ountry of constitution:		
-	cialized Subcontractor's authorized represe			
	ne:			
Add	lress:			
Tele	ephone/Fax numbers:			
	ail address:			
	ached are copies of original documents of			
	Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of the legal entity named above			nd/or registration
	Authorization to represent the Specializ	zed Subcontractor.		

DETAILS OF PARTICIPATION IN THE JOINT VENTURE

PARTICIPATION DETAILS	FIRM 'A' (Lead Member)	FIRM 'B'	FIRM 'C'
Financial			
Name of the Banker(s)			
Planning			
Equipment			
Key Personnel			
Execution of Work (Give details on proposed contribution of each)			

The Joint Venture should indicate the details of participation as above.

Form CON – 2: Historical Contract Non-Performance, Pending Litigation and Litigation History

[to be completed for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]

Bidde	r's Name: _	
Da	ite:	
Joint Venture Member's Name_		
RFB No. and title:		
Page	of	pages

Non-Performed Contracts in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

- □ Contract non-performance did not occur since 1st January *[insert year]* specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-Factor 2.1.
- □ Contract(s) not performed since 1st January *[insert year]* specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, requirement 2.1

Yea	r	Non- performed portion of contract	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (Rs.)	
[insei year]		[insert amount and percentage]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification]	[insert amount]	
			Name of Employer: [insert full name]		
			Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]		
			Reason(s) for non-performance: [indicate main reason(s)]		
	Per	nding Litigation, in	n accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualifica	tion Criteria	
	No pending litigation in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-Factor 2.3.				
		ling litigation in a or 2.3 as indicate	ccordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification and below.	n Criteria, Sub-	

Year of dispute	Amount in dispute (Rs.)	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (Rs.)	
[insert year]	[insert amount]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name, number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country] Matter in dispute: [indicate main issues in dispute] Party who initiated the dispute: [indicate "Employer" or "Contractor"] Status of dispute: [Indicate if it is being treated by the Adjudicator, under Arbitration or being dealt	[insert amount]	
		with by the Judiciary]		
[insert year]	[insert amount]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name, number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country] Matter in dispute: [indicate main issues in dispute] Party who initiated the dispute: [indicate "Employer" or "Contractor"]	[insert amount]	
		Status of dispute: [Indicate if it is being treated by the Adjudicator, under Arbitration or being dealt with by the Judiciary]		
□ No Lit Criteria, Sub-I □ Litigat	igation History in ac Factor 2.4.	with Section III, Evaluation and Qualificordance with Section III, Evaluation and Augustion and Augustion with Section III, Evaluation and Quad below.	l Qualification	

Year of award	Outcome as percentage of Net Worth	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (Rs.)
[insert year]	[insert percentage]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name, number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country] Matter in dispute: [indicate main issues in dispute] Party who initiated the dispute: [indicate "Employer" or "Contractor"] Reason(s) for Litigation and award decision [indicate main reason(s)]	[insert amount]

Form CON – 3: Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Declaration

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder, each member of a Joint Venture and each Specialized Subcontractor]

Bidder's Name:	[insert full name]
Date:	[insert day, month, year]
Joint Venture Member's or Specialized Subcontractor's Name:	[insert full name]
RFB No. and title:[i	insert RFB number and title]
Page[insert page number] of	[insert page number] pages

	Environmental and Social Performance Declaration in accordance with Section III, Qualification Criteria, and Requirements								
	□ No suspension or termination of contract: An employer has not suspended or terminated a contract and/or called the performance security for a contract for reasons related to Environmental or Social (ES) performance since the date specified in Section III, Qualification Criteria, and Requirements, Sub-Factor 2.5.								
1	Declaration of suspension or termination of contract: The following contract(s) has/have been suspended or terminated and/or Performance Security called by an employer(s) for reasons related to Environmental or Social (ES) performance since the date specified in Section III, Qualification Criteria, and Requirements, Sub-Factor 2.5. Details are described below:								
Year	Suspended or terminated portion of contract	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (Rs.)						
[insert year]	[insert amount and percentage]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country] Reason(s) for suspension or termination: [indicate main reason(s) e.g. for gender-based violence; sexual exploitation or sexual abuse breaches]	[insert amount]						
[insert year]	[insert amount and percentage]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification] Name of Employer: [insert full name] Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]	[insert amount]						

	Reason(s) for suspension or termination: [indicate main reason(s)]	
	[list all applicable contracts]	

Performance Security called by an employer(s) for reasons related to ES performance

Year	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (Rs.)
[insert year]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification]	[insert amount]
	Name of Employer: [insert full name]	
	Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]	
	Reason(s) for calling of performance security: [indicate main reason(s) e.g. for gender-based violence; sexual exploitation or sexual abuse breaches]	

Form CCC: Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress

Bidders and each member of a JV should provide information on their current commitments on all contracts that have been awarded, or for which a letter of intent or acceptance has been received, or for contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to be issued.

(A) Existing commitments and on-going works:

Description of Work	Place & State	Contract No. & Date	Name and Address of Employer	Value of Contract (Rs. equivalent in million)	Stipulated period of completion	Value of works ¹ remaining to be completed (Rs. equivalent in million)	Anticipated date of completion	Average Monthly Invoicing Over Last Six Months (Rs./month) Equivalent in millions)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)

(B) Works for which bids already submitted and likely to be awarded – expected additional commitment.

¹ *Attach certificate(s) from the Engineer(s)-in-Charge.*

Description of Work	Place & State	Name and Address of Employer	Estimated value of Works (Rs. equivalent in million)	Stipulated period of completion	Date when decision is expected	Remarks, if any
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)

Form FIN – 3.1: Financial Situation and Performance

[To be completed by the Bidder and by each member of a Joint Venture]

Bidder's	Legal Name:	
	Date:	
Joint Venture Member's Legal Nat	me	
RFB No. and title:		
Page	of	pages

1. Financial data

Type of Financial information in	Histor	ric informati	on for previou	18	_years,
(R s.)		.)			
	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Statement of Financial Position	(Information	n from Balan	ce Sheet)		
Total Assets (TA)					
Total Liabilities (TL)					
Total Equity/Net Worth (NW)					
Current Assets (CA)					
Current Liabilities (CL)					
Working Capital (WC)					
	Information	from Income	e Statement		
Total Revenue (TR)					
Profits Before Taxes (PBT)					
		Cash Flow I	nformation		

Cash Flow from Operating Activities					
This information should be extra which should be enclosed. Yea are available. Year 2 shall be the year immediately preceding Yea	ur 1 will be th ne year imme	ne latest year	for which au	dited financia	al statements

2. Sources of Finance

Specify sources of finance to meet the cash flow requirements on works currently in progress and for future contract commitments.

No.	Source of finance	Amount (Rs.)
1		
2		
3		

3. Financial documents

The Bidder and its parties shall provide copies of financial statements for $\underline{Five}(5)$ years pursuant Section III, Evaluation and Qualifications Criteria, Sub-factor 3.2. The financial statements shall:

- (a) reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or in case of JV member, and not an affiliated entity (such as parent company or group member).
- (b) be independently audited or certified in accordance with local legislation. In case of Indian bidders, the financial statements shall be audited by a certified chartered accountant.
- (c) be complete, including all notes to the financial statements.
- (d) correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited.
- □ Attached are copies of financial statements¹ (balance sheets, including all related notes, and income statements) for the _____years required above; and complying with the requirements

¹ If the most recent set of financial statements is for a period earlier than 12 months from the date of bid, the reason for this should be justified.

Form FIN - 3.2: Average Annual Turnover

[To be completed by the Bidder and by each member of a Joint Venture]

Bidder's]	Legal Name:	
	Date:	
Joint Venture Member's Legal Nam	ne	
RFB No. and title:		
Page	of	pages

Annual turnover data				
Year	Amount in Rs.			
[indicate year]	[insert amount]			
Average Annual Turnover *				

* See Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-Factor 3.2. Annual turnover calculated as total certified payments received for work in progress or completed, for 5 years. This should be certified by a Chartered Accountant.

Appendix to Technical Part JOINT VENTURE

Names of	all mem	bers of	a joint	venture
----------	---------	---------	---------	---------

- 1. Member in charge
- 2. Member
- 3. Member

Total value of annual turnover, in terms of work billed to clients, in Rupees

	Annual Turnover Data (in Rs. *)						
Member	Form 3.2 page no.	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Average
1. Member in charge							
2. Member							
3. Member							
TOTALS							

* To be certified by a chartered accountant

Name and address of Bankers to the Joint Venture

Provide details regarding financial responsibility and participation (percentage share in the total) of each firm in the Joint Venture. Attach a Memorandum of Understanding for the Proposed Agreement of joint Venture which should lay down responsibility regarding work and financial arrangements in respect of each of the firm in the Joint Venture (Refer also ITB Clause 4.1).

Appendix to Technical Part

Form FIN - 3.3: Financial Resources

Specify proposed sources of financing, such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, net of current commitments, available to meet the total Work execution cash flow demands of the subject contract or contracts as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Source of financing	Amount (Rs.)
1.	
-	
2.	
3.	
5.	
4.	

FORMAT FOR EVIDENCE OF ACCESS TO OR AVAILABILITY OF CASH FLOW [To be given from a Nationalized or Scheduled Bank in India]

Clause 3.1(ii) of Section III – Qualification Criteria

(1) AVAILABILITY OF CASH FLOW (WORKING CAPITAL)

This is to certify that M/s. ______ is a reputed company with a good financial standing.

-- Sd. --

Name of Bank Manager

Senior Bank Manager

Address of the Bank

* Change the text as follows for Joint venture:

This is to certify that M/s. who has formed a JV with M/s. for participating in this bid, is a reputed company with a good financial standing.

If the contract for the work, namely [funded by the World Bank] is awarded to the above Joint Venture, we shall be able to provide overdraft/credit facilities to the extent of Rs. to meet the working capital requirements for executing the above contract.

[This should be given by the JV members in proportion to their financial participation.]

Form EXP - 4.1(a) Not Applicable

Form EXP - 4.1(b) Specific Design Experience

[The following table shall be filled in for contracts performed by the Bidder, each member of a Joint Venture, and Specialized Sub-contractors]

Bidder's Name: [insert full name] Date: [insert day, month, year] Joint Venture Member Name: [insert full name] RFB No. and title: [insert RFB number and title] Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Similar Contract No. [insert number] of [insert number of similar contracts required]	Information			
Contract Identification	[insert contract name and number, if applicable]			
Award date	[insert day, m	onth, year]		
Completion date	[insert day, m	onth, year]	1	
Role in Contract [check the appropriate boxes]	Prime Contractor	Member in JV∕ Consortium □	Sub-Contractor	Other
Total Contract Amount (In INR)	total contract amount in INR E equivalent, if contract-		US\$ [insert Exchange rate and total contract amount in US\$ equivalent] *	
If member in a JV or sub- contractor, specify share in value in total Contract amount and roles and responsibilities		entage amount]		
	[insert roles and responsibilities]			
Description of the similarity in accordance with Section III Table 1,				

4.1(b) including brief scope of work	
in the contract	
Physical size of required contracts	
items	
Total Legacy Waste Quantity as per	
contract (M3/MT)	
Per day Legacy Waste Processing	
Capacity (M^3/Day)	
Description of design and detailed	
engineering work undertaken-	(e.g. Survey, quantity assessment, detailed design and
	engineering documentation/ report, work plan,
	implementation schedule etc.)
Methods/Technology	[insert specific aspects of the methods/technology
	involved in the contract]
Other Characteristics	[insert other characteristics as described in Section VII,
	Scope of Employer's Requirements]
Employer's Name:	[insert full name]
Address:	[indicate street / number / town or city / country]
Telephone/fax number	[insert telephone/fax numbers, including country and
E-mail:	city area codes]
	[insert e-mail address, if available]

* Refer ITB for date and source of exchange rate.

Form EXP - 4.2: Not Applicable

Appendix to Technical Part Form EXP - 4.3(a): Specific Work and Contract Management Experience

[The following table shall be filled in for contracts performed by the Bidder, each member of a Joint Venture, and specialist sub-contractors]

Bidder's	Legal Name:	
	Date:	
Joint Venture Member's Legal Nan	ne	
RFB No. and title:		
Page	of	pages

Work performed as prime Contractor or JV Member or Sub-Contractor or Management Contractor (in the same name and style) on construction works of a similar nature and volume over the last five years¹. [*Attach certificate from the Engineer-in-charge*.]

Similar Contract No.	Information			
Contract Identification				
Award date				
Completion date		1		
Role in Contract	Prime Contractor □	Member in JV	Management Contractor	Sub- contractor
Total Contract Amount	Rs.			
If member in a JV or consortium, specify participation (%) in total Contract amount				
Employer's Name:				
Address:				
Telephone/fax number				

E-mail:	

Appendix to Technical Part Form EXP - 4.3(a) (cont.) Specific Work and Contract Management Experience (cont.)

Similar Contract No.	Information
Description of the similarity in accordance with Sub-Factor 4.3(a) of Section III:	
brief Scope of work of the Contractor in the Project, in accordance with sub-factor 4.3 (a)	
Value of Completed Work (In INR)	
2. Physical size of required works items-Quantity of Legacy Waste as per contract)	
Project Award Date	
Quantity of Legacy Waste Processed till due date of Bid submission	
3. Complexity	
4. Methods/Technology	
5. Processing rate per day for biomining of Legacy Waste	
6. Other Characteristics	

Form EXP - 4.3(b): Work Experience in Key Activities

Bidder's Legal Name:
Date:
Joint Venture Member's Legal Name
Subcontractor's Legal Name ² (as per ITB 33.2 and 33.3):

RFB No. and title: _______ Page _______of _____pages

Subcontractor's Name (as per ITB 33.2 and 33.3): ______ All subcontractors for key activities must complete the information in this form as per ITB 33.2 and 33.3 and Section III, Qualification Criteria and Requirements, Sub-Factor 4.3.

1. Key Activity No One: _____

	Information			
Contract Identification				
Award date				
Completion date				
Role in Contract	Prime Contractor	Member in JV	Management Contractor	Sub- contractor
Total Contract Amount	Rs.			
Total Legacy Waste Quantity to be processed through biomining and bioremediation (M3)				
Per day Legacy Waste Processing capacity through biomining and bioremediation (M3/day)				
Legacy Waste Processed through biomining and bioremediation	Year (Last 5 years from bid submission due date) bid submission due date) processed/ Annum Year 1			
	Year 2 Year 3			

² If applicable.

	37 4	
	Year 4	
	Year 5	
	Average Legacy Waste	
	Processed per Annum	
	Per day Processing	
	capacity (Av. Legacy	
	Waste processed per	
	annum/ 365)	
Disposed of Refused Derived Evel (RDE)	Year (Last 5 years from	RDF disposed per annum
Disposal of Refused Derived Fuel (RDF) recovered from the Project	bid submission due date)	
recovered from the Project	Year 1	
	Year 2	
	Year 3	
	Year 4	
	Year 5	
	Average RDF disposed	
	per Annum	

	Information
Employer's Name ³ :	
Address:	
Telephone/fax number	
E-mail:	

³ Attach certificate from the Client issued by an officer not less that Executive Engineer in rank

Form EXP - 4.3(c)

Specific Experience in Managing ES aspects

[The following table shall be filled in for contracts performed by the Bidder, and each member of a Joint Venture]

	Bidder's Name:					
	Date:					
Bidder's JV Member Name:						
	Page	of		pages		
1. Key Requirement no 1 in accord	lance with 4.3 (c):				
Contract Identification						
Award date						
Completion date						
Role in Contract	Prime Contractor	Member in JV □	Management Contractor	Subcontractor		
Total Contract Amount			Rs.			
Details of relevant experience						
2. Key Requirement no 2 in accord	lance with 4.3 (c):		_		
3. Key Requirement no 3 in accord):		_		
4						

. . .

5.

Form.....

(Name of the Project)

(Declaration regarding tax/duty exemption for materials/ equipment bought for the work)

(Bidder's Name and Address)

To: (Name of the Employer& address)

Dear Sir:

Re: [*Name of Work*] Certificate for Import/Procurement of Goods/ Equipment Government Order/Circular Number under which tax/duty Exemption is being sought: ...

- 1. We confirm that we are solely responsible for obtaining tax/duty waivers which we have considered in our bid and in case of failure to receive such waivers for reasons whatsoever, the employer will not compensate us.
- 2. We are furnishing below the information required by the Employer for issue of the necessary certificates in terms of the Government of India's relevant Notifications.
- 3. The goods/ equipment for which certificates are required are as under:

Items (modify the list suitably for each specific work)*	Make/ Brand Name	Capacity [where applicable]	Quantity	Value	State whether it will be procured locally or imported [<i>if so</i> <i>from which</i> <i>country</i>]	regarding justification for the quantity and their usage
Goods (if app	licable)					
Equipment				<u> </u>		

4. We agree that no modification to the above list is permitted after bids are opened.

- 5. We agree that the certificate will be issued only to the extent considered reasonable by the Employer for the work, based on the Schedule of Activities and the Work program and methodology as furnished by us along with the bid.
- 6. We confirm that the above goods and equipment will be exclusively used for the execution of the above work and the equipment will not be sold or otherwise disposed of in any manner for a period of five years from the date of acquisition.

Date:	(Signature)
Place:	(Printed Name)
	(Designation)
	(Common Seal)

[This certificate will be issued within 60 days of signing of contract and no subsequent changes will be permitted.]

* Modify the above to suit the requirements given in Government of India's Notifications as current of date of bidding.

Appendix to Technical Part: Bid Security

Form of Bid Security - Bank Guarantee

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Bank Guarantee No..... [insert guarantee reference number] Date...... [insert date of issue of the guarantee]

WHEREAS, _____ [name of Bidder]⁴ (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has submitted his Bid dated ______ [date] or will submit his Bid for the construction of ______ [name of Contract] (hereinafter called "the Bid") under Request for Bids No......[insert number] (hereinafter called "the RFB")

KNOW ALL PEOPLE by these presents that We _____ [name of bank] of ______ [name of country] having our registered office at ______ (hereinafter called "the Bank") are bound unto ______ [name of Employer] (hereinafter called "the Employer") in the sum of ______ ⁵for which payment well and truly to be made to the said Employer the Bank binds itself, his successors and assigns by these presents.

SEALED with the Common Seal of the said Bank this _____ day of _____ 20____.

THE CONDITIONS of this obligation are:

(1) If after Bid opening the Applicant (a) withdraws his bid during the period of Bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Applicant ("the Bid Validity Period"); or (b) does not accept the correction of the Bid Price pursuant to ITB 36;

Or

(2) If the Applicant having been notified of the acceptance of his bid by the Employer during the period of Bid validity:

(a) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Agreement in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, if required; or

⁴ Insert name of the Bidder, which in the case of a joint venture shall be (a) the name of the joint venture that submits the bid if the JV has been constituted into a legally enforceable JV, or (b) the names of all future members of the JV as named in the letter of intent to execute the JV Agreement submitted by the bidder along with its bid.

⁵ The Applicant should insert the amount of the guarantee in words and figures denominated in Indian Rupees. This figure should be the same as shown in Clause 19.1 of the Instructions to Bidders.

(b) fails or refuses to furnish the Performance Security and if required, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security, in accordance with the Instruction to Bidders.

we undertake to pay to the Employer up to the above amount upon receipt of his first written demand, without the Employer having to substantiate his demand, provided that in his demand the Employer will note that the amount claimed by him is due to him owing to the occurrence of one or any of the four conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions.

This Guarantee will remain in force up to and including the date _______6days after the deadline for submission of Bids as such deadline is stated in the Instructions to Bidders or as it may be extended by the Employer, notice of which extension(s) to the Bank is hereby waived. Any demand in respect of this guarantee should reach the Bank not later than the above date.

DATE	SIGNATURE OF THE BANK
WITNESS	SEAL

[signature, name, and address]

Note: All *italicized text* (*including footnotes*) *is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.*

⁶ 45 days after the end of the validity period of the Bid.

Letter of Bid - Financial Part

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE DOCUMENT

The Bidder must prepare this Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and business address.

Note: All italicized text is to help Bidders in preparing this form.

Date of this Bid submission: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] **Request for Bid No**.: [insert identification] **Alternative No.**⁷: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Employer]

We, the undersigned, hereby submit the second part of our Bid, the Bid Price and Schedule of Price Activities and Sub-Activities. This accompanies the Letter of Bid - Technical Part.

In submitting our Bid, we make the following additional declarations:

- (a) **Bid Validity Period**: Our Bid shall be valid for a period specified in BDS 18.1 (or as amended if applicable) from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline specified in BDS 22.1 (or as amended if applicable), and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (b) **Bid Price**: The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (c) below is: [*Insert one of the options below as appropriate*]

Total price is: [*insert the total price of the Bid in Rs. in words and figures*]; As **quoted in Online Financial Bid**

- (c) **Discounts:** The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:
 - (i) The discounts offered are: [Specify in detail each discount offered]

⁷ Delete if not applicable

- (ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts];
- (d) **Commissions,** gratuities **and fees:** We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract: [*insert* complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity].

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

Name of the Bidder: *[insert complete name of person signing the Bid]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder: ** [*insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid*]

Title of the person signing the Bid: [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]

Date signed [insert date of signing] **day of** [insert month], [insert year]

^{*:} In the case of the Bid submitted by a Joint Venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder.

^{**:} Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder. The power of attorney shall be attached with the Bid Schedules

Appendix to Financial Part: Schedules Sub-contracting- NOT APPLICABLE

Appendix to Financial Part:

Schedule of Priced Activities and Sub-activities

The total of the prices of the activities in the Schedule of Priced Activities is the Bidder's offer to complete the works on a "single responsibility" basis.

The price of any activity or sub-activity that the Bidder may have omitted is deemed to be included in the price of other activities or sub-activities in the Schedule of Priced Activities and Sub-activities and will not be paid for separately by the Employer.

Schedule of Priced Activities Table

[To be completed by the Bidder (more tables to be used by the Bidder as appropriate)]

Acti vity No.	Description of Activity	Unit	Quantity	Unit Activity Rate (In INR)	Total Activity Price (In INR)
1.	Design and detailed engineering* along with design and detailed engineering report submission for 08 Legacy Waste dumspites as per provision of the RFB	LS	01		
2	Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost at existing Dumpsites	Cubic Metres (M ³)	2,92,002		
3.	Disposal/ Removal of RDF Fraction from the dumpsite location and providing the same for co- processing along with documentary evidence (Loading slip, Unloading slip, E-way bill, Acknowledgement Letter from processor and photographic evidence	МТ	58,400		
4.	Disposal/ Removal of Inert Fraction from/within the dumpsite location along with documentary (Loading slip, Unloading slip, Acknowledgement Letter from processor/ end user) and photographic evidence				
a	Disposal of Inert fraction including Stacking, spreading, backfilling and profiling within the dumpsite as per the provision of the RFB (in-situ disposal of Inert fraction)# (Compacted density considered as 1.6 MT/M3)	M ³	32,560		
b	Disposal/ removal of the Inert fraction at an outside location of	MT	1,22,641		

the dumpsi the inert fra	te (off-site disposal of action)		
-	of Activities carried Grand Summary, Page		

Note:

- 1. The Quantities mentioned here are indicative and the total activity price calculated in table above is only for bid evaluation purpose, the payment shall be made based on unit Activity rate finalised in contract agreement.
- 2. *The Quote for the Activity Design and detailed engineering S.No. '1' above should not exceed by 5% of the sum total of activities in S.No. '2'
- 3. Price is to be quoted by the bidder in online BoQ format only. The above table is provided here for reference of the bidder and no price to be quoted herein above table.
- 4. The rates quoted by the Contractor shall be deemed to be inclusive of all taxes and levies that the Contractor will have to pay for the performance of this Contract except GST. The GST, if applicable, shall be payable extra to the contractor by the employer.
- 5. *#The quantities mentioned in Sl. No. 4a and 4b are indicative. The actual quantity of in-situ backfilling required in each site and the quantity to be transported outside would be known only after completion of biomining activity.*

Activity: _____

Grand Summary

General Summary	Page	Amount
Subtotal of Activities	(A)	
ח <i>ו</i> ית.		
Bid Price		

Schedule of Payments

1. Terms of Payment

Payment disbursement/milestones for delivering each part of the scope of work will be as per following mechanism:

Sr. No.	Description of Activity	Unit	Quantity (W)	Unit Activity Rate (In INR) (R)	Total Activity Price (In INR)
1.	Payment for Detailed Design and Engineering- (On submission and approval of Detailed Design & Engineering, Work Plan, and Implementation Schedule)	LS	1		
2	Biomining and Processing of legacy waste by excavation and screening of legacy waste	Cubic Metres (M ³)			
3.	Disposal of RDF fraction from the screened legacy waste for co-processing purpose	MT			
4.	Disposal/ Removal of Inert from the screening legacy waste for end use				
а	In-situ disposal of Inert fraction (after compaction)	(M ³)			
b	Ex-situ disposal of Inert fraction	MT			
	Total Payment				∑WxR

Payment for the work shall be calculated by the employer based on the following formula:

Payment calculation for Work (P) = $\sum WxR$

The Bidder shall submit to the Client a statement ("the Running Bill") on completion of every month, but in no case late than 7th (Seventh) day of the succeeding month or in case the 7th (Seventh) day is a holiday then on the following working day of such month. The statement should include the following details:

- (i) Quantity of Work Completed (in terms of material sent out from the dumpsite/ stacked in segregated manner at designated location for use within the site as approved by the employer) at site including photographic evidence of the same.
- (ii) Certificate from the Engineer-in-Charge certifying the work done as per the work plan
- (iii) The documents furnishing the proof of disposal/ utilization (with date, quantity, other details) at the suitable location for the end product (inert, combustible, others if any). Utilization certificate of disposed material must be furnished. Please refer to the Terms of References/ Scope of Work
- (iv) All disposal vehicles must be GPS enabled. A report on Vehicle operation to be submitted along with the invoice.

#The Contractor shall also submit report providing details of the total quantum of the waste at the beginning, waste removed from the site and the remaining volume of the waste after completion of each milestone as mentioned in below.

The payments shall be released on milestone basis, subject to the compliances of all the clauses mentioned above and in the scope of work, as per following schedule:

- 1. An amount of **50%*** of Certified payment shall be paid within 30 days of the bill submission by the Contractor/agency.
- 2. An amount of 45% of certified payment shall be paid within 30 days of submission of documentary proof/ evidence, as per clause (i) to (iv) mentioned above. The payment @45% for the last month's bill shall be held back and shall be released after completion of milestone '8' i.e after removal of any residue material at project sites and profiling of project sites as per recommendation of the employer.
- 3. The Client/ ULB shall retain 5 % of each invoice amount of the selected bidder, which shall be released within the duration as mentioned in the GCC/PCC
- 4. All the payments shall be made after deduction of penalties/fine (if any).

Provision for Variation in Quantity:

If there is a variation in Total indicative Quantity of Legacy waste from the quantity of Legacy Waste approved in the Work Plan the following provision shall be adopted:

A. <u>If the Actual Quantity is more than 20% of the Indicative Total quantity of the Legacy Waste in 08 dumpsites</u>

The employer shall revise lower rate in case of variation beyond (+) 20% of the indicative total quantity of legacy waste in 08 dumpsites. The rate will be decreased by 5% for every 10% increase in the quantity beyond the (+) 20% variation. The rate will freeze at maximum of 20% decrease from the quoted price. The variation in the rate shall be applicable only on the variation quantity. The variation shall be

calculated only on the cumulative variation of the quantity in 08 Dumpsites and not on individual quantity variation in respective dumpsites within the ULB. Also, the variation in price shall only effect on finalized unit rate 'Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost etc. at existing Dumpsites (i.e. Legacy Waste Processing only through Biomining and bioremediation) in 08 dumpsites in ULBs of Kerala. The rate for other activities shall be firm as finalized irrespective of the quantity variation

B. <u>If the Actual Quantity is less than 80% of the Indicative Total quantity of the Legacy waste in 08 dumpsites</u>

The employer shall revise higher rate in case of variation beyond less than 80% of the indicative total quantity of Legacy Waste in 08 dumpsites. The rate will be increased by 5% for every 10% decrease in the quantity beyond the (-) 20% variation. The rate will freeze at maximum of 20% increase from the quoted price. The variation in the rate shall be applicable only on the variation quantity. The variation shall be calculated only on the cumulative variation of the quantity in the 08 Dumpsites and not on individual quantity variation in respective dumpsites within the ULB. Also, the variation in price shall only effect on finalized unit rate for 'Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost etc. at existing Dumpsites (i.e. Legacy Waste Processing only through Biomining and bioremediation) in 08 dumpsites in ULBs of Kerala. The rate for other activities shall be firm as finalized irrespective of the quantity variation

Schedule of Performance Guarantees and Performance Damages

No.	Penalty Description	Penalty Amount
1.	Non-Compliance to, SWM Rules 2016	Rs. 10,000/- per Incidence till the
	and other Environmental Standards	compliance of the failure in
	notified by regulatory authorities or as	addition to the Penalties/ Actions
	specified in the Contract.	imposed by various authorities.
2.	Non-compliance of Safety Standards,	Rs.15,000/- per incidence, till the
	use of Personal Protective Equipment,	compliance of the failure is
	fire safety, slope stability while forming	achieved
	windrows (if any during pre-stabilization	
	process) by the workers.	

3.	Non-compliance against disposal	Rs.10,000/- per incidence , till the
	mechanism as prescribed in the scope of	compliance of the failure is
	work (for inert, combustible/RDF or any	achieved.
	other end product).	
4.	Non-provision of Site Facilities as per	Rs.10,000 per item , till the
	the work plan, submitted by the Bidder at	compliance of the failure is
	the start of work and duly approved by	achieved
	the Client	
6.	Tampering of records or submission of	5% of the value of bills certified for
	manipulated records or any malpractice	three (03) preceding months from
	which will affect quantity & quality of	the
	work done.	month of incidence noticed.
7	Failure to Submit Progress Report on	Rs. 1,000/- per incidence
	time	
8	Runoff of leachate from the site	Rs. 2,000/- per incidence
	throughout the project period	
9	Failure to comply to the ESMP as per site	For delay towards the
	specific EIA	Implementation of ESMP the
	•	Penalty shall be imposed based on
		severity
10	Non deployment of phase wise (Design	Rs 1,000 per resource per day
	Engineering Phase and work Execution	
	Phase) min. resources as provided in the	
	RFB (including additional resources as	
	approved in Work Plan)	
11	Non-Compliance during Monsoon	Rs. 5,000/- per incidence till
	period (during rains beyond monsoon	compliance is achieved
	period also)	-
	The contractor shall ensure	
	All recovered materials shall either be	
	stored under a temporary shed or stored	
	at an elevated platform or similar	
	arrangement to prevent washing by rain /	
	rising waters, covered with 200 gsm	
	silpaulin material and tied with ropes at	
	proper interval with weights so as to	
	ensure the material remains dry and safe	
	with a cut off drain around.	
lote.		

1. The above penalty shall be in addition to statutory penalty levied by any authority and also include cost of remedial measure if any undertaken by the client.

2. The maximum amount of cumulative penalty amount at a given time of project should not exceed the sum of Performance Guarantee and accumulated retention security deposit. Also, the cumulative maximum amount of penalty for the whole of the Works is 10% of the accepted Contract Price beyond the contract may attract termination as per GCC clause 61

The liquidated damages for the whole of the Works are *as per Table below*. The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works is *10%* of the final Contract Price.

Milestone	Activity to be completed	Time Period for Completion from Signing of Agreement in number of Days	Liquidated Damage
01	To process and dispose of cumulative 15 % of Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity*	75	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
02	To process and dispose of cumulative 50 % Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	145	0.11% per day of the cost of unprocessed accepted contract amount
03	To process and dispose of cumulative 65 % of Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	175	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
04	To process and dispose of cumulative 80 % of Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	205	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
05	To process and dispose of cumulative 100 % Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	245	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount

Milestone	Activity to be completed	Time Period for Completion from Signing of Agreement in number of Days	Liquidated Damage
06	Dispose of any balance fraction, if any, as instructed by the employer and profiling the site to surrounding ground level with use of recovered fraction in	270	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount

Note:

- 1. The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works is 10% of the accepted Contract Price beyond the contract may attract termination as per GCC clause 61
- 2. The liquidated damages recovered against interim milestone shall be credited to the contractor if the final milestone is achieved within stipulated timeline
- 3. If the quantity of waste will be more than estimated quantity, then Bidder shall be responsible for processing complete legacy waste for which contract period may be extended on pro-rata basis. The Liquidated Damage for the additional quantity of legacy waste shall be applicable as per the rate stipulated in table above i.e. @0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount reckoned from the end date of the extended pro-rated timeline

Section V - Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Non-consulting Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.8, and 5.1, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this Bidding process:

Under ITB 4.8 (a) and 5.1 : *None* Under ITB 4.8 (b) and 5.1 : *None*

[Note: as and when some country/ countries become ineligible insert the list of such countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction]

Section VI - Fraud and Corruption

(Section VI shall not be modified)

1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

2. Requirements

- 2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders, (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.
- 2.2 To this end, the Bank:
 - a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - v. "obstructive practice" is:
 - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - (b) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.
 - b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-

contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;

- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring misprocurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;¹ (ii) to be a nominated2 sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect³ all accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

¹ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

² A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

³ Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

PART 2 – Employer's Requirements

Section VII - Employer's Requirements

Employer's Requirements

Environmental and Social Requirements

ESMF has been prepared by the Government of Kerala to guide E&S aspects of KSWMP in line with National / State Regulations, guidance's and WB Safeguard Policies. All subprojects of KSWMP shall follow the ESMF throughout the project period. Refer ESMF Document – KERALA SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT – (KSWMP)

The following is a non-exhaustive list of Sub-Clauses of the Conditions of Contract that refer to ES matters stated in the Specifications.

Sub-Clause/	Remarks	
Clause No.*		
1.3	Regulatory Gap Assessment – Environmental Regulations / Policies	
2.5.1	ESHS performance security	
3.3.1	Subproject Monitoring: Environmental Management	
	Table 11: Employer's Monitoring Schedule	
Section VI	I. Common Permits Required for Works as per Environmental	
	Legislation	
	O. Indicative EMP and Monitoring Plan for Remediation of Existing	
	Open Dumpsites	
Section VII	Environment Code of Practices (ECoP)	
ECoP 06	Guidance on Siting & Layout of Construction Camp	
ECoP 07	Guidance on Topsoil Management	
ECoP 08	Guidance on Traffic Control and Safety during Construction	
ECoP 11	Guidance on Biomining and Bioremediation	
ECoP 12	Guidance on COVID 19	
	b. Clauses for Inclusion in Civil works Contracts	
Section VIII	Physical Cultural Resources Management Framework	
Section IX	Guidance on Preparing Natural Habitat Management Plan	

*Clauses of Kerala Solid Waste Management Project (KSWMP) Environmental and Social Management Framework, generic and site specific EMP/SMP annexed with the RFB and forms part of this RFB

In addition to provisions in the above table, the Employer shall specify the following as applicable.

World Bank Operational Policy OP/BP 4.01

The project has potential impacts and pose risks to various environmental factors during the implementation phase. Consequently, this policy is triggered, necessitating assessment and management of E&S risks and impacts, and ensuring a structured approach to safeguard management for risk mitigation including (but not limited to) health & safety risks, risks and impacts due to linked activities in alignment with regulatory requirements, and Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF).

World Bank Operation Policy OP/BP 4.04

Under WB OP/BP 4.04 promotes and supports natural habitat conservation and improved land, the subprojects activities impacts and mitigation measures as applicable. Specific requirements for the management to followed (see ESMF EMF Guidance Manual: Section IX)

World Bank Operational Policy OP/BP 4.09

Considering the possible pest related issues as the project deals with wastes and improvements to dump sites, OP 4.09 Pest Management is triggered. As per this policy the banned pesticides/insecticides listed by the Nation / State and the World Health Organization (WHO) other international/national/state bodies should not be used in the project, and as much as possible Integrated Pest Management Options shall be followed. It shall be ensured that In assisting borrowers to manage pests that affect either agriculture or public health, the Bank supports a strategy that promotes the use of biological or environmental control methods and reduces reliance on synthetic chemical pesticides. In Bank-financed projects, the borrower addresses pest management issues in the context of the project's environmental assessment.

World Bank Operational Policy OP/BP 4.11

Under WB OP/BP 4.11, methodology adopted a precautionary approach to ensure that project do not affect important physical cultural resources (PCRs), the potential impact that the subprojects activities as applicable, specify requirements for the management to followed (see ESMF guidance manual Section VIII. Table A guidance on possible impact)

World Bank operational Policy OP 4.12

If the project will have any risks of a) land loss, b) loss of livelihoods of ragpickers and dry solid waste sellers, etc. c) landfill sites close to the tribal groups, d) exclusion of vulnerable including women planning process, livelihood opportunities and skill development. Hence based on the impact on land and livelihoods, the Operational Policy on Involuntary Resettlement (4.12) will be considered

Overview of labor use

- Number of labors to be onboarded
- Total number of migrant labors to be onboarded
- Category of labors

. The implementation of activities listed in the Labor Management Plan will be the responsibility of the contractor as per the labour compliance to be incorporated un the Bid document of the Biomining and Bioremediation process

Monitoring of labor compliance

The labor compliance will be monitored through the separate MIS tool to be deployed by SPMU, the data and necessary inputs will be provided by the contractor as per the timeline mentioned in the bid document. A separate login to be provided to all the contractors for each work and training will be provided to them to use the MIS tool for registration (they need to do the initial registration including uploading registration certificate, entry of labors with name,

sex, qualifications, category, etc.) and regular updating of attendance, wages details, labor compliance as mentioned in the labor management plan

GBV Issues

The contractor shall specify the plan of implementing the procedures mentioned in the GBV action plan including mechanism for Grievance management, Internal compliance committee.

Labour Influx Management

The plan to be developed to reduce potential impacts associated with influx on the host population and receiving environment are minimized; provide for safe and healthy working conditions, and a comfortable environment for migrant labour; and ensure compliance with the national labour laws

Community consultations

The contractor shall be responsible for conducting community engagement and consultation activities as per the site-specific citizen engagement plan provided by the employer

KSWMP has prepared an EIA and EMP in line with ESMF to guide the implementation of the subproject. EMP includes mitigation & management actions to be implemented to ensure environmental management. Each ESMP item and contingencies shall be considered while estimating the price.

The contractor shall carry out the specific activities to the sites as mentioned in the Social management plan provided by the employer (

KSWMP has prepared an EIA and EMP in line with ESMF to guide the implementation of the subproject. EMP includes mitigation & management actions to be implemented to ensure environmental management. Each ESMP item and contingencies shall be considered while estimating the price. The contractor shall preferably undertake visit to the sies to understand the Environmental safeguards requirements in line with ESMF and estimate realistic costs for mitigation, management, and monitoring including all aspects in the EMP/EMOP & SMP.

PAYMENT FOR ES REQUIREMENTS

The cost towards ES requirement shall be factored and included in the price quoted by the bidder.

Scope of the Works

2. Background

- 2.1 KSWMP has taken the initiative to start the biomining activity of 12 selected dumpsites as a first phase. Total estimated volume of accumulated waste is 2,70,614 cubic meters, ranging from 2,023 cubic meters (~1618 MT) to 55,928 cubic meters (~ 44,742 MT).
- 2.2 The 08 dumpsites selected for Biomining and Bioremediation are spread over five (5) districts of the State of Kerala as detailed belowThe details of the ULBs wise estimated Legacy Waste Quantity** are presented in the table below:

Sr. No	Name of ULB	Legacy Waste in Quantity (In M ³)	Legacy Waste Quantity (In MT)
1	Chalakuddy	10,576.00	8,460.80
2	Kunnamkulam	32,911.00	26,328.80
3	Malappuram	7,936.00	6,348.80
4	Manjeri	17,378.00	13,902.40
5	Palakkad	92,284.00	73,827.20
6	Wadakancherry	25,238.00	20,190.40
7	Mavelikara	4,500.00	3,600.00
8	Vadvathoor	1,01,179.00	80,943.20
	Total Quantity	2,92,002.00	2,33,601.60

*For the sake of estimation, the conversion factor from M^3 to MT at bid stage is taken as $1 M^3 = 0.8 MT$ ** The Legacy Waste Quantity in the dumpsites presented in table above are estimated and for reference only. Bidders to do their own due diligence of the quantity before bidding.

3. Scope of Work

The employer wants to engage agencies for Biomining, and Bioremediation of legacy waste located at the dumpsites in 08 ULBs as listed at 2.2 above and detailed in 'Site Information' by a competitive bid process. The employer/ respective ULBs shall handover the dumpsite on 'as-is-where-is' basis. The project primarily aims for land reclamation through resource recovery and scientific disposal of legacy waste from the existing dumpsite. The work in all the dumpsite is to be completed in a period of **270 days** reckoned from the date of signing of the agreement. The selected bidder needs to remove, process and scientifically manage legacy waste accumulated in the dumpsite, dispose the processed material in scientific manner in compliance to the State Pollution control board norms, CPCB guidelines

(LegacyWasteBiomining guidelines 29.04.2019.pdf (cpcb.nic.in)), SWM Rules 2016 (Microsoft Word - 1750gi (cpcb.nic.in)) and NGT/ other regulatory directions.

The area for the biomining shall be demarcated by Client.

3.1 Design-Engineering Phase

- i. In line with the CPCB 2019 Guidelines and other applicable Guidelines of Government of India (GoI) / Government of Kerala (GoK), the selected contractor shall access the project requirement, plan for deployment of resources for parallel work at dumpsites, plant and machinery of required capacity, per day processing capacity to bio-mine and bioremediate the legacy waste, suitable methods and processes to excavate the legacy waste and process it. The contractor shall provide after this exercise a list of deliverables and timelines based on the employer's requirement.
- ii. The client and the contractor shall conduct a joint survey after award of contract (topography and bore hole samples for finalizing the Legacy Waste quantity. The minimum required borehole samples are three (3) numbers per hectare or part thereof and additional at a rate of two (2) borehole samples per hectare.
- iii. The quantity of Legacy Waste dumped in the respective dumpsites within the ULBs shall be re-assessed based on the joint survey. If the aggregate quantity of re-assessed quantity of legacy waste within ULBs is more than 20% of the indicative legacy waste quantity mentioned in sub-clause 1.3 above the same shall be certified by an Agency, approved by the client. The cost towards such certification shall be borne by the employer.
- iv. The contractor, based on the survey report and site assessment, shall prepare a site-specific detailed design and Work plan for all the 08 dumpsites, and shall submit it to the employer for approval. The approved detailed design and work plan shall form part of the contract.
- v. The selected bidder shall also prepare and submit a detailed site-specific implementation schedule with clear timelines for entire project duration including each activity from mobilization till project completion for all the 08 Dumpsites. The implementation schedule should include plan for parallel works at dumpsites to achieve the milestone. The implementation schedule shall be submitted to the employer along with the work plan for approval.
- vi. The quantity of legacy waste as mentioned in the work plan and approved `by the employer shall be in the scope of work of the contractor and shall be remediated by the contractor as per the provision stipulated in the RFB and contract agreement.
- vii. The Work plan should include for disposal/ reuse of each recovered fractions after

biomining and bioremediation. The contractor shall include scheme and engineering design for utilizing Bio-earth and inert fractions (in line with CPCB 2019 guidelines), if proposed by the contractor, within the site for backfilling and profiling purpose.

- viii. **Preparation of Contractor-EMP (C-EMP):** The client has prepared EIA & EMP for the biomining works in line with ESMF for KSWMP, which partially covers the proposed activity, as the plan for storage, transport and disposal of retrieved wastes, location of labour camps and other details particular to work at each dumpsite will be known only once the successful bidder finalizes his work plan. Hence, the 'successful bidder" or the contractor shall update the EIA and EMP based on his final plan / work method and schedule to prepare site specific C-EMPs and get it cleared by the engineer before initiation of any activity on site; and implement the C-EMP during subproject implementation. All impacts related to health and safety of workers, pollution and biodiversity for the proposed activity and all linked activities shall be addressed in the C-EMP in line with the contractor's final work schedule and proposed plan /DPR for implementation including the impacts due to leachate, gas and all other types of pollution on environmental parameters, impacts on biodiversity, health and safety aspects of working on legacy waste and use/handling of hazardous and biomedical waste if any mined out, chemicals, pest/vector/fly management and use of pesticides; storage, transport and disposal/ reuse of various legacy waste fractions bio mined; bioremediation related health and safety and use of products such as bio cultures and others.
- ix. **Emergency Response Plan:** The Emergency Response Plan ("ERP") shall be developed by the contractor. This shall be developed in discussion with all concerned agencies, departments and in line with regulations and good practices and made a part of the Operations Protocol developed by contractor. The ERP shall set out steps to be taken and measures to be adopted by the contractor in responding to dealing with Emergency including those situations related to personal injuries or fatalities, property damage and force majeure.
- x. The contractor is required to submit a leachate, drainage management plan and fire management plan detailing to manage fire hazard and safety measures to be adopted to be submitted as part of Work Plan

3.2 Work execution Phase

- i. Prior to the start of work execution, the Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all the applicable statutory clearances, permission, licenses, consents, and authorizations necessary for the Project at their own cost. The Client shall provide the assistance, in terms of necessary endorsement letter/ certificates, information, wherever required.
- ii. The selected Bidder needs to deploy necessary manpower, materials, equipment, tools and construction of plants and sheds (if required) and creation of facilities for handling,

separating, segregating, storing facilities for the bioremediation and biomining operation and using vehicles (properly covered) for the transportation of materials taken out, not limited to:

- a. Installation of trommel or automated segregation machines of required sieve sizes with necessary shredder, density separator, screener, hopper, conveyors or any other required machinery with adequate capacity of motors and pulleys.
- b. Spraying the bio-culture over the loosened partially degraded legacy waste and windrow making of partially degraded wastes for stabilization.
- c. Shifting and loading of the legacy waste into the hopper and segregating the materials size wise and type wise by engaging the manpower on both sides of conveyors with proper safety precautions.
- d. Processing the legacy waste on everyday basis and segregate it in to Refused Derived Fuel (RDF), Bio-earth/ good earth material/ compost, recyclables and inert material conforming to the guidelines issued by the Central Pollution Control Board for management of legacy waste.
- e. The material collected shall be disposed of by engaging suitable covered vehicles as per guidelines on the subject.
- f. Create all facilities and make arrangements for controlling the emission, pollution and contamination of the environment including but not limited to control of dust, odour, air quality, water quality and noise pollution.
- g. Based on site requirement, setting up of provision for safe leachate collection, storage, reuse and recirculation and treatment at the site or disposal for treatment outside of site without affecting the existing natural drainage.
- h. Other wastes like Hazardous Waste, E-Waste; Bio-medical Waste (if any; present in the Legacy Waste) shall be managed by the contractor as per the guidelines in close coordination with Client, under the relevant rules & regulations as amended from time to time.
- i. Monitoring and recording all the activities to account for the quantity and quality of recovered materials.
- j. Ensure clean, safe and hygienic worker facilities and proper safety measures for the workers involved in the day-to-day operations for the execution of legacy waste biomining and bioremediation works.
- k. All the workers involved should be covered under ESIC, Health check-ups and other beneficiary schemes as applicable from time to time.
- 1. Adequate illumination at site.
- m. To identify and tie up with employer approved weighbridges for measurement for

quantum of out-going recovered fractions.

- iii. The contractor to deploy such process or technology during biomining, so that the quality of RDF and other products produced meets the standards acceptable to the industry/ organization.
- iv. The contractor should provide sufficient machineries / equipment to clear the dumpsite as per the timelines mentioned in this tender document and proposed by the contractor in its implementation schedule.
- v. All the activities for the legacy waste biomining shall be in complete adherence to the rules and regulation mentioned in SWM Rules 2016, CPCB Guidelines on Legacy Waste 2019, directions from Hon'ble NGT and Kerala State Pollution Control Board (KSPCB) and all other applicable rules and regulations.
- vi. The selected Contractor shall carry out Total Station Survey (TSS)/ Drone Based Survey of the complete project site. The survey shall be done monthly, and the survey report shall be shared with the Client and volume of reclaimed portion or waste reduction shall be clearly marked in the drawing shall be presented by the contractor along with his monthly invoices. However, the survey for final billing will be conducted by the Client jointly with the contractor. The same will be shared with the contractor.
- vii. Anything of historical, anthropological, geological or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly discovered on the site is the property of Client. The contractor is to notify the Client of such discoveries and carry out the Client's instructions (follow chance find procedures of concerned authority/department) for dealing with them.
- viii. The contractor shall allow any person authorized by the Client to access the Site, to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out and to any place where materials or plant are being manufactured / fabricated / assembled for the works.
- ix. In case the contractor is required to set up ancillary facilities at site like Fuel storage, DG set etc., the necessary permissions and pollution control measures required are to be obtained by the Selected Bidder at his cost.
- x. The contractor shall channelize the recovered/ segregated material from the legacy waste to the identified vendors/parties and disposal/ resue of inert/rejects as per CPCB Guidelines, without stacking them at site for more than 15 days (not exceeding 10 % of the fraction at any given point of time except Bio-earth and non-reactive inert material which may be stacked at site for site profiling purpose as approved by the employer). All such vendors/ agencies have to be authorized by the concerned State Pollution Control Board. The contractor shall submit proof of delivery on a fortnightly basis, ensuring traceability of such products (RDF, Compost/Bio-earth, recyclables and inert). The Client reserves the right to audit such agencies and confirm compliance. The selected Bidder

shall facilitate such inspections.

- xi. The Selected Bidder shall submit necessary supporting documents, in order to ensure the safe disposal of the processed material, to the Client along with every bill. This may include, but not limited to the following:
 - a. Undertaking that the processed and recovered material has been disposed off in accordance with all applicable guidelines and RFB conditions, mentioning the quantity along with place / site of disposal/ reuse.
- xii. An acknowledgment/ certificate from the organization/ industry/ government agency regarding the receipt of the same quantity of recovered fraction material as mentioned at 'a' above along with supporting documents such as Loading slip, Unloading slip, E-way bill, Acknowledgement Letter from the respective entity, GPS report and photographic evidences.
- xiii. The selected Bidder shall be solely responsible for genuineness/ authenticity of documents submitted. Anything found contrary latter on will invite strict action/ penalty as per agreement/ law.
- xiv. The inert shall be, if so proposed by the contractor and approved by the employer, used for back filling if it is free of contaminants or any other appropriate use which is in line with relevant guidelines. In case, the inert are to be used as filling within the project site, then the contractor shall clearly earmark such an area, fence and regulate the entry and exit of men and material. It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure materials (excluding the non-reactive inert fraction that is proposed to be used within the site and with the prior approval of the employer on the same) after scientific processing is not dumped at the site and cleared within 30 days of segregation. The Selected Bidder shall have to make necessary arrangement like fencing, or any other suitable arrangement as directed by Client authorities.
- xv. Packing, storing, stacking, selling, diverting for recycling, marketing and recycling of all useful material within 15 days of segregation, at own cost, shall be the responsibility of the contractor.
- xvi. The contractor is required to analyze the compost/ Bio-earth, inert for contamination of heavy metals or other contamination and for the necessary intended use every month. It is preferable to use such compost/ Bio-earth, inert within the site itself after ensuring it is free of contamination. The reports of the same shall be provided along with the bills. If heavy- metal contamination is found, the selected bidder is required to follow instructions such as further sampling and analysis of the material. The further sampling if required will be facilitated by the employer with additional payments towards the analysis and further course of action (transportation and disposal to Hazardous waste landfill etc as per Hazardous Waste Management Rules 2016) as per actuals.

- xvii. The revenue or the income from the sale of the segregated useful material such as reusable and recyclable, Compost, Soil conditioner, RDF or any other by- product materials shall go to the Contractor's account.
- xviii. The contractor shall be responsible for the payment towards fleet management in order to dispose the material recovered from the legacy waste.
- xix. The contract shall not be assigned or sublet.
- xx. Contractor shall be responsible for the Electricity connection and utility arrangement including Water arrangements for Work execution. All the cost related to these operations, including electrical consumption and other utility charges, and required field arrangements, manpower deployment shall have to be borne by the Contractor only.

3.3 Record keeping and Reporting:

- i. The contractor shall maintain a record of the daily processed legacy waste. The Selected Bidder shall also keep proper record of all the recovered and disposed of materials. The Selected Bidder shall prepare all periodical reports, applicable to the Projects, as may be required by Client, other stakeholders or the State Government etc. including weekly report on C-ESMP implementation to the PIU and details on incidents/accidents if any
- ii. The contractor shall furnish authorized weigh bridge records at the point of receipt by end designated agency. A consolidated certificate signed by the Plant Manager or higher rank of the authorized Cement plant/ WtE or such units certifying the total RDF received from the Project is a valid proof of compliance. The Client shall share such data with the Kerala State Pollution Control and the respective State Pollution Control Board where the cement plant is located.
- iii. The contractor shall provide traceability report/ documentation for disposal/ usages of recovered fraction.
- iv. The site shall be operated in CCTV surveillance with data storage of entire contract period. For CCTV surveillance to ensure full coverage of site with High-Definition IP based cameras in adequate numbers shall be provided by the contractor to abide and comply with the contract conditions. All the vehicles, transporting the recovered fraction for disposal out of the site shall be fitted with GPS based monitoring system and the movement record of the vehicles shall be maintained by the contractor. In addition, the contractor shall maintain videographic records of the of transportation vehicles for disposal of recovered fraction at the weighing location. No Payment shall be released without GPS monitoring report and in site or weighing location videographic evidence.
- v. CCTV Recordings of operations shall be provided as and when required by the employer or its designated Authority.

3.4 Routine Maintenance Standards:

In order to ensure smooth and uninterrupted operations, the contractor shall ensure routine maintenance of the facilities including, but not be limited to:

- i. Prompt repairs of the storage and waste drying places, electrical items, drains, vehicular passages, sieving machineries, lighting and fencing.
- ii. Replacement of equipment/ consumables and repairs to equipment, structures and other civil works which are part of the Legacy waste processing facility.
- iii. Maintaining the shape, slope, full cross-section of the storm water drainage system and Leachate collection and drainage system; maintain stock spare parts for the machinery.
- iv. Keeping the work area at project site in a clean, tidy and orderly condition and taking all practical measures to prevent damage to the facility or any other property on or near the site.
- v. Preventing, any unauthorized entry to and exit from and any encroachments including any encroachments on the site.
- vi. The site shall be made available for inspection at any time as and when felt necessary by the Authorities.

3.5 Quality Control:

- (a) Identifying defects: The Client shall check the selected contractor's work and notify him of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the contractor's responsibilities. The Client may instruct the contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Client considers may have a Defect.
- (b) **Tests**: If the Client instructs the contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect the test shall be compensated on actuals. Test/s related to presence of methane while operations may be conducted using online methane analyzer, in addition to this any additional test related to presence of excessive leachate or hazardous material may be proposed.

(c) Correction of defects

- (i) The Client shall give notice to the contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion and continue till end of one year. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- (ii) Every time notice of a Defect is given; the contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Client's notice.
- (d) Uncorrected defects: If the contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time

specified in the Client's notice, the Client will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the contractor shall have to pay this amount.

3.6 Testing requirements for each Site

Sr. No.	Testing	Samples	Periodicity	Responsibility
1	Ambient Air Sampling Parameters – ((Sulphur Dioxide (So2), Nitrogen Dioxide (No2), Particulate Matter 2.5, Particulate Matter 10, Ozone (O3), Lead (Pb), Carbon Monoxide (CO), Ammonia (NH3), Benzene (C6H6), Benzo pyrene (BaP), Arsenic (As), Nickel (Ni)) for 24 hrs	2	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
2	Ambient Noise Level Monitoring (E(p)Rules) for 24 hours	1	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
3	Surface Water Sampling (pH, Colour, DO, BOD, Oil & Grease, Chlorides, Sulphates, Nitrates, Flurides, TDS, heavy metals (such as Pb, Cd, Cu, Zn, Cr, Hg, Ni), Fe, E-coli and Total Coliforms (IS 2296 Class C Water)	2	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
4	Ground Water Sampling (Well Water Samples -1 up gradient, 2 down gradient) - (shallow and deep wells): pH, Colour, EC, Turbidity, SS, TDS, COD, heavy metals (such as Pb, Cd, Cu, Zn, Cr, Hg, Ni), Fe, C/N, F, As and Mn, Cl, NO3, SO4, Total hardness and Total Pesticides, E-coli and Total Coliforms	2	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
5	Compost Analysis As per Schedule II of SWM Rules 2016	1	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
6	Inert Analysis Heavy metals (such as Pb, Cd, Cu, Zn, Cr, Hg, Ni) as per Schedule II of SWM Rules 2016	1	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
7	RDF Analysis Ash content, Moisture, Chlorine, Sulphur, Net Calorific Value (Kcal/kg) Ref- Guidelines on Usage of Refuse Derived Fuel in Various Industries (CPHEEO- MoHUA)	1	Before starting the bio-mining works and bi- weekly thereof	Contractor
8	Leachate Analysis	1	Before starting the bio-mining	Contractor

Sr.	Testing	Samples	Periodicity	Responsibility
No.				
	(TCLP usepa 1311) (SCHEDULE II of SWM rules, 2016), Suspended solids, Dissolved solids (inorganic), pH, Ammonical nitrogen (as N), Total Kjeldahl nitrogen (as N), BOD, COD, Arsenic (as 'As'), Mercury, Lead, Cadmium, Copper, Zinc, Nickel, Cyanide, Chloride, Fluoride, Phenolic		works and bi- weekly thereof	
9	compounds)Gas AnalysisMethane[The concentration of methane gas generated at landfill site shall not exceed 25 per cent of the lower explosive limit (LEL)- SWM Rules 2016]	1	Before execution and after works competition for period of 7 days and twice a day.	Contractor
10	Soil Testing Heavy metals (such as Pb, Cd, Cu, Zn, Cr, Hg, Ni)	3 no.s	After works completion to ensure no contamination is present in the soil	Contractor
11	Bore Hole Analysis Permeability test- standard penetration test SPT and collection of undisturbed samples - Soil Investigation - Classification, gradation, Atterberg's limit, Bulk density, dry density, water content, cohesion, angle of internal friction, Proctor density, Optimum moisture content, coefficient of permeability, strength, compressibility, Cation Exchange Capacity Chemical Analysis of soil pH, EC, Nitrogen, Phosphorus, Potassium, Carbon, CN Ratio, Arsenic, Cadmium, Chromium, Copper, Lead, Nickel, Iron, Zinc, Mercury(vertically-3 samples in soil per borehole upto 6 m or N>50 whichever is earlier),	Minimum 3 no.s (add 2 no.s per hectare)	Before execution and finalization of design methodology and work plan	Contractor

3.7 Social, Health & Safety measures

- i. The contractor should use methods and processes to control foul odor and other such eco-friendly and non-polluting processes for minimizing the impact of the bio-mining activity in the adjacent areas of the dumpsite.
- ii. While carrying out the waste excavation, the contractor shall ensure the safety in terms of required slope during the waste cutting operations through Loader, Excavator etc.

- iii. The contractor must make all the necessary arrangement to monitor and comply all environmental, health and safety standards as per CPCB guidelines and applicable rules.
- iv. Necessary safety gears shall be provided by the selected Bidder to all staff working as per the good industry practice.
- v. The aspects relating to employee and worker safety, control mechanisms of litter, pest, fire, surface runoffs etc., needs to be followed.
- vi. Taking all reasonable measures for the safety of all the workmen, material, supplies, and equipment brought to the site. Explosives, if any, shall be stored, transported, and disposed of by the selected bidder in accordance with Applicable Laws/ Permits
- vii. Adequate illumination at site by setting up lighting system to facilitate working at night hours.
- viii. The contractor shall adhere to Health and Safety norms as per the industrial standards in the work area and the site premises. The contractor shall maintain provision for First Aid kit as per good industry practice and norms at workplace and other strategic locations within each dumpsite. In addition, the contractor shall identify location of nearest health centers and tie-up with them for emergency health situations. The Contractor shall maintain a display board at project site displaying emergency numbers in legible form.
- ix. The contractor shall be responsible to ensure the labour welfare activities and procedures as per the labour management plan provided by the employer
- x. The contractor shall ensure the timely implementation of mitigation measures mentioned in the Social Management Plan provided by the employer in annexure ______ to mitigate the potential social impacts due to the dumpsite remediation identified through social screening and impact assessment.
- xi. The contractor shall ensure the timely implementation of mitigation measures/specific activities mentioned in the required action plans (GBV/labour influx/community health and safety management plans) provided by the employer in annexure ____.
- xii. The bidder shall adhere to the MIS tool for labour management/ compliance system of the employer provided during Work execution (The training and guideline for operating and updating the same shall be given separately).
- xiii. The contractor shall adhere to the M&E plan provided by the employer in annexure ______ for the implementation of mitigation measures mentioned in SMP and required action plans and ensure to update the progress in MIS as per the guidance of employer designated personnel/ consultant.
- xiv. The contractor shall be responsible for implementing the activities as per the sitespecific Citizen engagement plan provided by the employer, which includes

community engagement and citizen engagement.

- xv. Implementation of Social Safeguard Measures: the cumulative and summary reports on Social Safeguards are attached with this RFB in Annexure _____ along with the site specific SMP, The Contractor shall implement the mitigation measures as per the plan in consultation with the Social Experts of the employer/ or employer designated Consultants
- xvi. The Contractor shall abide with the provision of Minimum Wages Act/Workman Compensation Act and such other statutory obligations notified by the concerned Govt. departments, from time to time. It should be specifically noted that the Contractor shall have to get them registered with the relevant authorities as required under various labor laws and submit undertaking of compliance along with the first payment bill failing which the payment bill shall not be processed.
 - i. The Contractor shall strictly comply with all the statutory requirements notified by the concerned Govt. departments from time to time and indemnify the Corporation against any claim(s), whatsoever arising there from and the tenderer shall be solely responsible for consequences thereof. The Contractor is requested to take cognizance of Child Labor Act and take precaution not to deploy child Labor. If Child Labor is found to be deployed on the work, necessary action as deemed fit will be taken.

3.8 Environmental, Health & Safety measures:

- i. Create all facilities for controlling the emission, pollution and contamination of the environment including but not limited to control of dust, particulate matter, and other air quality parameters including odour, water quality (surface and ground), leachate, soil, noise pollution, impacts on biodiversity and Health & Safety.
- ii. The Bidder must follow the Environmental Standards and Guidelines as mentioned below, but not limited to:
 - a. Air Quality Monitoring As per Solid Waste Management Rules 2016 (SWM Rules 2016) or amendments thereafter with respect to baseline site parameters on bi-weekly basis.
 - b. Noise Monitoring As per Noise Pollution Rules 2000 or amendments thereafter with respect to baseline site parameters on bi-weekly basis.
 - c. Odour Monitoring As per CPCB guidelines 'Odour Pollution & Its Control or amendments thereafter with respect to site parameters periodically.
 - d. Water Quality Monitoring As per Solid Waste Management Rules 2016 (SWM Rules 2016) or amendments thereafter with respect to baseline site parameters on bi-weekly basis.

- e. Disposal of recovered fractions- As per Solid Waste Management Rules 2016 (SWM Rules 2016) or amendments thereafter with respect to baseline site parameters. including FCO 1985 norms and its amendments if used as Bio-earth or compost (also considering pathogens, helminth ova and salmonella)
- f. All monitoring specified as per Guidelines for disposal of legacy waste (old municipal solid waste) by the CPCB, February 2019.
- g. Drainage & Leachate Quality monitoring
 - i. The Bidder must make all the necessary arrangement to monitor and comply all environmental standards.
 - ii. The Bidder shall segregate any Hazardous waste [as defined in Hazardous and other waste (Management and Trans- Boundary movement) Rules 2016 existing inside the site and separately earmarked. The bidder shall dispose of the same at KSPCB's approved sites (CHWTSDF) in accordance with Hazardous and other waste (Management and Trans- Boundary movement) Rules 2016 or amendments thereafter and records on the type, quantity and quality of such wastes shall be maintained and reported as per reporting schedule. The payment for the disposal of the same shall be borne by the client on actuals.
 - iii. The Bidder shall segregate any Biomedical waste [as defined in Biomedical Waste Management Rules 2016] existing inside the site and store separately in line with the guidance in the Rules. The bidder shall dispose of the same at KSPCB's approved Biomedical Waste Management Facility in accordance with Rules or amendments thereafter and records on the type, quantity and quality of such wastes shall be maintained and reported as per reporting schedule
 - iv. It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to abate the odor and fire nuisance on site. The Bidder shall use enzyme/herbal based products as described in Legacy Waste Biomining Guidelines of CPCB after testing of the contents in a NABL land to rule out any possible hazardous content or banned insecticide/pesticide which shall help to abate the odor and fly's nuisance. Necessary firefighting arrangements on site including water tanks, sprinklers, hoses, training to staff, vehicles and any other in discussion with Fire Safety Department shall be arranged to abate the fire nuisance.
 - v. It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to abate the odor and fire nuisance on site. The Bidder shall use enzyme/herbal based products as described in Legacy Waste Biomining Guidelines of CPCB which shall help to abate the odor and flies nuisance; after testing of the contents in a NABL accredited Lab to rule out any possible hazardous content or banned insecticide/pesticide. Fire safety management plan shall be prepared as suggested in ESMP. Necessary firefighting arrangements on site including water tanks, sprinklers, hoses, training to staff, vehicles and any other in discussion with Fire Safety Department shall be arranged to abate the fire

nuisance.

- vi. For discharge of wastewater and foul gasses, emission standards to be followed strictly as per prevailing KSPCB, CPCB, CPHEEO or any Govt. norms.
- vii.All the vehicles to be used by the Bidder in and outside the plant shall strictly follow latest emission standard.
- viii. Ensure daily washing of the vehicles (without polluting the surrounding environment around wash areas) used for the transportation/disposal of processed and segregated material.
- ix. Adequate number of smog machines and other mechanisms as appropriate on site including screens to ensure dust suppression and control to ensure compliance with standards specified in Solid Waste Management Rules 2016 and amendments thereof.
- x. The bidder shall ensure OHS at all times in the proposed activity both inside the site during biomining and storage of wastes, and outside the site while undertaking transport of men, material, and retrieved fractions and disposal of retrieved fractions. Protocols, systems and capacities to manage all High Energy Hazards shall be arranged before start of activities on site. National/State regulations and ESMP clauses on worker health and safety shall be strictly followed, at all times. All records of incidents shall be maintained on site including indicative, serious and severe.
- xi. All severe and serious incidents shall be reported to the Client immediately and support the client in undertaking Root Cause Analysis and preparation of Safeguard Corrective Action Plans.
- xii.**Implementation of Environment Safeguard Measures**: the cumulative and summary reports on Environment Safeguards are attached with this RFB in Annexure along with the site specific EMP, The Contractor shall implement the mitigation measures as per the plan in consultation with the Environmental Experts of employer/ or employer designated Consultants
- xiii. The bidder shall ensure the timely implementation of mitigation measures mentioned in the Environmental Management Plan prepared by the employer and updated by the successful bidder as C-EMP to mitigate the potential impacts due to the dumpsite remediation identified through screening and impact assessment. The EIA/EMP shall be updated by the bidder considering the locational aspects, his work plan & details, and submitted to the client for clearances and obtain clearances before initiating any type of activity on site.

3.9 Emergency Response and Fire Safety:

- i. The Contractor shall be responsible for implementation of Emergency Response plan during Work execution.
 - a. In the event of an Emergency, the contractor shall immediately carry out an inspection of the area affected by the Emergency. Where Emergency has necessitated closure of the Legacy Waste processing facility or part thereof, the Bidder shall promptly carry out any repair works necessary to restore the legacy waste processing facilities to safe condition and in any event shall carry out such works before the affected area of the project facilities is re-opened for normal operations.
 - b. The contractor shall ensure that sufficient staff, plant, equipment and materials, including without limitation medical assistance are available to respond to Emergency within reasonable period at all times during the Operations Period.

ii. Fire Safety and Fire Management

The contractor is required to obtain NoC from Fire & Rescue Services for execution of dumpsite Biomining and Bioremediation where the fire & rescue services will provide for specific conditions in the NoC for compliance. The contractor is required to comply to the conditions at no additional cost. The compliance shall be ensured till the project site is handed over.

Further, the Contractor is required to liaison with Kerala Fire & Rescue Services or private agencies and deploy a fire brigade and connected manpower (Fire Tender/Ambulance etc.) as stand by during the period of the works till site handover.

The contractor is also required to adhere to the following with respect to fire safety.

- a. Fire Fighting System including fire hydrant, pressure pumps, 5000 Ltr (min) water storage, adequate hose reel and fire extinguishers to be provided at site.
- b. Alternate source of power (DG) for specific purpose
- c. Manual Fire Alarm System with evacuation plan
- d. Regular check, maintenance of equipment for firefighting (before initiating work and then at interval of 1 months thereof)
- e. Training to all men and conducting fire drill. (Before initiating work and then at interval of 3 months thereof)
- f. Maintaining fire line/ break while storage of material (RDF). Stored RDF to not exceed 10% of total estimated RDF volume at site at any given point of time.
- g. Any potential flammable fuel to be stored atleast 25 m away from the RDF stack and in a designated storage space.
- h. Water storage should be within 30 m of RDF stack.
- i. All vehicles to carry atleast one ABC rated fire extinguisher.

- j. any other requirement in consultation with local Fire & Rescue Services office.
- k. Assigning one designated person as safety officer/ spotter and responsible to identify potential situations of fire

3.10 Project Site Handover Condition after Work Completion

- i. Dumpsite land shall be reclaimed i.e. all the legacy waste will be removed till it reaches the surface of the earth/ soil.
- ii. The Machinery & Vehicles of the implementation agency shall be vacated within 14 days from the date of handover of site to ULB (and in no case later than 270 days from the date of agreement). The date of completion of work for a specific dumpsite shall be the date as approved by the employer or its designated personal/ consultant.
- iii. The encumbrance free bio-remediated land shall be handed over to ULB after filling the inert/ Bio-earth at the site upto surrounding ground level with proper compaction (in layers of 300mm and compacted to 225mm with proctor density not less than 95% of the Maximum Dry Density. The test for the proctor density is to be carried out for every layer at the rate of 1 sample per 1000 sqm. The Moisture Content should be within 95% of Optimum Moisture Content. The contractor may add suitable additives such as lime etc for ensuring soil suitability for improving stability and strength criteria) and appropriate profiling for an aesthetic appearance and surrounding ground level. The material must be stabilized and is expected to be within the allowable limits for landfill, however the profiling will be done with appropriate drainage system. The maximum slope shall conform the stability calculation prepared for the fill materials. It will be the responsibility of the contractor to ensure proper slope stability, compaction, and surface run-off drainage. Adequate drainage should be ensured in the planning. The inert and Bio-earth recovered will be subjected to bi-weekly sampling to check the parameters mentioned in schedule II of SWM Rules 2016 before using the material at site.

S.No.	Activity to be completed	Time Period for Completion from Signing of Agreement in
01	Submission of Workplan including updated EIA,	
	Contractor EMP by the contractor and review and approval	
02	Statutory Clearances and Erection and Commissioning of	45
	the Plant and Machinery	

Milestones required to be achieved within the given timeframe are as mentioned below.

S.No.	Activity to be completed	Time Period for Completion from Signing of Agreement in
03	To process and dispose of cumulative 15 % of Estimated Waste Quantity from ULBs	75
04	To process and dispose of cumulative 50 % Estimated Waste Quantity from ULBs	145
05	To process and dispose of 65 % of Estimated Waste Ouantity from ULBs	175
06	To process and dispose 80 % of Estimated Waste Quantity of from ULBs	205
07	To process and dispose 100 % of Estimated Waste Quantity from ULBs	245
08	Dispose of any balance fraction, if any, as instructed by the employer and profiling the site to surrounding ground level with use of recovered fraction.	270

1. Task Matrix for Legacy Waste Dumpsite Biomining and Bioremediation*

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
Pre-operational period (Baseline Monitoring, Data and Methodology)	Feasibility study (FS) of all the Dumpsites within the scope and their GPS location EIA with EMP and SIA with SMP report for individual Dumpsites Topographical drawings of each Dumpsites with 0.5M contour Geotechnical investigation results of one representative Borehole within the Dumpsites Surface and Ground water quality results	Tendering Authority	The FS Report containing GPS location is provided along with RFB document by KSWMP The EIA with EMP and SIA with SMP report for each Dumpsites is provided by KSWMP The Topographical drawing/ drone survey of each Dumpsites is provided by SPMU in FS Report The Geotechnical investigation results is part of FS report The Surface and Ground water quality results is part of
	around the Dumpsites		FS report

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
	Ambient Air Quality results around the Dumpsites		The Ambient Air Quality results is part of FS report
	Noise levels at the site		The Noise Level results are part of FS report
	The Leachate analysis results shall be part of FS report		The Leachate analysis results is part of FS report
	Location of the nearest cement plant from each Dumpsites		The Location of the nearest cement plant is part of FS report
	Estimated quantities of Biomining and Bioremediation volumes in m ³ Estimated quantities of		The Estimated quantities of Biomining and Bioremediation volumes in m ³ is part of FS report The Estimated quantities of
	RDF, compost/ Bio- earth, Recyclables, Inert in MT		RDF, compost/ Bio-earth, Recyclables, Inert in MT is part of FS report
	Electrical and water amenities available at each Dumpsites		The Electrical and water amenities available at each Dumpsites are provided in FS report
	Methodology to accommodate Quantity, Quality and time variation in bills		The Methodology to accommodate Quantity, Quality and time variation in bills is provided in RFB
	Billing Methodology		The Billing Methodology is provided in RFB
	Unit rates of Biomining and Bioremediation in M ³		The bidder shall provide the unit rates of Biomining and Bioremediation in M ³ in their financial Bid
Tendering Process (Price Bid, Implementation Plan, EMP)	Unit rates of disposal of RDF, Inert in MT	Contractor (Bidder)	The bidder shall provide the unit rates of disposal of RDF, Inert in MT in the financial bid
	Potential location for disposal of recovered fractions		Potential location for disposal of recovered fractions shall be provided by Contractor in the technical bid

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
	Procedures to manage the air, Leachate, Odour, Soil, water, noise, solids and OHS		Procedures to manage Procedures to manage the air, Leachate, Odour, Soil and OHS shall be provided by the bidder in the technical bid
	Indicative Details of manpower and machinery		Indicative Details of manpower and machinery shall be provided by the bidder in the technical bid
	Strategies for contingency planning		Strategies for contingency planning shall be provided by the bidder in the technical bid such as rains, fire, etc.
	Undertaking to confirm with methodology for Dumpsites Biomining and Bioremediation, forward linkages, time frame and ESMP		Undertaking to confirm with methodology for Dumpsites Biomining and Bioremediation, forward linkages, time frame and ESMP shall be provided by the bidder in the technical bid
	Site handover	Tendering Authority	The client shall ensure that the site shall be handed over to the contractor "as-is- where-is" basis.
Site preparation	Joint Survey	Tendering Authority and Contractor	The client and contractor shall conduct a joint survey after award of contract (topography and bore hole samples for finalizing the work plan. The minimum required borehole samples are 3 no's and additional at a rate of 2 borehole samples per hectare)
	Site services (power/water)	Contractor	The contractor shall arrange grid connection/ water to the site. For backup power, the contractor shall provide DG set for the Biomining and Bioremediation works.
	Site services (drainage)	Contractor	The contractor is responsible for ensuring drainage around the site (to allow all surface runoff from and outside the site to be collected and disposed in drain, without mixing with waste &

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
			leachate) properly segregated from leachate
	Site access	Contractor	The Contractor to ensure proper site access for machinery and equipment (3 m width)
	Site security	Contractor	Once the site is handed over to the contractor, the safety and security of the site (including incidents) is responsibility of the contractor
	Site fencing (for control of air, water, land, noise pollution)	Contractor	The contractor shall ensure necessary safeguards such as dust suppression, noise barriers, leachate collection system etc. and others in ESMP
	Site zoning/phasing (horizontally) vertically/over time)	Contractor	The contractor shall provide the same in the work plan and adhere to the same. The authority may seek for changing the same from case to case)
	Rate of excavation (material flow)	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for meeting the timelines given in the tender document
Excavation	Machinery and equipment	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for ensuring the machinery/ equipment are in compliance to applicable standards including [but not limited to] the Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB) guidelines for legacy waste management, finalized workplan and ESIA
Materials handling	Volume, types and variability of material to be excavated, handled Segregation etc	Contractor	The contractor is required to adhere to the tender conditions and CPCB guidelines for legacy waste management

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
	Numbers and types of vehicles or other transport means	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible to provide for the adequate no's and type of GPS enabled vehicles/ transport means
	Machinery and equipment	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for ensuring the machinery/ equipment are in compliance to the CPCB guidelines for legacy waste management
	RDF- Transport and disposal arrangement	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the RDF recovered meets the standards mentioned in the tender and is transported in GPS enabled covered vehicles for end disposal in compliance to the SWM Rules 2016 and CPCB guidelines for legacy waste management
Final disposal off-site	Compost/ Bio-earth- Transport and disposal arrangement	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the compost/ Bio-earth recovered meets the standards mentioned in the tender and is transported in GPS enabled covered vehicles / disposed for proper end use in compliance to the CPCB guidelines for legacy waste management and if used as fertilizer conforms with SWM Rules, 2016 and FCO 1985 and its amendments therein. The site suitability of proposed site for reuse of Inert/ bio-earth shall be verified by the ULB Engineer- LSGD Dept in consultation with the KSPCB. The transportation of inert/ bio-earth shall happen only after the approval is in place.

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
	Inert- Transport and disposal arrangement	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that the inert fraction recovered meets the standards mentioned in the tender and is transported in GPS enabled covered vehicles / disposed for proper end use in compliance to the CPCB guidelines for legacy waste management. The site suitability of proposed site for reuse of Inert/ bio-earth shall be verified by the ULB Engineer- LSGD Dept in consultation with the KSPCB. The transportation of inert/ bio-earth shall happen only after the approval is in place.
Final disposal on-site	Technical characterization of designated area Volumes and types of materials to be placed	Contractor	The contractor in consultation and after written confirmation from Client shall be responsible for any on-site disposal of inert fraction and Bio-earth meeting the standards mentioned in the tender and free of heavy metal contamination. The fill density, moisture content and grading shall be as per approved designs
Clearing and conditioning of the Site	Site Clearance, profiling, conditioning etc.	Contractor	The contractor shall be responsible for handing over the cleared and reclaimed site free of any unprocessed legacy waste fractions along with profiling/ conditioning if there is on-site disposal along with test as specified in RFB.
Post-handover management	Post-excavation validation for excavated area & periodic review and maintenance	Tendering Authority	The Client shall be responsible for validation of the excavated and reclaimed area and further periodic review /further use of the

Unit Operation	Operational Requirement	Tendering Authority/ Contractor	Notes/ Remarks
			land post site contamination assessment

4 **Contract Period**

The Contract period shall be Two Hundred seventy days (270 Days) reckoned from the date of signing of the contract agreement. (including mobilization, Statutory Clearances and Erection and Commissioning of the Plant and Machinery period of 45 days) to dispose of 2,92,002 M³ of estimated Legacy Waste from the dumpsites in 08 ULBs in Kerala through Biomining and Bioremediation process.

5 **Project Site**

- (a) The Client/ ULB shall handover the dumpsite to the Selected bidder as per the approved Work Plan. After completion of contract period, within 1 (One) month, the selected bidder has to completely remove the plant, machineries and equipment from the site and clear the project area. Performance security of the selected bidder shall be released within the duration as mentioned in GCC/PCC
- (b)There shall be no lease of land to the Bidder. He shall only set up the plant on Client's/ ULB's land for scientifically treating the legacy waste and operate it without any interest in land whatsoever. However, Client/ ULB shall provide necessary assistance to lenders/bankers/financial institutions funding the project in terms of granting right to entry if there is a need. Such right of entry however shall be restricted to the plant and machinery set up by the selected bidder.
- (c)Provision for building ancillary facilities: In case the selected bidder is required to set up ancillary facilities at site like Fuel storage, DG set etc., ULB may assist the selected bidder in getting the same installed at site for period of contract only. However, the necessary permissions required are to be obtained by the selected bidder at his cost.
- (d)The area of the dumpsite which shall be cleared and cleaned shall remain with Client/ULB.

6 **Provision for Variation in Quantity:**

If there is a variation in Total Quantity of Legacy waste than the quantity of Legacy Waste approved in the Work Plan the following provision shall be adopted:

A. <u>If the Actual Quantity is more than 20% of the Indicative Total quantity of the Legacy Waste</u>

The authority shall revise lower rate in case of variation beyond (+) 20% of the indicative total quantity of the legacy waste in 08 Dumpsites. The rate will be decreased by 5% for every 10% increase in the quantity beyond the (+) 20% variation. The rate will freeze at maximum of 20% decrease from the quoted price. The variation in the rate shall be applicable only on the variation quantity The variation shall be calculated only on the cumulative variation of the quantity in the existing dumpsites in 08 ULBs and not on individual quantity variation in respective dumpsites within the ULB. Also, the variation in price shall only effect on finalized unit rate for 'Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost etc. at existing Dumpsites ((i.e. Legacy Waste Processing only through Biomining and bioremediation) at existing Dumpsites in 08 ULBs in Kerala'. The rate for other activities shall be firm as finalized irrespective of the quantity variation

B. <u>If the Actual Quantity is less than 80% of the Indicative Total quantity of the Legacy Waste</u>

The authority shall revise higher rate in case of variation beyond less than 80% of the indicative total quantity of legacy waste in 08 Dumpsites. The rate will be increased by 5% for every 10% decrease in the quantity beyond the (-) 20% variation. The rate will freeze at maximum of 20% increase from the quoted price. The variation in the rate shall be applicable only on the variation quantity. The variation shall be calculated only on the cumulative variation of the quantity in existing dumpsites in 08 ULBs and not on individual quantity variation in respective dumpsites within the ULB. Also, the variation in price shall only effect on finalized unit rate for 'Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost etc. at existing Dumpsites ((i.e. Legacy Waste Processing only through Biomining and bioremediation). at existing Dumpsites in 08 ULBs in Kerala'. The rate for other activities shall be firm as finalized irrespective of the quantity variation

Site Information

The Site information provided below are indicative and presented for the reference of the bidder. The bidder should do their own due diligence of the sites before bidding. The employer has created a document repository including Feasibility Report (FR) and Environment and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) for all the 08 dumpsites and is available for the reference of the bidder during the bid stage or later. The bidder who requires the mentioned documents may request the employer in writing to get the online download link for the same.

Dumpsite Parameters	Palakkad	Wadakkanchery	Kunnamkulam
Location of Dumpsite Co-ordinates of Dumpsite	Koottupatha (Kodumbu Panchayat), Palakkad Lat: 10.766745 N &	Kumblangad, Wadakkanchery Municipality, Thrissur Dt. Lat: 10° 39' 24.48" N &	Kurukkanpara, Kunnamkulam Municipality, Thrissur Dt. Lat: 10.63854507 N &
co ordinates or Dumpsite	Lon: 76.6879 E	Lon: 76° 13' 26.4" E	Lon: 76.058853 E
Distance from the central part of the town	4.0 Km (approx)	3 Km from Municipal Headquarters	
Area of dumpsite	8.5 acres	2.86 acres	3.928 acres
Legacy waste spread	6.04 acres	1.35 acres	3.414 acres (There are temporary sheds over and above the dump in 1.4 acres + clear area of the dump in 2.014 acres)
Total Land area	8.5 acres	2.86 acres	3.928 acres
Average height of dumpsite	2-9m above GL 1m below GL	2-4 m Below GL	5-6 m below GL
Ownership of dumpsite land	Municipality	Municipality	Municipality
Distance from nearby features- residential, school, offices, temples, institutions, industry etc.)	Residence-150m N, Commercial and Industrial establishment- 15 m	Residence-100m E, Poultry Farm- 102m E, Temple- 520m NW	Shrine-20mSW,School-104m,TrainingBuilding belonging to ULBhealth dept
Start date of dumpsite	1960 till 2020	2000 till 2015	1946
Quantity of waste dumped per day	Currently Nil	Currently Nil	Currently Nil
Utilities on site	Electricity and water connection (Malampuzha water supply) is available.	Electricity available. Public water connection not available, water used from Borewell within dumpsite.	Electricity and water connection is available.
Site demarcated	Entire dumpsite is surrounded by boundary wall and gate to restrict entry.	The dumpsite is not surrounded by a compound wall but a barbed wire fencing is used instead to restrict unauthorized entry.	Entire dumpsite is surrounded by boundary wall and gate to restrict entry.
Interlinked Facilities	Near to the dumpsite MCF, RRF, Incinerator and Windrow Plant is working	Near the dumpsite,MCF,RRF,Biogas	Windrow composting, MCF RRF and Coir Defibring,

Dumpsite Parameters	Palakkad	Wadakkanchery	Kunnamkulam	
		plant and Dewatered Compost Plant is working		
Availability of electrical power	Available	Available	Available	
Availability of water for process	Available	Available	Available	
Detail property surrounding dumpsite	The dump site is in Kodumbu grama panchayat. Most of the land usage in the region surrounding the dumpsite is agricultural. Industrial and residential structures can be found close by. The closest industrial facility is around 15 meters from the dumpsite's northern limit, and the nearest residential home is roughly 150 meters away. The area is primarily used for agriculture on the East and South sides, with paddy fields predominantly on the East. The closest industry on the west side is a modular furniture manufacturer, located around 45 meters away, and there is also open agricultural land.	The dump site is in Wadakkanchery Municipality. Most of the land usage in the region surrounding the dumpsite comes under dry agriculture zone. A major portion surrounding the dumpsite is covered by rubber plantations, a wetland on the west side and paddy fields on the north-west side. There is a water body nearby the paddy fields flowing in the northward direction and a canal is passing across the dumpsite in north-west direction. Within 200 m radius of the site, only two residential buildings are present and within 500 m radius on the north-west side, some cluster of residential zone are also present. On the east side of the dumpsite, a state highway is passing by.	Dumpsite is surrounded by residential areas, and the area where the dump is situated is marked as a park and open space zone as per survey No. 33. An abandoned quarry and a shrine are existing in the south-west side which is only 20m away from the boundary of the dumpsite. A special school (for Physically and mentally challenged children) located 104 metres from the dumpsite's perimeter. The south-west side of the dumpsite, there is an abandoned quarry and a place of worship. There is a book manufacturing unit in the north-east part, a chapel and a sculptor facility in the south-west side.	

Name of Dumpsite	Chalakudy	Manjeri	Malappuram
Location of Dumpsite	Near Cosmos Club, Chalakudy	Vettekode, Manjeri	Puliyattummal, Malappuram (ward 38)
Co-ordinates of Dumpsite	Lat: 10.333486 N & Lon: 76.338945 E	11.11013111 N and 76.138352 E	11.069406 N & 76.043037 E
Distance from the central part of the town	1.5km from Municipality	4.3 Km from the Manjeri Municipal Office	10 km from the Municipal Headquarters
Area of dumpsite	0.6472 acres	4.97 acres	4.46 acres
Legacy waste spread	0.6472 acres	1.11 Acres	0.5 acres
Total Land area	0.6472 acres	4.97 acres	4.46 acres

Name of Dumpsite	Chalakudy	Manjeri	Malappuram
Average height of dumpsite	4 m below GL	Varies from 1 to 3.5 m	Height of the dump varies from 1 to 4 m
Ownership of dumpsite land	0.4072 acres (Part- A) owned by Municipality and 0.24 acres (Part B) owned by private party	owned by Municipality and 0.24 acres (Part B) owned	
Distance from nearby features- residential, school, offices, temples, institutions, industry etc.)	Househiold- 100 m Crematorium - 20 m Recreational Club - 40 m	Household-190m School- 130m	Household- 60 m School- 900 m
Start date of dumpsite	2005 to 2019	1996 till 2012	1976 till 2018
Quantity of waste dumped per day	Currently Nil	Currently Nil	Currently Nil
Utilities on site	Electricity and water connection available nearby.	Electricity connection is available	Electricity connection is available
Site demarcated	Site is currently demarcated with a boundary wall.	Site is currently demarcated with a boundary wall.	Site is currently demarcated with a boundary wall.
Interlinked Facilities	There is a new MCF & RRF unit is present next to the Dumpsite	 Gas crematorium building MCF building & old windrow Compost Plant - Not working Slaughterhouse building Incinerator building-Not Working 	MCF located within the dumpsite area
Availability of electrical power	Available	Yes	Yes
Availability of water for process	Available	Water connection is available near to dumpsite area	No water connection at site.
Detail property surrounding dumpsite	East: NH 544 is situated on the east side of the dumpsite, and a small canal runs parallel to the side of the road. North: To the north of the site, there is a crematorium and MCFS, RRF building and thereafter a vacant plot is present. West: To the West of the site, there is a Church building and a football ground is present. South: A club building, a recreation facility and a	The dump site is in Manjeri Municipality. Most of the land usage in the region surrounding the dumpsite is agricultural. The school is located 130m away and the nearest residential home is roughly 190 meters away. Road , near by school & newly constructing houses	The dump site is in Malappuram Municipality. The school is located 200m away and the nearest residential home is roughly 60 meters away. Most of the land usage in the region surrounding the dumpsite is forest and foliage. Play ground and HKS buildings

Name of Dumpsite	Chalakudy	Manjeri	Malappuram
	hospital building under development are located to the south of the Dumpsite.		

Name of Dumpsite	Mavelikara	Vadavathoor
Location of Dumpsite	Thazhakara Dumpsite	Vadavathoor dumpsite
Co-ordinates of Dumpsite	9°253572"N & 76°54807"E	9.592591°N & 76.559704°E
Distance from the central part of the town	3.7 km (approx)	4.0 Km (approx)
Area of dumpsite	0.81 Acres	6.527 Acres
Legacy waste spread	0.81 Acres	3.711 Acres
Total Land area	0.81 Acres	6.527 Acres
Average height of dumpsite		5.77 m above GL
Ownership of dumpsite land	Municipality	Municipality
Distance from nearby features- residential, school, offices, temples, institutions, industry etc.)	Residential and other structures within 30 m from the site	Residential and other structures within 100 meters from the site
Start date of dumpsite	2003 till 2018	1981 till 2013
Quantity of waste dumped per day	Nil	Nil
Utilities on site	Electricity connection is available	Electricity connection is available
Site demarcated	Site is not demarcated with boundary wall	Site is currently demarcated with a boundary wall.
Interlinked Facilities	Nil	Nil
Availability of electrical power	Yes	Yes

Name of Dumpsite	Mavelikara	Vadavathoor
Availability of water for process	No water connection at site.	Surface Water at 100 m
Detail property surrounding dumpsite	The thazhakara dumpsite is located adjacent to the residential area, there is no boundary wall is there for the dumpsite. There is one nearest stream available distance is 10 m this water joining to the Achankovil river	The Vadavathoor dumpsite is located adjacent to the residential area in jusridiction of Vijayapuram Gram Panchayat. Boundary wall is there for the dumpsite. Girideepam College is also adjacent to the dumpsite

Contractor's Representative and Key Personnel

[<u>Note</u>: Insert in the following table, the minimum key specialists required to execute the contract, taking into account the nature, scope, complexity and risks of the contract.

Item No.	Position/specialization	Relevant academic qualifications	Minimum years of relevant work experience
1	Contractor's Representative	BE/ B.Tech Civil/ Mechanical Engineering	min. 15 years' experience in executing Solid Waste Management projects with minimum 7 years' experience in legacy waste dumpsite Biomining and Bioremediation projects
	Key Per	sonnel for Design	· *
2.	Solid Waste Management Specialist	B.E./B.Tech-Civil Engineering	min.10years'experienceinexecutingSolidWasteManagementprojectswithminimum7years'experienceinlegacywastedumpsiteBiominingandBioremediationprojects
3.	Environmental Specialist	BE/B.Tech./EnvironmentEngineering/CivilEngineering/PostGraduateEnvironment Science	experience Solid Waste Management Project or
4.	Health and Safety Specialist	Graduate (preferably Civil Engineer) with accepted Certificate, Diploma or similar in Health and Safety	experience in similar work environment
5.	Social Specialist	Master's in social works (MSW)/ Masters in Social Science	2

Contractor's Representative and Key Personnel

6.	Labor Welfare Expert (Need	Graduate in Law	Minimum 5 years of
0.	based)	Oracuate in Law	working experience on
	(Jased)		Labour Welfare
	Kan Dangaran	al for Work Encoution	programs
7.		el for Work Execution	
/.	Mechanical/ Electrical Engineer	B.E./ B.Tech Mechanical/ Electrical	minimum 10 years'
			experience in Solid
		Engineering	Waste Management
0	Site Engineen/Civil Engineen	DE / DTech Civil	Works
8.	Site Engineer/ Civil Engineer	B.E./ B.Tech. – Civil	minimum 10 years'
		Engineering	experience in Solid
			Waste Management
			Works with at least 5
			years' experience in
			Biomining and
			Bioremediation of
-			Legacy Waste Dumpsite
9	Occupational health and safety	Diploma in OHS/	Minimum 10 years'
	specialist	Safety Engineering	experience in managing
			Occupational health and
			safety in any large
			Construction/ Urban
			Infrastructure Projects
			with at least 5 years'
			experience in managing
			such activities in Solid
			Waste Management
10			projects
10	Environmental Specialist	BE/ B.Tech./	minimum. 10 years'
		Environmental or civil	experience in Solid
		Engineering/ Post	Waste
		Graduate in	Management/similar
		Environmental Science	Projects
11	Social Specialist	Master's in social	minimum 10 years' of
		works (MSW)/ Masters	experience in
		in Social Science	monitoring and
			managing risks related
			to Social issues

PART 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract

These General Conditions of Contract (GCC), read in conjunction with the Particular Conditions of Contract (PCC) and other documents listed therein, should be a complete document expressing fairly the rights and obligations of both parties.

These General Conditions of Contract have been developed on the basis of considerable international experience in the drafting and management of contracts, bearing in mind a trend in the Solid Waste Management industry towards simpler, more straightforward language.

The GCC can be used for both smaller admeasurement contracts and lump sum contracts.

General Conditions of Contract

A. General

1. Definitions	Boldface ty	pe is used to identify defined terms.
	(a)	The Accepted Contract Amount means the amount accepted in the Letter of Acceptance for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects.
	(b)	The Activity Schedule (also interchangeably referred as "Schedule of Activities") is a schedule of the activities comprising the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning of the Works in a lump-sum contract. It includes a lump-sum price for each activity, which is used for valuations and for assessing the effects of Variations and Compensation Events.
	(c)	The Adjudicator is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in GCC 23.
	(d)	Bank means the financing institution named in the PCC.
	(e)	Bill of Quantities means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part of the Bid, if applicable.
	(f)	Compensation Events are those defined in GCC Clause 46 hereunder.
	(g)	The Completion Date is the date of completion of the Works as certified by the Project Manager, in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 57.1.
	(h)	The Contract is the Contract between the Employer and the Contractor to execute, complete, and maintain the Works. It consists of the documents listed in GCC Sub-Clause 2.3 below.
	(i)	The Contractor is the party whose Bid to carry out the Works has been accepted by the Employer.
	(j)	The Contractor's Bid is the completed bidding document submitted by the Contractor to the Employer.
	(k)	The Contract Price is the Accepted Contract Amount stated in the Letter of Acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the Contract.
	(1)	Days are calendar days; months are calendar months.
	(m)	Downerly are varied work inputs subject to payment on

(m) **Dayworks** are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and

Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.

- (n) A **Defect** is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract.
- (o) The **Defects Liability Certificate** is the certificate issued by Project Manager upon correction of defects by the Contractor.
- (p) The **Defects Liability Period** is the period **named in the PCC** pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 38.1 and calculated from the Completion Date.
- (q) **Drawings** means the drawings of the Works, as included in the Contract, and any additional and modified drawings issued by (or on behalf of) the Employer in accordance with the Contract, include calculations and other information provided or approved by the Project Manager for the execution of the Contract.
- (r) The **Employer** is the party who employs the Contractor to carry out the Works, **as specified in the PCC**.
- (s) **Equipment** is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the Works.
- (t) **"In writing"** or "**written**" means hand-written, typewritten, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record;
- (u) The **Initial Contract Price** is the Contract Price listed in the Employer's Letter of Acceptance.
- (v) The Intended Completion Date is the date on which it is intended that the Contractor shall complete the Works. The Intended Completion Date is specified in the PCC. The Intended Completion Date may be revised only by the Project Manager by issuing an extension of time or an acceleration order.
- (w) **Materials** are all supplies, including consumables, used by the Contractor for incorporation in the Works.
- (x) **Plant** is any integral part of the Works that shall have a mechanical, electrical, chemical, or biological function.
- (y) The Project Manager is the person named in the PCC (or any other competent person appointed by the Employer and notified to the Contractor, to act in replacement of the Project Manager) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the Works and administering the Contract.

- (z) **PCC** means Particular Conditions of Contract.
- (aa) The **Site** is the area defined as such in the PCC.
- (bb) **Site Investigation Reports** are those that were included in the bidding document and are factual and interpretative reports about the surface and subsurface conditions at the Site.
- (cc) **Specification** means the Specification of the Works included in the Contract and any modification or addition made or approved by the Project Manager.
- (dd) The **Start Date** is **given in the PCC**. It is the latest date when the Contractor shall commence execution of the Works. It does not necessarily coincide with any of the Site Possession Dates.
- (ee) A **Subcontractor** is a person or corporate body who has a Contract with the Contractor to carry out a part of the work in the Contract, which includes work on the Site.
- (ff) **Temporary Works** are works designed, constructed, installed, and removed by the Contractor that are needed for execution or installation of the Works.
- (gg) A **Variation** is an instruction given by the Project Manager which varies the Works.
- (hh) The **Works** are what the Contract requires the Contractor to design, construct, install, and turn over to the Employer, as defined in the PCC.
- (ii) "Contractor's Personnel" refers to all personnel whom the Contractor utilizes on the Site or other places where the Works are carried out, including the staff, labor and other employees of each Subcontractor.
- (jj) **"Key Personnel"** means the positions (if any) of the Contractor's personnel that are stated in the Employer's Requirement.
- (kk) **"ES"** means Environmental and Social (including Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA), and Sexual Harassment (SH)).
- (ll) **"Sexual Exploitation and Abuse" "(SEA)"** means the following:

Sexual Exploitation is defined as any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another;

Sexual Abuse is defined as the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions.

- (mm) "Sexual Harassment" "(SH)" is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature by the Contractor's Personnel with other Contractor's or Employer's Personnel; and
- (nn) "Employer's Personnel" refers to the Project Manager and all other staff, labor and other employees (if any) of the Project Manager and of the Employer engaged in fulfilling the Employer's obligations under the Contract; and any other personnel identified as Employer's Personnel, by a notice from the Employer or the Project Manager to the Contractor.
- 2. Interpretation 2.1 In interpreting these GCC, words indicating one gender include all genders. Words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular. Headings have no significance. Words have their normal meaning under the language of the Contract unless specifically defined. The Project Manager shall provide instructions clarifying queries about these GCC.
 - 2.2 If sectional completion is **specified in the PCC**, references in the GCC to the Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works).
 - 2.3 The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
 - (a) Agreement,
 - (b) Letter of Acceptance,
 - (c) Contractor's Bid (Technical Part as well as Financial Part),
 - (d) Particular Conditions of Contract,
 - (e) General Conditions of Contract, including Appendices,
 - (f) Employer's Requirement,

			(g) Completed Activity Schedule, ¹ and
			(h) any other document listed in the PCC as forming part of the Contract.
3.	Language and Law	3.1	The language of the Contract and the law governing the Contract are stated in the PCC .
		3.2	Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in the Employer's country when
			(a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
			(b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's Country prohibits any import of goods from that country or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
4.	Project Manager's Decisions	4.1	Except where otherwise specifically stated, the Project Manager shall decide contractual matters between the Employer and the Contractor in the role representing the Employer.
5.	Delegation	5.1	Unless otherwise specified in the PCC , the Project Manager may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities to other people, except to the Adjudicator, after notifying the Contractor, and may revoke any delegation after notifying the Contractor.
6.	Communica- tions	6.1	Communications between parties that are referred to in the Conditions shall be effective only when in writing. A notice shall be effective only when it is delivered.
7.	Subcontracting	7.1	The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but may not assign the Contract without the approval of the Employer in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor shall require that its Subcontractors execute the Works in accordance with the Contract, including complying with the relevant ES requirements and the obligations set out in Sub-Clause 28.1.
8.	Other Contractors	8.1	The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the Employer between the dates given in the Schedule of Other Contractors, as referred to in the PCC. The Contractor shall also provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The

¹ In lump-sum contracts, delete "Bill of Quantities" and replace with "Activity Schedule."

	 Employer may modify the Schedule of Other Contractors, and shall notify the Contractor of any such modification. 8.2 The Contractor shall also, as stated in the Specifications or as instructed by the Project Manager, cooperate with and allow appropriate opportunities for the Employer's or any other personnel, notified to the Contractor by the Employer or Project Manager, to conduct any environmental and social assessment.
8.A Design	8.A.1 Contractor shall meet Design obligations as stated under Appendix-C to GCC

9.	Personnel and Equipment	9.1	Equi perso Proje Key quali	Contractor shall employ the Key Personnel and use the pment identified in its Bid, to carry out the Works or other onnel and Equipment approved by the Project Manager. The ect Manager shall approve any proposed replacement of Personnel and Equipment only if their relevant ifications or characteristics are substantially equal to or or than those proposed in the Bid.
		9.2	The Project Manager may require the Contractor to remove (or cause to be removed) any person employed on the Site or Works, including the Key Personnel (if any), who:	
			(a)	persists in any misconduct or lack of care;
			(b)	carries out duties incompetently or negligently;
			(c)	fails to comply with any provision of the Contract;
			(d)	persists in any conduct which is prejudicial to safety, health, or the protection of the environment;
			(e)	based on reasonable evidence, is determined to have engaged in Fraud and Corruption during the execution of the Works;
			(f)	has been recruited from the Employer's Personnel;
			(g)	undertakes behavior which breaches the Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel (ES).
			caus	propriate, the Contractor shall then promptly appoint (or e to be appointed) a suitable replacement with equivalent s and experience.
			Notwithstanding any requirement from the Project Manager to remove or cause to remove any person, the Contractor shall take immediate action as appropriate in response to any violation of (a) through (g) above. Such immediate action shall include removing (or causing to be removed) from the Site or other places where the Works are being carried out, any Contractor's Personnel who engages in (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) or (g) above or has been recruited as stated in (f) above."	
		9.3	the association other safet	Contractor shall take all necessary safety measures to avoid occurrence of incidents and injuries to any third party ciated with the use of, if any, Equipment on public roads or r public infrastructure. The Contractor shall monitor road y incidents and accidents to identify negative safety issues, establish and implement necessary measures to resolve

9.4 Labor

9.4.1 *Engagement of Staff and Labor.* The Contractor shall provide and employ on the Site for the execution of the Works such skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled labor as is necessary for the proper and timely execution of the Contract. The Contractor is encouraged, to the extent practicable and reasonable, to employ staff and labor with appropriate qualifications and experience from sources within the Country.

> Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, the Contractor shall be responsible for the recruitment, transportation, accommodation and welfare facilities in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 9.4.6, of the Contractor's Personnel, and for all payments in connection therewith.

> The Contractor shall provide the Contractor's Personnel information and documentation that are clear and understandable regarding their terms and conditions of employment. The information and documentation shall set out their rights under relevant labor laws applicable to the Contractor's Personnel (which will include any applicable collective agreements), including their rights related to hours of work, wages, overtime, compensation and benefits, as well as those arising from any requirements in the Specifications. The Contractor's Personnel shall be informed when any material changes to their terms or conditions of employment occur.

- 9.4.2 *Conditions of Labor.* The Contractor shall inform the Contractor's Personnel about:
 - (a) any deduction to their payment and the conditions of such deductions in accordance with the applicable laws or as stated in the Specifications; and
 - (b) their liability to pay personal income taxes in the Country in respect of such of their salaries, wages, allowances and any benefits as are subject to tax under the laws of the Country for the time being in force.

The Contractor shall perform such duties in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such laws.

Where required by applicable laws or as stated in the Specifications, the Contractor shall provide the Contractor's Personnel written notice of termination of employment and details of severance payments in a timely manner. The Contractor shall have paid the Contractor's Personnel (either directly or where appropriate for their benefit) all due wages and entitlements including, as applicable, social security benefits and pension contributions, on or before the end of their engagement/ employment.

- 9.4.3 The Contractor may bring into the Country any foreign personnel who are necessary for the execution of the Works to the extent allowed by the applicable Laws. The Contractor shall ensure that these personnel are provided with the required residence visas and work permits. The Employer will, if requested by the Contractor, use its best endeavors in a timely and expeditious manner to assist the Contractor in obtaining any local, state, national, or government permission required for bringing in the Contractor's personnel.
- 9.4.4 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide the means of repatriation to and the Contractor's Personnel employed on the Contract at the Site to their various home countries. It shall also provide suitable temporary maintenance of all such persons from the cessation of their employment on the Contract to the date programmed for their departure. In the event that the Contractor defaults in providing such means of transportation and temporary maintenance, the Employer may provide the same to such personnel and recover the cost of doing so from the Contractor.
- 9.4.5 *Disorderly conduct*. The Contractor shall at all times during the progress of the Contract use its best endeavors to prevent any unlawful, riotous or disorderly conduct or behavior by or amongst the Contractor's Personnel.
- 9.4.6 *Facilities for Staff and Labor.* Except as otherwise stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall provide and maintain all necessary accommodation and welfare facilities for the Contractor's Personnel. If stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall give access to or provide services that accommodate the physical, social and cultural needs of the Contractor's Personnel. The Contractor shall also provide similar facilities for the Employer's Personnel if stated in the Specifications.
- 9.4.7 The Contractor shall, in all dealings with the Contractor's Personnel, pay due regard to all recognized festivals, official holidays, religious or other customs and all local laws and regulations pertaining to the employment of labor. The Contractor shall provide the Contractor's Personnel annual holiday and sick, maternity and family leave, as required by applicable laws or as stated in the Specifications.
- 9.4.8 *Supply of Foodstuffs*. The Contractor shall arrange for the provision of a sufficient supply of suitable food as may be stated in the Specification at reasonable prices for the

Contractor's Personnel for the purposes of or in connection with the Contract.

- 9.4.9 *Supply of Water*. The Contractor shall, having regard to local conditions, provide on the Site an adequate supply of drinking and other water for the use of the Contractor's Personnel.
- 9.4.10 *Measures against Insect and Pest Nuisance.* The Contractor shall at all times take the necessary precautions to protect the Contractor's Personnel employed on the Site from insect and pest nuisance, and to reduce the danger to their health. The Contractor shall comply with all the regulations of the local health authorities, including use of appropriate insecticide.
- 9.4.11 Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs. The Contractor shall not, otherwise than in accordance with the laws of the Country, import, sell, give, barter or otherwise dispose of any alcoholic liquor or drugs, or permit or allow importation, sale, gift, barter or disposal thereto by Contractor's Personnel.
- 9.4.12 *Arms and Ammunition*. The Contractor shall not give, barter, or otherwise dispose of, to any person, any arms or ammunition of any kind, or allow Contractor's Personnel to do so.
- 9.4.13 *Funeral Arrangements*. The Contractor shall be responsible, to the extent required by local regulations, for making any funeral arrangements for any of its local employees who may die while engaged upon the Works.
- 9.4.14 *Forced Labor.* The Contractor, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage forced labor. Forced labor consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labor, such as indentured labor, bonded labor or similar labor-contracting arrangements.

No persons shall be employed or engaged who have been subject to trafficking. Trafficking in persons is defined as the recruitment, transportation, transfer, harboring or receipt of persons by means of the threat or use of force or other forms of coercion, abduction, fraud, deception, abuse of power, or of a position of vulnerability, or of the giving or receiving of payments or benefits to achieve the consent of a person having control over another person, for the purposes of exploitation.

9.4.15 *Child Labor*. The Contractor, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child under the age of 14 unless the national law specifies a higher age (the minimum age).

The Contractor, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child between the minimum age and the age of 18 in a manner that is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development.

The Contractor including its Subcontractors, shall only employ or engage children between the minimum age and the age of 18 after an appropriate risk assessment has been conducted by the Contractor with the Project Manager's approval. The Contractor shall be subject to regular monitoring by the Project Manager that includes monitoring of health, working conditions and hours of work.

Work considered hazardous for children is work that, by its nature or the circumstances in which it is carried out, is likely to jeopardize the health, safety, or morals of children. Such work activities prohibited for children include work:

- (a) with exposure to physical, psychological or sexual abuse;
- (b) underground, underwater, working at heights or in confined spaces;
- (c) with dangerous machinery, equipment or tools, or involving handling or
- (d) transport of heavy loads;
- (e) in unhealthy environments exposing children to hazardous substances, agents, or processes, or to temperatures, noise or vibration damaging to health; or
- (f) under difficult conditions such as work for long hours, during the night or in confinement on the premises of the employer.
- 9.4.16 *Employment Records of Workers*. The Contractor shall keep complete and accurate records of the employment of labor at the Site. The records shall include the names, ages, genders, hours worked, and wages paid to all workers. These records shall be summarized on a monthly basis and submitted to the project Manager.
- 9.4.17 *Workers' Organizations*. In countries where the relevant labor laws recognize workers' rights to form and to join workers' organizations of their choosing and to bargain collectively without interference, the Contractor shall comply with such laws. In such circumstances, the role of legally established workers' organizations and legitimate workers' representatives will be respected, and they will be provided with information needed for meaningful negotiation in a timely manner. Where the relevant labor laws substantially restrict workers' organizations, the Contractor shall enable alternative means for

the Contractor's Personnel to express their grievances and protect their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment. The Contractor shall not seek to influence or control these alternative means. The Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against the Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organizations and collective bargaining or alternative mechanisms. Workers' organizations are expected to fairly represent the workers in the workforce.

9.4.18 *Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity.* The Contractor shall not make decisions relating to the employment or treatment of Contractor's Personnel on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment of Contractor's Personnel on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to any aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, job assignment, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and disciplinary practices.

Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on the inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination. The Contractor shall provide protection and assistance as necessary to ensure non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including for specific groups such as women, people with disabilities, migrant workers and children (of working age in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 9.4.15).

9.4.19 *Contractor's Personnel Grievance Mechanism.* The Contractor shall have a grievance mechanism for Contractor's Personnel, and where relevant the workers' organizations stated in GCC Sub-Clause 9.4.17, to raise workplace concerns. The grievance mechanism shall be proportionate to the nature, scale, risks and impacts of the Contract. The mechanism shall address concerns promptly, using an understandable and transparent process that provides timely feedback to those concerned in a language they understand, without any retribution, and shall operate in an independent and objective manner.

The Contractor's Personnel shall be informed of the grievance mechanism at the time of engagement for the Contract, and the measures put in place to protect them against any reprisal for its use. Measures will be put in place to make the grievance mechanism easily accessible to all Contractor's Personnel.

The grievance mechanism shall not impede access to other judicial or administrative remedies that might be available, or substitute for grievance mechanisms provided through collective agreements.

The grievance mechanism may utilize existing grievance mechanisms, providing that they are properly designed and implemented, address concerns promptly, and are readily accessible to Contractor's Personnel. Existing grievance mechanisms may be supplemented as needed with Contractspecific arrangements.

9.4.20 Training of Contractor's Personnel. The Contractor shall provide appropriate training to relevant Contractor's Personnel on ES aspects of the Contract, including appropriate sensitization on prohibition of SEA and SH, and health and safety training referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 18.2.

> As stated in the Specifications or as instructed by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall also allow appropriate opportunities for the relevant Contractor's Personnel to be trained on ES aspects of the Contract by the Employer's Personnel.

The Contractor shall provide training on SEA and SH, including its prevention, to any of its personnel who has a role to supervise other Contractor's Personnel.

- 10. Employer's and 10.1 The Employer carries the risks which this Contract states are **Contractor's** Employer's risks, and the Contractor carries the risks which this Risks Contract states are Contractor's risks.
 - 11.1 From the Start Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the following are Employer's risks:
 - (a) The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property (excluding the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment), which are due to
 - (i) use or occupation of the Site by the Works or for the purpose of the Works, which is the unavoidable result of the Works or
 - (ii) negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any legal right by the Employer or by any person employed by or contracted to him except the Contractor.

11. Employer's Risks

		(b)	The risk of damage to the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment to the extent that it is due to a fault of the Employer or in the Employer's design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the country where the Works are to be executed.
	has been issued, the		the Completion Date until the Defects Liability Certificate been issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the Works, t, and Materials is an Employer's risk except loss or damage o
		(a)	a Defect which existed on the Completion Date,
		(b)	an event occurring before the Completion Date, which was not itself an Employer's risk, or
		(c)	the activities of the Contractor on the Site after the Completion Date.
12. Contractor's Risks	12.1	been dama Plant	the Starting Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or age to property (including, without limitation, the Works, t, Materials, and Equipment) which are not Employer's are Contractor's risks.
13. Insurance	13.1	and t end dedu	Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the of the Defects Liability Period, in the amounts and ctibles stated in the PCC for the following events which ue to the Contractor's risks:
		(a)	loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials;
		(b)	loss of or damage to Equipment;
		(c)	loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and
		(d)	personal injury or death.
	13.2	Cont appro for c	ties and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the ractor to the Project Manager for the Project Manager's oval before the Start Date. All such insurance shall provide ompensation to be payable in the types and proportions of encies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred.
	13.3	certit whic	e Contractor does not provide any of the policies and ficates required, the Employer may effect the insurance h the Contractor should have provided and recover the iums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due

		to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due.		
	13.4	Alterations to the terms of an insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Project Manager.		
	13.5	Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insuran policies.		
14. Site Data	14.1	1 The Contractor shall be deemed to have examined any Site Data referred to in the PCC , supplemented by any information available to the Contractor.		
15. Contractor to Construct the	15.1	The Contractor shall construct and install the Works i accordance with the Specifications and Drawings.		
Works	15.2	If the Contract specifies that the Contractor shall design any part of the permanent Works, the Contractor shall take into account the Employer's requirements which may include, if stated in the Specifications:		
		(a) designing structural elements of the Works taking into account climate change considerations;		
		 (b) applying the concept of universal access (the concept of universal access means unimpeded access for people of all ages and abilities in different situations and under various circumstances; and 		
		(c) considering the incremental risks of the public's potential exposure to operational accidents or natural hazards, including extreme weather events.		
16. The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date	Be Completed by the Intended Completion	The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the Program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete them by the Intended Completion Date.		
	16.2	The Contractor shall not carry out mobilization to the Site unless the Project Manager gives approval, an approval that shall not be unreasonably delayed, to the measures the Contractor proposes to address environmental and social risks and impacts, which at a minimum shall include applying the Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (MSIPs) and Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel submitted as part of the Bid and agreed as part of the Contract.		
		The Contractor shall submit, to the Project Manager for its approval any additional MSIPs as are necessary to manage the ES risks and impacts of ongoing Works. These MSIPs		

- 17. Approval by the Project 17.1 The Contractor shall submit Specifications and Drawings showing the proposed Permanent/Temporary Works to the Project Manager, for his approval.
 - 17.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Permanent/Temporary Works.
 - 17.3 The Project Manager's approval shall not alter the Contractor's responsibility for design of the Permanent/ Temporary Works.
 - 17.4 The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of the Permanent/ Temporary Works, where required.
 - 17.5 All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Project Manager before this use.
- 18. Health, Safety and Protection of the Environment
- 18.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the protection of the environment and safety of all activities on the Site.
- 18.2 The Contractor shall:
 - (a) comply with all applicable environmental, health and safety regulations and Laws;
 - (b) comply with all applicable environmental, health and safety obligations specified in the Contract; including getting required permits and clearances before start of any activity on site
 - (c) take care for the health and safety of all persons entitled to be on the Site and other places, if any, where the Works are being executed;
 - (d) keep the Site and Works clear of unnecessary obstruction so as to avoid danger to these persons;
 - (e) provide fencing, lighting, safe access, guarding and watching of the site and Works until the issue of the Contract Completion Certificate;
 - (f) provide any Temporary Works (including roadways, footways, guards and fences) which may be necessary, because of the execution of the Works, for the use and protection of the public and of owners and occupiers of adjacent land;

- (g) provide health and safety training of Contractor's Personnel as appropriate and maintain training records;
- (h) actively engage the Contractor's Personnel in promoting understanding, and methods for, implementation of health and safety requirements, as well as in providing information to Contractor's Personnel, training on occupational safety and health, and provision of personal protective equipment without expense to the Contractor's Personnel;
- (i) put in place workplace processes for Contractor's Personnel to report work situations that they believe are not safe or healthy, and to remove themselves from a work situation which they have reasonable justification to believe presents an imminent and serious danger to their life or health.
- (j) Contractor's Personnel who remove themselves from such work situations shall not be required to return to work until necessary remedial action to correct the situation has been taken. Contractor's Personnel shall not be retaliated against or otherwise subject to reprisal or negative action for such reporting or removal;
- (k) where the Employer's Personnel, any other contractors employed by the Employer, and/or personnel of any legally constituted public authorities and private utility companies are employed in carrying out, on or near the site, of any work not included in the Contract, collaborate in applying the health and safety requirements, without prejudice to the responsibility of the relevant entities for the health and safety of their own personnel; and
- (l) establish and implement a system for regular (not less than six-monthly) review of environmental pollution, health and safety performance and the working environment.

Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 16.2, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for its approval a health and safety manual which has been specifically prepared for the Works, the Site and other places (if any) where the Contractor intends to execute the Works.

The health and safety manual shall be in addition to any other similar document required under applicable health and safety regulations and laws.

The health and safety manual shall set out all the health and safety requirements under the Contract,

- (a) which shall include at a minimum:
 - (i) the procedures to establish and maintain a safe working environment without risk to health at all workplaces, machinery, equipment and processes under the control of the Contractor, including control measures for chemical, physical and biological substances and agents;
 - (ii) details of the training to be provided, records to be kept;
 - (iii) the procedures for prevention, preparedness and response activities to be implemented in the case of an emergency event (i.e. an unanticipated incident, arising from both natural and man-made hazards, typically in the form of fire, explosions, leaks or spills, which may occur for a variety of different reasons including failure to implement operating procedures that are designed to prevent their occurrence, extreme weather or lack of early warning);
 - (iv) remedies for adverse impacts such as occupational injuries, deaths, disability and disease;
 - (v) the measures to be taken to avoid or minimize the potential for community exposure to water-borne, water-based, water-related, and vector-borne diseases,
 - (vi) the measures to be implemented to avoid or minimize the spread of communicable diseases (including transfer of Sexually Transmitted Diseases or Infections (STDs), such as HIV virus) and noncommunicable diseases associated with the execution of the Works, taking into consideration differentiated exposure to and higher sensitivity of vulnerable groups. This includes taking measures to avoid or minimize the transmission of communicable diseases that may be associated with the influx of temporary or permanent Contract-related labor;
 - (vii) the policies and procedures on the management and quality of accommodation and welfare facilities if such accommodation and welfare facilities are provided by the Contractor in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 9.4.6; and
- (b) any other requirements stated in the Specification

18.3 Protection of the environment

The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to:

- 18.3.1 protect the environment (both on and off the Site); and
- 18.3.2 limit damage and nuisance to people and property resulting from pollution, noise and other results of the Contractor's operations and/ or activities.

The Contractor shall ensure that emissions, surface discharges, effluent and any other pollutants from the Contractor's activities shall exceed neither the values indicated in the Specifications, nor those prescribed by applicable laws.

In the event of damage to the environment, property and/or nuisance to people, on or off Site as a result of the Contractor's operations, the Contractor shall agree with the Project Manager the appropriate actions and time scale to remedy, as practicable, the damaged environment to its former condition. The Contractor shall implement such remedies at its cost to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.

- **19.** Archaeological 19.1 All fossils, coins, articles of value or antiquity, structures, groups and Geological of structures, and other remains or items of geological, **Findings** or archaeological, paleontological, historical, architectural or **Chance found** religious interest or exquisite fauna, flora found on the Site shall Fauna, Flora be placed under the care and custody of the Employer. The Contractor shall:
 - (a) take all reasonable precautions, including fencing-off the area or site of the finding, to avoid further disturbance and prevent Contractor's Personnel or other persons from removing or damaging any of these findings;
 - train relevant Contractor's Personnel on appropriate (b) actions to be taken in the event of such findings; and
 - (c) implement any other action consistent with the requirements of the Specifications and relevant laws.

The Contractor shall, as soon as practicable after discovery of any such finding, notify the Project Manager of such discoveries and carry out the Project Manager's instructions for dealing with them.

20. Possession of 20.1 The Employer shall give possession of all parts of the Site to the Contractor. If possession of a part is not given by the date stated the Site in the PCC, the Employer shall be deemed to have delayed the

start of the relevant activities, and this shall be a Compensation Event.

21. Access to the Site
 21.1 The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorized by the Project Manager (including the Bank staff or consultants acting on the Bank's behalf, stakeholders and third parties, such as independent experts, local communities, or non-governmental organizations), including to carry out environmental and social audit, as appropriate, access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.

22. Instructions, Inspections and Audits22.1 The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Project Manager which comply with the applicable laws where the Site is located.

- 22.2 The Contractor shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors and subconsultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Works in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 22.3 Inspections & Audit by the Bank

Pursuant to paragraph 2.2 e. of Appendix A to the GCC- Fraud and Corruption, the Contractor shall permit and shall cause its agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the site and/or the accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts, records and other documents audited by auditors appointed by the Bank. The Contractor's and its Subcontractors' and subconsultants' attention is drawn to GCC Sub-Clause 25.1 (Fraud and Corruption) which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures).

23. Appointment of the Adjudicator23.1 The Adjudicator shall be appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor, at the time of the Employer's issuance of the Letter of Acceptance. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer does not agree on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Employer will request the Appointing Authority designated

in the PCC, to appoint the Adjudicator within 14 days of receipt of such request.

- 23.2 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Contractor agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator shall be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Contractor. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Contractor, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority **designated in the PCC** at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.
- 24. Procedure for Disputes24.1 If the Contractor believes that a decision taken by the Project Manager was either outside the authority given to the Project Manager by the Contract or that the decision was wrongly taken, the decision shall be referred to the Adjudicator within 14 days of the notification of the Project Manager's decision.

25. Fraud and

Corruption

- 24.2 The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute.
- 24.3 The Adjudicator shall be paid by the hour at the **rate specified in the PCC**, together with reimbursable expenses of the types **specified in the PCC**, and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Contractor, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision shall be final and binding.
- 24.4 The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the arbitration procedures published by the institution named and, in the place **specified in the PCC.**
- 25.1 The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in Appendix A to the GCC.
 - 25.2 The Employer requires the Contractor to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.

195

26. Stakeholder Engagement

- 26.1 The Contractor shall provide relevant contract- related information, as the Employer and/or Project Manager may reasonably request to conduct Stakeholder engagements. "Stakeholder" refers to individuals or groups who:
 - (i) are affected or likely to be affected by the Contract; and

(ii) may have an interest in the Contract.

The Contractor may also directly participate in Stakeholder engagements, as the Employer and/or Project Manager may reasonably request

- 27. Suppliers (other than Subcontractors)
 27.1 Forced Labor: The Contractor shall take measures to require its suppliers (other than Subcontractors) not to employ or engage forced labor including trafficked persons as described in GCC Sub-Clause 9.4.14. If forced labor/trafficking cases are identified, the Contractor shall take measures to require the suppliers to take appropriate steps to remedy them. Where the supplier does not remedy the situation, the Contractor shall within a reasonable period substitute the supplier with a supplier that is able to manage such risks.
 - 27.2 *Child Labor:* The Contractor shall take measures to require its suppliers (other than Subcontractors) not to employ or engage child labor as described in GCC Sub-Clause 9.4.15. If child labor cases are identified, the Contractor shall take measures to require the suppliers to take appropriate steps to remedy them. Where the supplier does not remedy the situation, the Contractor shall within a reasonable period substitute the supplier with a supplier that is able to manage such risks.
 - 27.3 *Serious Safety Issues:* The Contractor, including its Subcontractors, shall comply with all applicable safety obligations, including as stated in GCC Sub-Clause 18.2. The Contractor shall also take measures to require its suppliers (other than Subcontractors) to adopt procedures and mitigation measures adequate to address safety issues related to their personnel. If serious safety issues are identified, the Contractor shall take measures to require the suppliers to take appropriate steps to remedy them. Where the supplier does not remedy the situation, the Contractor shall within a reasonable period substitute the supplier with a supplier that is able to manage such risks.
 - 27.4 Obtaining natural resource materials in relation to supplier: The Contractor shall obtain natural resource materials from suppliers that can demonstrate, through compliance with the applicable verification and/ or certification requirements, that obtaining such materials is not contributing to the risk of

		significant conversion or significant degradation of natural or critical habitats such as unsustainably harvested wood products, gravel or sand extraction from river beds or beaches.	
		If a supplier cannot continue to demonstrate that obtaining such materials is not contributing to the risk of significant conversion or significant degradation of natural or critical habitats, the Contractor shall within a reasonable period substitute the supplier with a supplier that is able to demonstrate that they are not significantly adversely impacting the habitats.	
28. Code of Conduct	28.1	The Contractor shall have a Code of Conduct for the Contractor's Personnel.	
		The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to ensure that each Contractor's Personnel is made aware of the Code of Conduct including specific behaviors that are prohibited, and understands the consequences of engaging in such prohibited behaviors.	
		These measures include providing instructions and documentation that can be understood by the Contractor's Personnel and seeking to obtain that person's signature acknowledging receipt of such instructions and/or documentation, as appropriate.	
		The Contractor shall also ensure that the Code of Conduct is visibly displayed in multiple locations on the Site and any other place where the Works will be carried out, as well as in areas outside the Site accessible to the local community and project affected people. The posted Code of Conduct shall be provided in languages comprehensible to Contractor's Personnel, Employer's Personnel and the local community.	
		The Contractor's Management Strategy and Implementation Plans shall include appropriate processes for the Contractor to verify compliance with these obligations.	
29. Security of the Site	29.1	The Contractor shall be responsible for the security of the Site, and:	
		(a) for keeping unauthorized persons off the Site;	
		(b) authorized persons shall be limited to the Contractor's Personnel, the Employer's Personnel, and to any other personnel identified as authorized personnel (including the Employer's other contractors on the Site), by a notice from the Employer or the Project Manager to the	

Contractor.

Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 16.2, the Contractor shall submit for the Project Manager's No-objection a security management plan that sets out the security arrangements for the Site

The Contractor shall (i) conduct appropriate background checks on any personnel retained to provide security; (ii) train the security personnel adequately (or determine that they are properly trained) in the use of force (and where applicable, firearms), and appropriate conduct towards Contractor's Personnel, Employer's Personnel and affected communities; and (iii) require the security personnel to act within the applicable Laws and any requirements set out in the Specifications.

The Contractor shall not permit any use of force by security personnel in providing security except when used for preventive and defensive purposes in proportion to the nature and extent of the threat.

In making security arrangements, the Contractor shall also comply with any additional requirements stated in the Specification."

B. Time Control

- 30.1 Within the time stated in the PCC, after the date of the Letter **Progress** of Acceptance, the Contractor shall submit to the Project **Reports** Manager for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works. In the case of a lump-sum contract, the activities in the Program shall be consistent with those in the Activity Schedule. The Project Manager's approval of the Program shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Program and submit it to the Project Manager again at any time. A revised Program shall show the effect of Variations and Compensation Events.
 - 30.2 An update of the Program shall be a program showing the actual progress achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining work, including any changes to the sequence of the activities.
 - 30.3 The Contractor shall monitor progress of the Works and submit to the Project manager progress report and any updated Program showing the actual progress achieved and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining Works, including any changes to the sequence of the activities, at intervals no longer than the period stated in the PCC. If the Contractor does not submit an updated Program within this period, the Project Manager may withhold the amount stated in

30. Program and

the PCC from the next payment certificate and continue to withhold this amount until the next payment after the date on which the overdue Program has been submitted. In the case of lump-sum Contract, the Contractor shall provide an updated Activity Schedule within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager.

- 30.4 Unless otherwise stated in the Specifications, each progress report shall include the Environmental and Social (ES) metrics set out in Appendix B. Progress on EMP & EMoP implementation shall be reported.
- 30.5 In addition to the progress reports, the Contractor shall inform the Project Manager immediately of any allegation, incident or accident in the Site, which has or is likely to have a significant adverse effect on the environment, the affected communities, the public, Employer's Personnel, Project Manager's personnel or Contractor's Personnel. This includes, but is not limited to, any incident or accident causing fatality or serious injury; significant adverse effects or damage to private property; or any allegation of SEA and/or SH. In case of SEA and/or SH, while maintaining confidentiality as appropriate, the type of allegation (sexual exploitation, sexual abuse or sexual harassment), gender and age of the person who experienced the alleged incident should be included in the information.

The Contractor, upon becoming aware of the allegation, incident or accident, shall also immediately inform the Project Manager of any such incident or accident on the Subcontractors' or suppliers' premises relating to the Works which has or is likely to have a significant adverse effect on the environment, the affected communities, the public, Employer's Personnel, or Contractor's, its Subcontractors' and suppliers' personnel. The notification shall provide sufficient detail regarding such incidents or accidents. The Contractor shall provide full details of such incidents or accidents to the Project Manager within the timeframe agreed with the Project Manager.

The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors and suppliers (other than Subcontractors) to immediately notify the Contractor of any incidents or accidents referred to in this Subclause.

31. Extension of the Intended Completion Date
 31.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost.

- 31.2 The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much to extend the Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Project Manager for a decision upon the effect of a Compensation Event or Variation and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give early warning of a delay or has failed to cooperate in dealing with a delay, the delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended Completion Date.
- **32. Acceleration** 32.1 When the Employer wants the Contractor to finish before the Intended Completion Date, the Project Manager shall obtain priced proposals for achieving the necessary acceleration from the Contractor. If the Employer accepts these proposals, the Intended Completion Date shall be adjusted accordingly and confirmed by both the Employer and the Contractor.
 - 32.2 If the Contractor's priced proposals for an acceleration are accepted by the Employer, they are incorporated in the Contract Price and treated as a Variation.
- 33. Delays Ordered by the Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the Works.
- 34. Management Meetings34.1 Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure.
 - 34.2 The Project Manager shall record the business of management meetings and provide copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken shall be decided by the Project Manager either at the management meeting or after the management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting.
- **35. Early Warning** 35.1 The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price, or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
 - 35.2 The Contractor shall cooperate with the Project Manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone

involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the Project Manager.

C. Quality Control

- 36. Identifying Defects36.1 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Project Manager considers may have a Defect.
- 37. Tests37.1 If the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specifications to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect, the test shall be a Compensation Event.
- 38. Correction of Defects
 38.1 The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion, and is defined in the PCC. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
 - 38.2 Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.
- 39. Uncorrected Defects39.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager shall assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor shall pay this amount.

D. Cost Control

40. Contract Price² 40.1 The Contractor shall provide updated Activity Schedules within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager. The Activity Schedule shall contain the priced activities for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Activity Schedule is used to monitor and control the performance of activities on which basis the Contractor will be paid. If payment

² In lump-sum contracts, replace GCC Sub-Clauses 40.1 as follows:

^{40.1} The Contractor shall provide updated Activity Schedules within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager. The Activity Schedule shall contain the priced activities for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Activity Schedule is used to monitor and control the performance of activities on which basis the Contractor will be paid. If payment for materials on site shall be made separately, the Contractor shall show delivery of Materials to the Site separately on the Activity Schedule.

- 41. Changes in the Contract Price³41.1 Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Program or method of working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity Schedule.
- **42. Variations** 42.1 All Variations shall be included in updated Programs⁴ and Activity Schedules produced by the Contractor.
 - 42.2 The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying out the Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall also provide information of any ES risks and impacts of the Variation. The Project Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven (7) days of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and before the Variation is ordered.
 - 42.3 If the Contractor's quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order the Variation and make a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on the Project Manager's own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the Contractor's costs.
 - 42.4 If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation Event.
 - 42.5 The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could have been avoided by giving early warning.
 - 42.6 Not applicable
 - 42.7 Value Engineering: The Contractor may prepare, at its own cost, a value engineering proposal at any time during the performance of the contract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, include the following;
 - (a) the proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements;

³ In lump-sum contracts, replace entire GCC Clause 41 with new GCC Sub-Clause 41.1, as follows:

^{41.1} The Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Program or method of working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity Schedule.

⁴ In lump-sum contracts, add "and Activity Schedules" after "Programs."

		(b)	a full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs (including life cycle cost) the Employer may incur in implementing the value engineering proposal;
		(c)	a description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality; and
		(d)	a description of the proposed work to be performed, a program for its execution and sufficient ES information to enable an evaluation of ES risks and impacts.
			Employer may accept the value engineering proposal if the sal demonstrates benefits that:
		(a)	accelerates the contract completion period; or
		(b)	reduces the Contract Price or the life cycle costs to the Employer; or
		(c)	improves the quality, efficiency, safety or sustainability of the Facilities; or
		(d)	yields any other benefits to the Employer,
		witho	ut compromising the functionality of the Works.
			value engineering proposal is approved by the Employer esults in:
		(a)	a reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Contractor shall be the percentage specified in the PCC of the reduction in the Contract Price; or
		(b)	an increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in life cycle costs due to any benefit described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Contractor shall be the full increase in the Contract Price.
43. Cash Flow 4 Forecasts	3.1	Contr cash differ	the Program or Activity Schedule, ⁵ is updated, the ractor shall provide the Project Manager with an updated flow forecast. The cash flow forecast shall include ent currencies, as defined in the Contract, converted as sary using the Contract exchange rates.
44. Payment 4 Certificates	4.1	staten	Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager monthly nents of the estimated value of the work executed less the lative amount certified previously.
4	4.2		Project Manager shall check the Contractor's monthly nent and certify the amount to be paid to the Contractor.

⁵ In lump-sum contracts, add "or Activity Schedule" after "Program."

- 44.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager.
- 44.4 The value of work executed shall comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule.⁶
- 44.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 44.6 The Project Manager may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.
- 44.7 If the Contractor was, or is, failing to perform any ES obligations or work under the Contract, the value of this work or obligation, as determined by the Project Manager, may be withheld until the work or obligation has been performed, and/or the cost of rectification or replacement, as determined by the Project Manager, may be withheld until rectification or replacement has been completed. Failure to perform includes, but is not limited to the following:
 - (a) failure to comply with any ES obligations or work described in the Employer's Requirements which may include working outside site boundaries, excessive dust, failure to keep public roads in a safe usable condition, damage to offsite vegetation, pollution of water courses from oils or sedimentation, contamination of land e.g. from oils, human waste, damage to archeology or cultural heritage features, air pollution as a result of unauthorized and/or inefficient combustion;
 - (b) failure to regularly review C-ESMP and/or update it in a timely manner to address emerging ES issues, or anticipated risks or impacts.
 - (c) failure to implement the C-ESMP e.g. failure to provide required training or sensitization;
 - (d) failing to have appropriate consents/permits prior to undertaking Works or related activities.
 - (e) failure to submit ES report/s (as described in Appendix B), or failure to submit such reports in a timely manner.
 - (f) failure to implement Biomining and Bioremediation as instructed by the Project Manager within the specified

⁶ In lump-sum contracts, replace this paragraph with the following: "The value of work executed shall comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule."

timeframe (e.g.Biomining and Bioremediation addressing non-compliance/s).

- 45. Payments 45.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments and retention. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 28 days of the date of each certificate. If the Employer makes a late payment, the Contractor shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made up to the date when the late payment is made at the prevailing rate of interest for commercial borrowing for each of the currencies in which payments are made.
 - 45.2 If an amount certified is increased in a later certificate or as a result of an award by the Adjudicator or an Arbitrator, the Contractor shall be paid interest upon the delayed payment as set out in this clause. Interest shall be calculated from the date upon which the increased amount would have been certified in the absence of dispute.
 - 45.3 Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions shall be paid or charged in the proportions of currencies comprising the Contract Price.
 - 45.4 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in shall not be paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.
 - 46.1 The following shall be Compensation Events:

46. Compensation

Events

- (a) The Employer does not give access to a part of the Site by the Site Possession Date pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 20.1.
- (b) The Employer modifies the Schedule of Other Contractors in a way that affects the work of the Contractor under the Contract.
- (c) The Project Manager orders a delay or does not issue Drawings, Specifications, or instructions required for execution of the Works on time.
- (d) The Project Manager instructs the Contractor to uncover or to carry out additional tests upon work, which is then found to have no Defects.
- (e) The Project Manager unreasonably does not approve a subcontract to be let.
- (f) Ground conditions are substantially more adverse than could reasonably have been assumed before issuance of

the Letter of Acceptance from the information issued to bidders (including the Site Investigation Reports), from information available publicly and from a visual inspection of the Site.

- (g) The Project Manager gives an instruction for dealing with an unforeseen condition, caused by the Employer, or additional work required for safety or other reasons.
- (h) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the Employer does not work within the dates and other constraints stated in the Contract, and they cause delay or extra cost to the Contractor.
- (i) The advance payment is delayed.
- (j) The effects on the Contractor of any of the Employer's Risks.
- (k) The Project Manager unreasonably delays issuing a Certificate of Completion.
- 46.2 If a Compensation Event would cause additional cost or would prevent the work being completed before the Intended Completion Date, the Contract Price shall be increased and/or the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much the Contract Price shall be increased and whether and by how much the Intended Completion Date shall be extended.
- 46.3 As soon as information demonstrating the effect of each Compensation Event upon the Contractor's forecast cost has been provided by the Contractor, it shall be assessed by the Project Manager, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly. If the Contractor's forecast is deemed unreasonable, the Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price based on the Project Manager's own forecast. The Project Manager shall assume that the Contractor shall react competently and promptly to the event.
- 46.4 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation to the extent that the Employer's interests are adversely affected by the Contractor's not having given early warning or not having cooperated with the Project Manager.
- 47. Tax47.1 The Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price if taxes, duties, and other levies are changed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the Contract and the date of the last Completion certificate. The adjustment shall be the change in the amount of tax payable by the Contractor, provided

207

such changes are not already reflected in the Contract Price or are a result of GCC Clause 49.

48. Currencies48.1 Where payments are made in currencies other than the currency of the Employer's country specified in the PCC, the exchange rates used for calculating the amounts to be paid shall be the exchange rates stated in the Contractor's Bid.

49. Price Adjustment
49.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for in the PCC. If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate, before deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each currency. A separate formula of the type specified below applies to each Contract currency:

$P_c = A_c + B_c Imc/Ioc$

where:

50. Retention

P_c is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency "c."

 A_c and B_c are coefficients⁷ specified in the PCC, representing the nonadjustable and adjustable portions, respectively, of the Contract Price payable in that specific currency "c;" and

Imc is the index prevailing at the end of the month being invoiced and Ioc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for inputs payable: both in the specific currency "c."

- 49.2 If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be corrected, and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.
- 50.1 The Employer shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the proportion **stated in the PCC** until Completion of the whole of the Works.
 - 50.2 Upon the issue of a Certificate of Completion of the Works by the Project Manager, in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 57.1, half the total amount retained shall be repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed, and the

⁷ The sum of the two coefficients A_c and B_c should be 1 (one) in the formula for each currency. Normally, both coefficients shall be the same in the formulae for all currencies, since coefficient A, for the nonadjustable portion of the payments, is a very approximate figure (usually 0.15) to take account of fixed cost elements or other nonadjustable components. The sum of the adjustments for each currency are added to the Contract Price.

- 51. Liquidated Damages
 51.1 The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the PCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the PCC. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.
 - 51.2 If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Project Manager shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Contractor shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in GCC Sub-Clause 45.1.
- 52. Bonus52.1 The Contractor shall be paid a Bonus calculated at the rate per calendar day stated in the PCC for each day (less any days for which the Contractor is paid for acceleration) that the Completion is earlier than the Intended Completion Date. The Project Manager shall certify that the Works are complete, although they may not be due to be complete.
- 53. Advance Payment
 53.1 The Employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the PCC by the date stated in the PCC, against provision by the Contractor of an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in a form and by a bank acceptable to the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. The Guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the Guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest shall not be charged on the advance payment.
 - 53.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant, Materials, and mobilization expenses required specifically for execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Project Manager.
 - 53.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, following the schedule of completed percentages of

the Works on a payment basis. No account shall be taken of the advance payment or its repayment in assessing valuations of work done, Variations, price adjustments, Compensation Events, Bonuses, or Liquidated Damages.

- 54. Securities
 54.1 The Performance Security shall be provided to the Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of Acceptance and shall be issued in an amount specified in the PCC, by a bank or surety acceptable to the Employer, and denominated in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract Price is payable. The Performance Security shall be valid until a date 28 days from the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion in the case of a Bank Guarantee, and until one year from the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion in the case of a Performance Bond.
- **55. Dayworks** 55.1 If applicable, the Dayworks rates in the Contractor's Bid shall be used only when the Project Manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
 - 55.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Contractor on forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done.
 - 55.3 The Contractor shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms.
- **56. Cost of Repairs** 56.1 Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's acts or omissions.

E. Finishing the Contract

- **57. Completion** 57.1 The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a Certificate of Completion of the Works, and the Project Manager shall do so upon deciding that the whole of the Works is completed.
- **58. Taking Over** 58.1 The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within seven days of the Project Manager's issuing a certificate of Completion.
- **59. Final Account** 59.1 The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor

considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 56 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Project Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.

- 60. Operating and Maintenance Manuals60.1 If "as built" Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the PCC.
 - 60.2 If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates **stated in the PCC** pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 60.1, or they do not receive the Project Manager's approval, the Project Manager shall withhold the amount **stated in the PCC** from payments due to the Contractor.
- **61. Termination** 61.1 The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract.
 - 61.2 Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - (a) the Contractor stops work for 28 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Program and the stoppage has not been authorized by the Project Manager;
 - (b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 28 days;
 - (c) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
 - (d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 84 days of the date of the Project Manager's certificate;
 - (e) the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Project Manager;

- (f) the Contractor does not maintain a Security, which is required;
- (g) the Contractor has delayed the completion of the Works by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid, as **defined in the PCC**; or
- (h) if the Contractor, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as defined in paragraph 2.2 a of the Appendix A to the GCC, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Employer may, after giving fourteen (14) days written notice to the Contractor, terminate the Contract and expel him from the Site.
- 61.3 Notwithstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for convenience.
- 61.4 If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible.
- 61.5 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the Project Manager for a cause other than those listed under GCC Sub-Clause 61.2 above, the Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.
- 62. Payment upon Termination
 62.1 If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as specified in the PCC. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer.
 - 62.2 If the Contract is terminated for the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.

63. Property	All Materials on the Site, Plant, Equipment, Temporary Works, and Works shall be deemed to be the property of the Employer if the Contract is terminated because of the Contractor's default.		
64. Release from Performance	If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor, the Project Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards to which a commitment was made.		
65. Suspension of Bank Loan or Credit	55.1 In the event that the Bank suspends the Loan or Credit to the Employer, from which part of the payments to the Contractor are being made:		
	(a) The Employer is obligated to notify the Contractor o such suspension within 7 days of having received the Bank's suspension notice.		
	(b) If the Contractor has not received sums due to it within the 28 days for payment provided for in GCC Sub Clause 45.1, the Contractor may immediately issue a 14 day termination notice.		

APPENDIX A TO GENERAL CONDITIONS

Fraud and Corruption

(Text in this Appendix shall not be modified)

1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - v. "obstructive practice" is:
 - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or

- (b) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.
- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring mis-procurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;8 (ii) to be a nominated9 sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders(applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect¹⁰ all accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

⁸ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

⁹ A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its prequalification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

¹⁰ Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

APPENDIX B

Environmental and Social (ES) Metrics for Progress Reports

[Note to Employer: the following metrics may be amended to reflect the specifics of the Contract. The Employer shall ensure that the metrics provided are appropriate for the Works and impacts/key issues identified in the environmental and social assessment]

Metrics for regular reporting:

- a. environmental incidents or non-compliances with contract requirements, including contamination, pollution or damage to ground or water supplies;
- b. health and safety incidents, accidents, injuries that require treatment and all fatalities;
- c. Labor compliance, GBV status and action taken
- *d. interactions with regulators: identify agency, dates, subjects, outcomes (report the negative if none);*
- e. Status of Community/stakeholder consultations as per the citizen engagement plan provided by KSWMP.
- f. status of all permits and agreements:
 - i. work permits: number required, number received, actions taken for those not received;
 - ii. status of permits and consents:
 - list areas/facilities with permits required dates of application, dates issued (actions to follow up if not issued), dates submitted to resident engineer (or equivalent), status of area (waiting for permits, working, abandoned without reclamation, decommissioning plan being implemented, etc.);
 - list areas with landowner agreements required, dates of agreements, dates submitted to resident engineer (or equivalent);
 - identify major activities undertaken in each area in the reporting period and highlights of environmental and social protection (land clearing, boundary marking, topsoil salvage, biomining, bioremediation, storage, transport & disposal of retrieved waste fractions, traffic management, decommissioning planning, decommissioning implementation);

- g. health and safety supervision:
 - i. safety officer: number days worked, number of full inspections & partial inspections, reports to construction/project management;
 - ii. No: & type of precautions taken for high energy hazards
 - iii. number of workers, work hours, metric of PPE use (percentage of workers with full personal protection equipment (PPE), partial, etc.), worker violations observed (by type of violation, PPE or otherwise), warnings given, repeat warnings given, follow-up actions taken (if any);
 - iv. Incidents: no: and type of fatalities including specifically on high energy hazards
- h. worker accommodations:
 - i. No; of worker camps/other arrangements by the contractor; facilities therein & environmental management measures implemented as per regulatory requirements & good practices, number of migrant workers housed in accommodations, number of locals;
 - ii. date of last inspection, and highlights of inspection including status of accommodations' compliance with national and local law and good practice, including sanitation, space, etc.;
 - iii. actions taken to recommend/require improved conditions, or to improve conditions.
- *i.* gender (for migrant workers and locals separately): number of female workers, percentage of workforce, gender issues raised and dealt with (cross-reference grievances or other sections as needed);
- j. training:
 - i. number of new workers, number receiving induction training, dates of induction training;
 - ii. number and dates of toolbox talks, number of workers receiving Occupational Health and Safety (OHS), environmental and social training;
 - iii. number and dates of communicable diseases (including STDs) sensitization and/or training, no. workers receiving training (in the reporting period and in the past); same questions for gender sensitization, flag person training.
 - number and date of SEA and SH prevention sensitization and/or training events, including number of workers receiving training on Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel (in the reporting period and in the past), etc.

- k. environmental and social supervision:
 - i. environmental expert: days worked, areas inspected and numbers of inspections of each (work/ activity sites, disposal areas, camp, accommodations), highlights of activities/findings (including violations of environmental practices/ EMP, actions taken), reporting the findings
 - ii. sociologist: days worked, number of partial and full site inspections (by area: road section, work camp, accommodations, clinic, HIV/AIDS center, community centers, etc.), highlights of activities (including violations of social requirements observed, actions taken), reports to social specialist/construction/site management; and
 - iii. community liaison person(s): days worked, number of people met, highlights of activities (issues raised, etc.), reports to social specialist /construction/site management.
- *l. Grievances*: list new grievances (e.g. number of allegations of SEA and SH) received in the reporting period and number of unresolved past grievances by date received, complainant's age and sex, how received, to whom referred to for action, resolution and date (if completed), data resolution reported to complainant, any required follow-up (Cross-reference other sections as needed):
 - i. Worker grievances;
 - ii. Community grievances
- m. Traffic, road safety and vehicles/equipment:
 - i. traffic and road safety incidents and accidents involving project vehicles & equipment: provide date, location, damage, cause, follow-up;
 - traffic and road safety incidents and accidents involving or property (also reported under immediate metrics): provide date, location, damage, cause, follow-up;
 - iii. overall condition of vehicles/equipment (subjective judgment by environmental Specialist); non-routine repairs and maintenance needed to improve safety and/or environmental performance (to control smoke, etc.).
- n. Environmental mitigations and issues (what has been done):
 - i. dust: number of working bowsers, number of waterings/day, number of complaints, warnings given by environmental specialist, actions taken to resolve;

- ii. erosion control: controls implemented by location, status of water bodies, environmental expert inspections and results, actions taken to resolve issues, emergency repairs needed to control erosion/sedimentation;
- iii. spill clean-ups, if any: material spilled, location, amount, actions taken, material disposal (report all spills that result in water or soil contamination.

o. compliance:

- i. compliance status for conditions of all relevant agreements/ consents/ permits, for the Work, statement of compliance or listing of issues and actions taken (or to be taken) to reach compliance;
- Compliance on a) incident reporting (indicative serious, severe), b) Root Cause Analysis (RCA) & c) Corrective Action Plans (CAPs) within suggested time periods & implementation of CAP
- iii. compliance status of C-ESMP/MSIP requirements including storage, disposal of wastes, fire safety, leachate & drainage management: statement of compliance or listing of issues and actions taken (or to be taken) to reach compliance
- iv. compliance status of SEA and SH prevention and response action plan: statement of compliance or listing of issues and actions taken (or to be taken) to reach compliance
- v. compliance status of Health and Safety Management Plan re: statement of compliance or listing of issues and actions taken (or to be taken) to reach compliance

other unresolved issues from previous reporting periods related to environmental and social: continued violations, continued failure of equipment, continued lack of vehicle covers, spills not dealt.

Appendix-C to General Conditions Design Obligations

1. General Design Obligations

The Contractor shall carry out, and be responsible for, the design of the Works. The design obligation shall be as per criteria and conditions mentioned in Employer's Requirement. The Contractor undertakes that the design, the Contractor's Documents, the execution and the completed Works will be in accordance with the Laws in the Country

2. Contractor's Documents

The Contractors Documents shall comprise the technical documents specified in the Employers Requirements including but not limited to Detailed Engineering and Design, Survey Reports, Work Plan and Implementation Schedule. In addition, the contractor shall also submit all designs, plans and reports as stated in the Employer's requirement

3. Design Errors

If errors, omissions, ambiguities, inconsistencies, inadequacies or other defects are found in the Contractor's Documents, they and the Works shall be corrected at the Contractor's cost, notwithstanding any consent or approval under this Appendix.

Section IX - Particular Conditions of Contract

Except where otherwise specified, all Particular Conditions of Contract should be filled in by the Employer prior to issuance of the bidding document. Schedules and reports to be provided by the Employer should be annexed.

A. General			
GCC 1.1 (d)	The financing institution is: The World Bank		
GCC 1.1 (r)	The Employer is Project Director, Kerala Solid Waste Management Project		
GCC 1.1 (v)	The Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works shall be 270 days from the date of signing of contract agreement.		
GCC 1.1 (y)	The Project Manager is Shall be provided after contract signing		
GCC 1.1 (aa)	The Site means the places where the Permanent Works are to be executed, and any other places specified in the Contract as forming part of the Site, is located at <i>[insert address of Site]</i> and is defined in drawings No. <i>[insert numbers]</i>		
GCC 1.1 (dd)	The Start Date shall be <i>reckoned from the date of signing of contract agreement</i>		
GCC 1.1 (hh)	The Works consist of [insert brief summary, including relationship to other contracts under the Project]. Identification number of Contract is		
GCC 1.1 (jj)	GCC 1.1 (jj) is replaced with the following: "Key Personnel are the Contractor's personnel named in GCC 9.1 of the Particular Conditions of Contract."		
GCC 2.2	Sectional Completions are: Not Applicable		
GCC 2.3(i)	The following documents also form part of the Contract:		
	S. No. Document Description of the document		
	1.Work MethodologyWork methodology given in bid amended as per comments of employer given in letter of acceptance.		

	2. Quality control	Quality control procedures and assurance plans given in the bid and amended as per comments of Employer given in letter of acceptance.	
	3. Fraud and Corruption	Appendix A – Fraud and Corruption	
	4. Environment al and Social	Appendix B - Environmental and Social (ES) Metrics for Progress Reports.	
	5. JV Agreement	Joint Venture Agreement (for JVs only).	
GCC 3.1	The following is inserted	ed as a sub-clause at the end of GCC 3.1:	
	"Salient features of major labour and other laws that are applicable to construction industry in India are given as Appendix 1 to these General Conditions of Contract."		
	The language of the con	ntract is <i>English</i> .	
	The law that applies to the Contract are the laws of Union of India.		
GCC 4.1	The following is inserted as a sub-paragraph at the end of GCC 4.1:		
	"However, if the Project Manager is required, under the rules and regulations and orders of the Employer, to obtain approval of some other authorities for specific actions, he will so obtain the approval. Provided further that any requisite approval shall be deemed to have been given by the Employer for any such authority exercised by the Project Manager."		
GCC 5.1	The Project manager <i>may</i> delegate any of his duties and responsibilities.		
GCC 6.1	The following is inserted at the end of GCC 6.1:		
	"All oral instructions shall be confirmed in writing in seven working days."		
GCC 7	The first sentence of GCC 7. 1 is modified as: Subcontracting is not allowed		
GCC 7.1	Not used		
GCC 8.1	Not Used		
GCC 9	The following is inserted as a sub-clause at the end of GCC 9.2:		
	site within seven days a	the contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the and has no further connection with the work in the or shall appoint a suitable replacement within 28 days	

or earlier as may be agreed to between the Project Manager and the Contractor." The following sentence is deleted from first paragraph of GCC 9.4.1: "The Contractor is encouraged, to the extent practicable and reasonable, to employ staff and labor with appropriate qualifications and experience from sources within the Country." GCC 9.4.3 and GCC 9.4.4 are deleted. The following sub-clauses are inserted at the end of GCC 9.4: "9.5 The Contractor shall not employ any retired Gazetted officer who has either not completed two years after the date of retirement or has not obtained permission from the Government authorities for employment with the Contractor¹. 9.6 During continuance of the Contract, the Contractor and his Sub-Contractors shall abide at all times by all existing labour enactments and rules made there under, regulations, notifications and bye laws of the State or Central Government or local authority and any other labour laws (including rules), regulations, bye laws that may be passed or notification that may be issued under any labour law prevailing on the Base Date either by the State or the Central Government or the local authority. The Contractor shall keep the Employer indemnified in case any action is taken against the Employer by the competent authority on account of contraventions including amendments. If the Employer is caused to pay or reimburse, such amounts as may be necessary to cause or observe, or for non-observance of the provisions stipulated in the notifications/bye laws/Acts/Rules/regulations including amendments, if any, on the part of the Contractor, the Project Manager/ Employer shall have the right to deduct any money due to the Contractor including his amount of performance security and if applicable, the Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security. The Employer/ Project Manager shall also have right to recover from the Contractor any sum required or estimated to be required for making good the loss or damage suffered by the Employer. 9.7 The employees of the Contractor and the Sub-Contractor in no case shall be treated as the employees of the Employer at any point of time. 9.8 The Contractor shall duly comply with the provisions of the Apprentices Act 1961 (III of 1961) and the rules made there under, and comply, failure or neglect to shall be subject to all liabilities and penalties provided in the said Act and Rules."

¹Based on Government Directives.

GCC 9.1	Contrac		Key Personnel ar	by the Employer prior to ad equipment as indicated
GCC 13.1	The contractor shall insure all the Plant, Machinery and Manpower at all times during the project duration and shall indemnify the employer against any loses whatever during the entire project duration			
	S.No.	Description	Minimum cover for Insurance	Maximum deductible for Insurance
	(i)	Works and Plant and Materials		vith the statutory oplicable in India
	(ii)	Loss or damage to Equipment		
	(iii)	Other Property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment)		
	(iv)	Personal injury or death insurance: a) for other people;		
		b) for Contractor's Employees		
GCC 14.1	Site Data are: [list Site Data]as provided in Site Information and online dat repository mentioned in 'Site Information'			
GCC 15.1	GCC 15.1 is replaced with the following:"The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings and as per instructions of Project Manager."			
GCC 18 (add new 18.3.3)	The following is inserted as a new sub-clause 18.3.3: "18.3.3 During continuance of the contract, the contractor and his sub-			
ris.s.s During continuance of the contract, the con- contractors shall abide at all times by all exi- environmental protection and rules made the notifications and by-laws of the State or Cer- authorities and other law, bye-law, regulation notification that may be issued in this respec- Central Government or the local authority.			isting enactments on hereunder, regulations, entral Government, or local ons that may be passed or ect in future by the State or	

	major laws are given in Appendix 1 to the General Conditions of		
	Contract."		
GCC 20.1	The Site Possession Date(s) shall be: [insert location(s) and date(s)]		
	The Site Possession Dates shall be:		
	As per approved work plan.		
GCC 23	The following is inserted as a new sub-clause 23.1.1:		
	"23.1.1 The Adjudicator should be in position before "notice to proceed with work" is issued to the Contractor and an agreement should be signed with the Adjudicator jointly by the Employer and the Contractor in the form attached – Appendix 3."		
GCC 23.1 & GCC 23.2	Name of the agreed Adjudicator It will be notified before signing of contract agreement		
	Appointing Authority for the Adjudicator: <i>Project Director, Kerala Solid</i> <i>Waste Management Project</i>		
	[Note: if ITB 51 provides for an Adjudicator from list provided by an Institution, insert the name of the same institution as the appointing authority]		
GCC 24.3	In the first sentence in GCC 24.3, the words "The Adjudicator shall be paid by the hour at the rate" are replaced by the words "The Adjudicator shall be paid daily at the rate"		
GCC 24.4	The procedure for adhoc arbitration will be as follows:		
	 (a) In case of Dispute or difference arising between the Employer and a Contractor relating to any matter arising out of or connected with this agreement, such disputes or difference shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The arbitral tribunal shall consist of 3 Arbitrators one each to be appointed by the Employer and the Contractor. The third Arbitrator shall be chosen by the two Arbitrators so appointed by the Parties and shall act as Presiding Arbitrator. In case of failure of the two Arbitrators appointed by the parties to reach upon a consensus within a period of 30 days from the appointment of the Arbitrator appointed subsequently, the Presiding Arbitrator shall be appointed by the* Indian Council of Arbitration/ President of the Institution of Engineers (India)/The International Centre for Alternative Disputes Resolution (India). 		

(b)	If one of the parties fails to appoint its Arbitrator in pursuance of sub- clause (a) above within 30 days after receipt of the notice of the appointment of its Arbitrator by the other party, then the *Indian Council of Arbitration/President of the Institution of Engineers (India)/The International Centre for Alternative Disputes Resolution (India), both in cases of Foreign Contractor as well as Indian Contractor, shall appoint the Arbitrator. A certified copy of the order of the* Indian Council of Arbitration/President of the Institution of Engineers (India)/The International Centre for Alternative Disputes Resolution (India), making such an appointment shall be furnished to each of the parties.
(c)	Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after completion of the Works, provided that the obligations of the Employer, the Project Manager, the Contractor and the Adjudicator shall not be altered by reason of the arbitration being conducted during the progress of the Works.
(d)	Arbitration proceedings shall be held at Trivandrum, Kerala, and the language of the arbitration proceedings and that of all documents and communications between the parties shall be English.
(e)	The decision of the majority of Arbitrators shall be final and binding upon both parties. The cost and expenses of Arbitration proceedings will be paid as determined by the arbitral tribunal. However, the expenses incurred by each party in connection with the preparation, presentation, etc. of its proceedings as also the fees and expenses paid to the Arbitrator appointed by such party or on its behalf shall be borne by each party itself.
(f)	Where the value of the contract is Rs. 50 million and below, the disputes or differences arising shall be referred to the Sole Arbitrator. The Sole Arbitrator should be appointed by agreement between the parties; failing such agreement, by the appointing authority, namely the * Indian Council of Arbitration/President of the Institution of Engineers (India)/The International Centre for Alternative Disputes Resolution (India).
(g)	The Arbitrator should give final award within120days of starting of the proceedings
(h)	Performance under the contract shall continue during the arbitration proceedings and payments due to the contractor by the Employer shall not be withheld, unless they are the subject matter of the arbitration proceedings.

B. Time Control
The Contractor shall submit for approval a Program for the Works within 14 days of delivery of the Letter of Acceptance.
Any revision in Program should only be agreed in writing.
The period between Program updates is 21 days.
The amount to be withheld for late submission of an updated Program is <i>Rs. 500,000</i> .
The period for submission of progress reports is 21 days.
GCC 31.1 is replaced with the following:
"31.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date including milestones if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date as per the agreed milestones without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost."
In GCC 31.2, replace the words "Intended Completion Date" at the first occurrence by the words "Intended Completion Date/ Milestones"; and at the second occurrence by the words "Intended Completion Date/ Milestone".
GCC 34.1 is replaced with the following:
"Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting (which will be held at the place indicated in PCC . The periodicity shall be fixed by Project Manager/ Contractor jointly). The business of a management meeting shall be to review the progress of Work with reference to the Work program given in accordance with GCC 30.1, the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure."

GCC 30.1

GCC 30.3

GCC 31

	In GCC 31.2, replace the words "Intended Completion Date" at the first occurrence by the words "Intended Completion Date/ Milestones"; and at the second occurrence by the words "Intended Completion Date/ Milestone".
GCC 34	GCC 34.1 is replaced with the following:
	"Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting (which will be held at the place indicated in PCC . The periodicity shall be fixed by Project Manager/ Contractor jointly). The business of a management meeting shall be to review the progress of Work with reference to the Work program given in accordance with GCC 30.1, the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure."
GCC 34.1	Venue of management meeting will be Trivandrum, Kerala
	The management meetings shall be held at intervals of every month.
	C. Quality Control
GCC 36	The following sub-clause is inserted at the end of GCC 36.1:

	"36.2 The contractor shall permit the Employer's Technical auditor to check the contractor's work and notify the Project Manager and Contractor of any defects that are found. Such a check shall not affect the Contractor's or the Project Manager's responsibility as defined in the Contract Agreement."
GCC 37	The following sub-clauses are inserted before GCC 37.1, and GCC 37.1 is re- numbered as GCC 37.3:
	"GCC 37.1 The Contractor shall institute Quality Assurance (QA) and Quality Control (QC) systems in accordance with Quality Assurance Plan to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the Contract as approved by the Project Manager. Compliance with the QA/QC systems shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his duties obligations or responsibilities under the Contract.
	GCC 37.2 The Contractor shall provide all apparatus, assistance, documents and other information, electricity, equipment, fuel, consumables, instruments, labour, materials, and suitably qualified and experienced staff, as are necessary to carry out the specified tests efficiently."
GCC 38.1	The Defects Liability Period is: 120 days
GCC 39.1	The following notes are added at the end of GCC 39.1: "Note: 1. Where in certain cases, the technical specifications provide for acceptance of works within specified tolerance limits at reduced rates, Project Manager will certify payments to Contractor accordingly.
	2. Where the failure to correct a particular defect within the specified time is considered as a fundamental breach of contract a notice should be given to the contractor as stated in GCC 61.2(e)."
	D. Cost Control
GCC 41	GCC 41.1 is replaced with the following, and existing GCC 41.2 is renumbered as GCC 41.3:
	"41.1 If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item by more or less than 20 percent of the indicative Total Quantity of the Cluster (Cumulative quantity of Legacy Waste in 08 Dumpsites of the ULBs in Kerala), the Project Manager shall adjust the rate to allow for the change.
	(a) <u>If the final Quantity is more than 20% of the Indicative Total</u> <u>quantity of the Legacy waste in 08 dumpsites</u>
L	dentries, of the Legacy induce at the datappited

The project manager/employer shall revise lower rate in case of variation beyond (+) 20% of the total indicative legacy waste quantity in 08 dumpsites. The rate will be decreased by 5% for every 10% increase in the quantity beyond the (+) 20% variation. The rate will freeze at maximum of 20% decrease from the quoted price. The variation in the rate shall be applicable only on the variation quantity. The variation shall be calculated only on the cumulative variation of the quantity in the existing dumpsites in 08 ULBs and not on individual quantity variation in respective dumpsites within the ULB. Also, the variation in price shall only effect on finalized unit rate for 'Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost etc. at existing Dumpsites ((i.e. Legacy Waste Processing only through Biomining and bioremediation) at existing Dumpsites in 08 ULBs in Kerala'. The rate for other activities shall be firm as finalized irrespective of the quantity variation

If the final Quantity is less than 80% of the Indicative Total quantity of the Legacy in the 08 dumpsites.

The project manager/ employer shall revise higher rate in case of variation beyond less than 80% of the total indicative quantity of legacy waste in 08 dumpsites. The rate will be increased by 5% for every 10% decrease in the quantity beyond the (-) 20% variation. The rate will freeze at maximum of 20% increase from the quoted price. The variation in the rate shall be applicable only on the variation quantity. The variation shall be calculated only on the cumulative variation of the quantity in existing dumpsites in 08 ULBs and not on individual quantity variation in respective dumpsites within the ULB. Also, the variation in price shall only effect on finalized unit rate for 'Biomining of Legacy Waste and recovery of various fractions such as recyclables, RDF, inert, compost etc. at existing Dumpsites (i.e. Waste only through Biomining Legacy Processing and bioremediation). at existing Dumpsites in 08 ULBs in Kerala'. The rate for other activities shall be firm as finalized irrespective of the quantity variation

41.2 The Project Manager shall not adjust rates from changes in quantities if
thereby the Accepted Contract Amount is exceeded by more than 15
percent, except with the prior approval of the Employer."

GCC 42	In GCC 42.2, Deleted
GCC 42.7	Provisions related to Value Engineering do not apply.
GCC 43.1	The second sentence in GCC 43.1 is replaced with the following:
	"The cash flow forecast shall be in Indian Rupees."

GCC 44	At the end of GCC 44.1 after the word 'previously', the following words are added:
	"alongwith details of measurement of the quantity of works executed in a tabular form approved by the Project Manager"
	At the end of GCC 44.2 after the words 'the Contractor', the following words are added:
	"after taking into account any credit or debit for the month in question in respect of materials for the works in the relevant amount and under conditions set forth in GCC Sub-Clause 53.1 (Secured Advance)"
GCC 45	GCC 45.1 is replaced with the following:
	"Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments, retention, other recoveries in terms of contract & taxes to be deducted at source [TDS] as per applicable law. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 28 days of the date of each certificate. If the Employer makes a late payment, the Contractor shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made up to the date when the late payment is made at the rate stated in the PCC ."
GCC 45.1	Interest rate for Delayed payment shall be the Prime Lending Rate (PLR) issued by the State Bank of India (SBI) as on the date of signing of contract agreement.
GCC 45.3	All payments (and deductions) shall be paid or charged in Indian Rupees.
GCC 45.5	Deleted
GCC 47	The GCC 47.1 is replaced with following clause:
	"47.1 The rates quoted by the Contractor shall be deemed to be inclusive of all taxes and levies that the Contractor will have to pay for the performance of this Contract except GST. The GST, if applicable, shall be payable extra to the contractor. The Employer will perform such duties in regard to the deduction of such taxes at source [TDS] as per applicable law."
	In first line of the re-numbered GCC 47.2, replace the words 'the date 28 days before' with the words 'the deadline for'.
GCC 48	All payments shall be made in Indian Rupees.
GCC 49	GCC 49.1 is Deleted

GCC 49.1	Price Adjustment:
	The contract " <i>is not</i> " subject to price adjustment in accordance with G.C.C. Clause 49
GCC 50.1	The proportion of payments retained (Retention Money) shall be 2.5% from each gross bill amount subject to the maximum of 2.5% of accepted contract price.
GCC 50.2	The last line of GCC 50.2 is replaced with the following:
	"On completion of the whole works the Contractor may substitute the balance retention money with an "on demand" Bank guarantee."
GCC 51	In the first sentence of GCC 51.1, the following words are inserted after the words 'Intended Completion Date':
	"(for the whole of the works or the milestones as stated in the PCC)"
	The following is inserted as a sub-paragraph at the end of GCC 51.1:
	"Time is the essence of the contract and payment or deduction of liquidated damages shall not relieve the contractor from his obligation to complete the work as per agreed Work program and milestones, or from any of the Contractor's other obligations and liabilities under the contract."
	In the first sentence in GCC 51.2 the following words are inserted after the words 'Intended Completion Date':
	"including milestones"

		e maximum amount of lic % of the accepted Contra	act Price.	
	Milestone	Activity to be completed	Time Period for Completion from Signing of Agreement in number of Days	Liquidated Damage
	01	To dispose of cumulative 15 % of Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity*	75	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
	02	To dispose of cumulative 50 % Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	145	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
	03	To dispose of cumulative 65 % of Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	175	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
	04	To dispose of cumulative 80 % of Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	205	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
	05	To dispose of cumulative 100 % Estimated Legacy Waste Quantity	245	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount
	06	Dispose of any balance fraction, if any, as instructed by the employer and profiling the site to surrounding ground level with use of recovered fraction in	270	0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount

	Note:
	 The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works is 10% of the accepted Contract Price beyond the contract may attract termination as per GCC clause 61 The liquidated damages recovered against interim milestone shall be credited to the contractor if the final milestone is achieved within stipulated timeline If the quantity of waste will be more than estimated quantity, then Bidder shall be responsible for processing complete legacy waste for which contract period may be extended on pro-rata basis. The Liquidated Damage for the additional quantity of legacy waste shall be applicable as per the rate stipulated in table above i.e. @0.11% per day of the accepted contract amount reckoned from the end date of the extended pro-rated timeline
GCC 52.1	Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0.14% per day for each day of early
	completion of the work from intended completion date. The maximum amount of Bonus for the whole of the Works is 10% of the final Contract Price ² .
GCC 53	No Advance Payment Shall be made
GCC 53.1	Not Applicable
GCC 54	GCC 54.1 is replaced with the following:
	"The Performance Security and an Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security shall be provided to the Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of Acceptance and shall be issued in the amounts specified in the PCC , and shall be issued by a Nationalized or Scheduled bank in India. The Performance Security including additional security for unbalanced bids, and the ES Performance Security, shall be valid until a date 28 days from the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion."
GCC 54.1	The Performance Security amount is 4% (four percent) of the Accepted Contract Amount plus _additional one percentage for each percentage of the quoted amount below 10%(upto maximum 15% additional) as additional security for unbalanced bids [<i>in terms of ITB Clause 41.2</i>], and Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security amount is 1% (one percent) of the Accepted Contract Amount

² Normally the rate of bonus and rate of liquidated damages should be the same.

	The standard forms of Performance Security and if applicable ES Security acceptable to the Employer shall be <u>unconditional</u> Bank Guarantees from Scheduled or Nationalized banks in India of the types as presented in Section X of the Bidding Document. Throughout this bidding document the term 'performance security', unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, means and includes both 'the performance security and the ES performance security' to be submitted by the successful bidder in the amounts specified above.
	E. Finishing the Contract
GCC 59.1	The following is added after the words 'issue a payment certificate' at the end of GCC 59.1:
	"within 56 days of receiving the contractor's revised account"
GCC 60.1	Not Applicable
GCC 60.2	Not Applicable
GCC 61	The following sub-clauses are added after GCC 61.2 (h):
	"(i) The contractor has contravened Clauses 7 and 9 of GCC.
	(j) The contractor does not adhere to the agreed Work execution program, agreed C-EMP [Clause 30 of GCC], SMP and also fails to take satisfactory remedial action as per agreements reached in the management meetings [Clause 30 of GCC] for a period of 60 days.
	(k) The contractor fails to carry out the instructions of the Project Manager within a reasonable time determined by the Project Manager in accordance with GCC Clause 15.1 and 22.
	(l) The contractor (in case of Joint Venture) has modified the composition of the joint venture and/or the responsibility of each member of the joint venture from what is stated in joint venture agreement without the prior approval of the Employer."
GCC 61.2 (g)	The maximum number of days are: 90 days
GCC 61.2 (l)	Hiding any information regarding changes in roles and responsibilities of JV members, which is not authorized by the Employer, shall also be treated as violation of Appendix A to General Conditions (Fraud and Corruption).
GCC 62	The following is added after the words 'issue of the certificate' in the first sentence of GCC 62.1;

	"less other recoveries due in terms of contract, less taxes to be deducted at source [TDS] as per applicable law,"	
	The following is added after the words 'date of the certificate' at the end of GCC 62.2:	
	"less other recoveries due in terms of contract, less taxes to be deducted at source [TDS] as per applicable law"	
GCC 62.1	The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, representing the Employer's additional cost for completing the Works, is 20%.	

Appendices

Appendix 1

Salient Features of Labour & Environment Protection Laws³

SALIENT FEATURES OF SOME MAJOR LABOUR LAWS APPLICABLE TO ESTABLISHMENTS ENGAGED IN BUILDING AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORK

Employees Compensation Act 1923: The Act provides for compensation in case of (a) injury, disease or death arising out of and during the course of employment. (b) Employees P.F. and Miscellaneous Provision Act 1952 (since amended): The Act provides for monthly contribution by the employer plus workers @ 10% or 8.33%. The benefits payable under the Act are: (i) Pension or family pension on retirement or death, as the case may be. (ii) Deposit linked insurance on the death in harness of the worker. (iii) Payment of P.F. accumulation on retirement/death etc. (c) Maternity Benefit Act 1961: The Act provides for leave and some other benefits to women employees in case of confinement or miscarriage etc. (d) Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: This Act defines sexual harassment in the workplace, provides for an enquiry procedure in case of complaints and mandates the setting up of an Internal Complaints Committee or a Local Complaints Committee (e) Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act 1986: The Act provides for certain welfare measures to be provided by the Contractor to contract labour and in case the Contractor fails to provide, the same are required to be provided, by the Principal Employer by law. The Principal Employer is required to take Certificate of Registration and the Contractor is required to take license from the designated Officer. The Act is applicable to the establishments or Contractor of Principal Employer if they employ 20 or more contract labour. (f) Minimum Wages Act 1948: The Employer is supposed to pay not less than the Minimum Wages fixed by appropriate Government as per provisions of the Act if the employment is a scheduled employment. Construction of Buildings, Roads, Runways are scheduled employments.

³ This list is only illustrative and not exhaustive. Bidders and Contractors are responsible for checking the correctness and completeness of the list. The law as current on the date of bid opening will apply.

- (g) <u>Payment of Wages Act 1936</u>: It lays down the mode, manner and by what date the wages are to be paid, what deductions can be made from the wages of the workers.
- (h) <u>Equal Remuneration Act 1976</u>: The Act provides for payment of equal wages for work of equal nature to male and female workers and for not making discrimination against Female employees in the matters of transfers, training and promotions etc.
- (i) <u>Payment of Bonus Act 1965</u>: The Act is applicable to all establishments employing 20 or more employees. Some of the State Governments have reduced this requirement from 20 to 10. The Act provides for payments of annual bonus subject to a minimum of 8.33% of the wages drawn in the relevant year. It applies to skilled or unskilled manual, supervisory, managerial, administrative, technical or clerical work for hire or reward to employees who draw a salary of Rs. 10,000/- per month or less. To be eligible for bonus, the employee should have worked in the establishment for not less than 30 working days in the relevant year. The Act does not apply to certain establishments.
- (j) <u>Child Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) Act 1986</u>: The Act prohibits employment of children below 14 years of age in certain occupations and processes and provides for regulation of employment of children in all other occupations and processes. Employment of Child Labour is prohibited in the Building and Construction Industry.
- (k) Inter-State Migrant workmen's (Regulation of Employment & Conditions of Service) Act 1979: The Act is applicable to an establishment which employs 5 or more inter-state migrant workmen through an intermediary (who has recruited workmen in one state for employment in the establishment situated in another state). The Inter-State migrant workmen, in an establishment to which this Act becomes applicable, are required to be provided certain facilities such as housing, medical aid, traveling expenses from home up to the establishment and back, etc.
- (1) The Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act 1996 and the Building and Other Construction Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1996 (BOCWW Cess Act): All the establishments who carry on any building or other construction work and employ 10 or more workers are covered under these Acts. All such establishments are required to pay cess at the rate not exceeding 2% of the cost of construction as may be notified by the Government. The Employer of the establishment is required to provide safety measures at the building or construction work and other welfare measures, such as Canteens, First – Aid facilities, Ambulance, Housing accommodations for workers near the work place etc. The Employer to whom the Act applies has to obtain a registration certificate from the Registering Officer appointed by the Government.
- (m) <u>Bonded Labour System (Abolition) Act, 1976</u>: The Act provides for the abolition of bonded labour system with a view to preventing the economic and physical

exploitation of weaker sections of society. Bonded labour covers all forms of forced labour, including that arising out of a loan, debt or advance.

- (n) Employees State Insurance Act 1948: The Act provides for certain benefits to insured employees and their families in case of sickness, maternity and disablement arising out of an employment injury. The Act applies to all employees in factories (as defined) or establishments which may be so notified by the appropriate Government. The Act provides for the setting up of an Employees' State Insurance Fund, which is to be administered by the Employees State Insurance Corporation. Contributions to the Fund are paid by the employer and the employee at rates as prescribed by the Central Government. The Act also provides for benefits to dependents of insured persons in case of death as a result of an employment injury.
- (o) <u>The Personal Injuries (Compensation Insurance) Act, 1963</u>: This Act provides for the employer's liability and responsibility to pay compensation to employees where workmen sustain personal injuries in the course of employment.
- (p) <u>Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act 1946</u>: It is applicable to all establishments employing 100 or more workmen (employment size reduced by some of the States and Central Government to 50). The Act provides for laying down rules governing the conditions of employment by the Employer on matters provided in the Act and get the same certified by the designated Authority.

SALIENT FEATURES OF SOME OF THE MAJOR LAWS THAT ARE APPLICABLE FOR PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT.

- 1. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and as amended: This provides for the protection and improvement of environment and for matters connected therewith, and the prevention of hazards to human beings, other living creatures, plants and property. 'Environment' includes water, air and land and the inter-relationship which exists among and between water, air and land, and human beings, other living creatures, plants, micro-organism and property.
- 2. The Forest Conservation Act, 1980, as amended, and Forest (Conservation) Rules, 1981 as amended: These provides for protection of forests by restricting conversion of forested areas into non- forested areas and prevention of deforestation, and stipulates the procedures for cutting any trees that might be required by the applicable rules. Permissions under the Act also stipulates the norms and compliance requirements of the employer and any contractor on behalf of the employer.
- 3. State Tree Preservation Acts as may be in force: These provide for protection of trees of important species. Contractors will be required to obtain prior permission for full or partial cutting, uprooting, or pruning of any such trees.
- 4. The Wildlife (Protection) Act, 1972, and as amended: This provides for protection of wildlife through notifying National Parks and Sanctuaries and buffer areas around these zones; and to protect individuals of nationally important species listed in the Annex of the Act.
- 5. The Biological Diversity Act, 2002: This provides for conservation of biological diversity, sustainable use of components of biological diversity, and fair and equitable sharing of the benefits arising out of the use of biological resources, knowledge and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.
- 6. The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 as amended and The Public Liability Insurance Rules, 1991 as amended: These provide for public liability insurance for the purpose of providing immediate relief to the persons affected by accident occurring while handling hazardous substances and for mattes connected herewith or incidental thereto. Hazardous substance means any substance or preparation which is defined as hazardous substance under the Environment (Protection) Act 1986, and exceeding such quantity as may be specified by notification by the Central Government.
- 7. The Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Sites and Remains Act, 1958 and the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Sites and Remains (Amendment and Validation) Act, 2010, the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Sites and Remains Rules, 1959 amended 2011, the National Monuments Authority Rules, 2011 and the similar State Acts: These provide for conservation of cultural and historical remains found in India. Accordingly, area within the radii of 100m and 300m from the "protected property" are designated as "protected area" and "controlled area" respectively. No development activity (including building, mining, excavating, blasting) is permitted in the "protected area" and development activities likely to damage the protected property is not permitted in the "controlled area" without prior

permission of the Archaeological Survey of India (ASI) or the State Departments of Art and Culture or Archaeology as applicable.

- 8. The Environmental Impact Assessment Notification, 2006 and as amended: This provides for prior environmental clearance for new, modernization and expansion projects listed in Schedule 1 of the Notification.
- 9. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 as amended, and the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975 as amended: These provide for the prevention and control of water pollution and the maintaining and restoring of wholesomeness of water. 'Pollution' means such contamination of water or such alteration of the physical, chemical or biological properties of water or such discharge of any sewage or trade effluent or of any other liquid, gaseous or solid substance into water(whether directly or indirectly) as may, or is likely to, create a nuisance or render such water harmful or injurious to public health or safety, or to domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural or other legitimate uses, or to the life and health of animals or plants or of aquatic organisms. Contractors will need to obtain consent for establishment and consent for operation of any item of work or installation of equipment that generates waste water, and observe the required standards of establishment and operation of these items of work or installations; as well as install and operate all required waste water treatment facilities.
- 10. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977 and The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Rules, 1978: These provide for the levy and collection of a cess on water consumed by persons carrying on certain industries and by local authorities, with a view to augment the resources of the Central Board and the State Boards for the prevention and control of water pollution under the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.
- 11. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 as amended, and the Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Rules, 1982: These provides for prevention, control and abatement of air pollution. 'Air Pollution' means the presence in the atmosphere of any 'air pollutant', which means any solid, liquid or gaseous substance (including noise) present in the atmosphere in such concentration as may be or tend to be injurious to human beings or other living creatures or plants or property or environment. Contractors will need to obtain consent for establishment and consent for operation of any item of work or installation of equipment that generates air pollution such as batching plants, hot mix plants, power generators, backup power generation, material handling processes, and observe the required standards of establishment and operation of these items of work or installations.
- 12. Noise Pollution (Control and Regulation) Rules, 2000, and as amended: This provides for standards for noise for day and night for various land uses and specifies special standards in and around sensitive receptors of noise such as schools and hospitals. Contractors will need to ensure compliance to the applicable standards, and install and operate all required noise control devices as may be required for all plants and work processes.

- 13. Chemical Accidents (Emergency Planning, Preparedness and Response) Rules, 1996: This provides for Requirement of preparation of on-site and off-site Disaster Management Plans for accident-prone areas.
- 14. The Explosives Act 1884 and the Explosives Rules, 2008: These provide for safe manufacture, possession, sale, use, transportation and import of explosive materials such as diesel, Oil and lubricants etc.; and also for regulating the use of any explosives used in blasting and/or demolition. All applicable provisions will need compliance by the contractors.
- 15. The Petroleum Rules, 2002: This provides for safe use and storage of petroleum products, and will need to be complied by the contractors.
- 16. The Gas Cylinder Rules 2004 and amendments: This provides for regulations related to storage of gas, and possession of gas cylinder more than the exempted quantity. Contractors should comply with all the requirements of this Rule.
- 17. Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules of 1989 and as amended: These provide for use and storage of hazardous material such as highly inflammable liquids like HSD/LPG. Contractors will need to ensure compliance to the Rules; and in the event where the storage quantity exceeds the regulated threshold limit, the contractors will be responsible for regular safety audits and other reporting requirements as prescribed in the Rules.
- 18. Solid Waste Management Rules 2016 and amendments thereof: These provide for proper management of solid waste generated and details responsibilities of various stakeholders like waste generator, local body, Urban Development department etc. The rules also define standards for compost etc. The Contractors will ensure compliance to this Rule
- 19. Hazardous & Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016: These provide for protection of general public from improper handling storage and disposal of hazardous waste. The rules prescribe the management requirement of hazardous wastes from its generation to final disposal. Contractors will need to obtain permission from the State Pollution Control Boards and other designated authorities for storage and handling of any hazardous material; and will to ensure full compliance to these rules and any conditions imposed in the permit.
- 20. The Bio Medical Waste Management Rules, 2016: This provides for control, storage, transportation and disposal of bio-medical wastes. As and where the contractor has any first aid facility and dispensaries, established in either temporary or permanent manner, compliance to these Rules are mandatory.
- 21. Construction and Demolition Waste Management Rules, 2016: This provides for management of construction and demolition waste (such as building materials possible to be reused, rubble and debris or the like); and applies to all those waste resulting from construction, re-modelling, repair or demolition of any civil structure. Contractor will need to prepare a waste disposal plan and obtain required approval from local authorities, if waste generation is more than 20

tons in any day or 300 tons in any month during the contract period; and ensure full compliance to these rules and any conditions imposed in the regulatory approval.

- 22. The E-Waste (Management) Rules, 2016: This provides for management of E-wastes (but not covering lead acid batteries and radio-active wastes) aiming to enable the recovery and/or reuse of useful material from e-waste, thereby reducing the hazardous wastes destined for disposal and to ensure the environmentally sound management of all types of waste of electrical and electronic equipment. This Rule applies to every manufacturer, producer, consumer, bulk consumer, collection centers, dealers, e-retailer, refurbisher, dismantler and recycler involved in manufacture, sale, transfer, purchase, collection, storage and processing of e-waste or electrical and electronic equipment listed in Schedule I, including their components, consumables, parts and spares which make the product operational.
- 23. Plastic waste Management Rules, 2016: This provides for control and management of the plastic waste generated from any activity. Contractors will ensure compliance to this Rule.
- 24. The Batteries (Management and Handling) Rules 2001: This provides for ensuring safe disposal and recycling of discarded lead acid batteries likely to be used in any equipment during construction and operation stage. Rules require proper control and record keeping on the sale or import of lead acid batteries and recollection of the used batteries by registered recyclers to ensure environmentally sound recycling of used batteries. Contractors will ensure compliance to this Rule.
- 25. The Ozone Depleting Substances (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000 and as amended: This provides for regulation of production and consumption of ozone depleting substances in the country, and specifically prohibits export to or import from countries not specified in the Rules, and prohibits unless specifically permitted, any use of ozone depleting substance.
- 26. The Coastal Regulation Zone Notifications, 1991 and as amended (Latest in 2019): This provides for regulation of development activities within the 500m of high tide line in coastal zone and 50m of stretches of rivers and estuaries influenced by tides. Contractors will be required to ensure that no work starts until applicable clearances under the Notification is not available. Contractors will be responsible for implementation of any plan stipulated as per the permission under this Notification; and will be required to prepare and submit to the employer and compliance report stipulated in the permission under the Notification. No wastes shall be disposed in CRZ areas.
- 27. The Motor Vehicle Act 1988 as amended (and State Motor Vehicle Acts as may be in force) and the Motor Vehicle Rules, 1989, and as amended (and State Motor Vehicle Rules as may be in force): To minimize the road accidents, penalizing the guilty, provision of compensation to victim and family and check vehicular air and noise pollution. Contractors will be required to ensure full compliance to these rules.
- 28. Easement Act, 1882: This provides for the rights of landowners on groundwater. Contractors will need to ensure that other landowners' rights under the Act is not affected by any groundwater abstraction by the contractors.

- 29. State Groundwater Acts and Rules as may be in force and the Guidelines for Groundwater Abstraction for drinking and domestic purposes in Notified Areas and Industry/Infrastructure project proposals in Non-Notified areas, 2012: These provide for regulating extraction of ground water for construction/industrial and drinking and domestic purposes. Contractors will need to obtain permission from Central/State Groundwater Boards prior to groundwater abstraction through digging any bore well or through any other means; and will to ensure full compliance to these rules and any conditions imposed in the permit.
- 30. The Mines Act, 1952 as amended; the Minor Mineral and concession Rules as amended; and the State Mineral (Rights and Taxation) Acts as may be in force: These provide for for safe and sound mining activity. The contractors will procure aggregates and other building materials from quarries and borrow areas approved under such Acts. In the event the contractors open any new quarry and/or borrow areas, appropriate prior permission from the State Departments of Minerals and Geology will need to be obtained. Contractors will also need to ensure full compliance to these rules and any conditions imposed in the permit.
- 31. The Insecticides Act, 1968 and Insecticides Rules, 1971 and as amended: These provide for regulates the manufacture, sale, transport, distribution, export, import and use of pesticides to prevent risk to human beings or animals, and for matters connected therewith. No one should import or manufacture; sell, stock or exhibit foe sale; distribute, transport, use: (i) any misbranded insecticides, (ii) any insecticide the sale, distribution or use of which is for the time being prohibited under the Act; and (iii) any insecticide except in accordance with the condition on which it was registered under the Act.
- 32. National Building Codes of India, 2005 and as amended: This provides guidelines for regulating the building construction activities in India. The code mainly contains administrative regulations, development control rules and general building requirements; stipulations regarding materials, structural design and construction; and building and plumbing services. Contractors will be required to comply with all Bureau of Indian Standards Codes dealing with: (i) use and disposal of asbestos containing materials in construction; (ii) paints containing lead; (iii) permanent and temporary ventilations in workplace; (iv) safety, and hygiene at the workplace; (v) prevention of fire; (vi) prevention of accidents from faulty electrical gadgets, equipment and accessories; and all other such codes incidental to the Contract.

Appendix 2 Not Applicable Appendix - 3⁴ Appointment of Adjudicator

Suggested Draft of Letter of Appointment of Adjudicators in civil works contracts

Sub:_____(Name of the Contract)

То

Name and address of the Adjudicator

We hereby confirm your appointment as Adjudicator for the above contract to carry out the assignment specified in this Letter of Appointment.

For administrative purpose_____(name of the officer representing the *Employer*) has been assigned to administer the assignment and to provide the Adjudicator with all relevant information needed to carry out the assignment on behalf of both the employer and the contractor. The services will be required during the period of contract for the work of (Name of the Contract) ______.

The Adjudicator shall visit the worksite once in 3 (three)months till the completion of the work indicated above or as specifically requested by Employer/ Contractor for the period up to the end of defects liability period with prior intimation to the Employer and the contractor. The duration of each visit shall ordinarily be for one day only. These durations are approximate and (*Name of the employer and Name of the Contractor*) may find it necessary to postpone or cancel the assignment and/or shorten or extend the duration.

The appointment will become effective upon confirmation of letter by you. The appointment of Adjudicator shall be liable for termination under a 30 (thirty) days written notice from the date of issue of the notice, if both Employer and the Contractor so desire. Also, the appointment shall automatically stand terminated 14 days after the defect notice / correction period as stated in Clauses 23 and 24 of the Conditions of Contract is over.

The Adjudicator will be paid a fee of Rs. ______ (Rupees _______ only) per each day of visit at the worksite. The actual expenses for boarding and traveling in connection with the assignment will be reimbursed to the Adjudicator. The Adjudicator will submit a pre-receipted bill in triplicate to the employer indicating the date of the visit, fees for the visit and a proof in support of the actual expenditure [only for items valued above Rs. 500 each] incurred by him against boarding, lodging and traveling expenses after performing the visit on each occasion. The Employer will make the admissible payment (both the Employer's and the Contractor's share) to the Adjudicator within 30 days of the receipt of the bill. The

⁴ If ITB 51 makes provision of an Adjudicator from list provided by an institution, kindly modify Appendix 3 to state that the fee and reimbursable payable to the adjudicator shall be as per the rules of the Institution.

Contractor's share on this account (half the paid amount) will be recovered by the Employer from the Contractor's bills against the work.

In accepting this assignment, the Adjudicator should understand and agree that he is responsible for any liabilities and costs arising out of risks associated with travel to and from the place of emergency repatriation, loss or damage to personal/professional effects and property. The Adjudicator is advised to effect personal insurance cover in respect of such risks if he does not already have such cover in place. In this regard, the Adjudicator shall maintain appropriate medical, travel, accident and third-party liability insurance. The obligation under this paragraph will survive till termination of this appointment.

Procedures for resolution of disputes by the Adjudicator is described in the contract of ______(name of the contract) between the employer and the contractor vide Clause No. 24 of the General Conditions of Contract. Your recommendation should be given in the format attached, within 28 days of receipt of a notification of dispute.

The Adjudicator will carry out the assignment in accordance with the highest standard of professional and ethical competence and integrity, having due regard to the nature and purpose of the assignment, and will conduct himself in a manner consistent herewith. After visiting the worksite, the Adjudicator will discuss the matter with the Employer and if necessary with the Contractor before arriving at any decision.

The Adjudicator will agree that all knowledge and information not within the public domain, which may be acquired while carrying out this service shall be all time and for all purpose, regarded as strictly confidential and held in confidence, and shall not be directly or indirectly disclosed to any party whatsoever, except with the permission of the employer and the contractor. The Adjudicator's decision should be communicated in the form of a speaking order specifying the reasons.

The Adjudicator will agree that any manufacturing or construction firm with which he might be associated with, will not be eligible to participate in bidding for any goods or works resulting from or associated with the project of which this consulting assignment forms a part

Read and Agreed

Name of Adjudicator

Signature

Place:

Date:

Name of Employer Signature of authorized representative of Employer

Name of the Contractor Signature of authorized representative of Contractor Attachment: Copy of contract document between the employer and contractor and format for recommendation.

SUMMARY OF AJUDICATOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Adjudicator has the following principal responsibilities:

- 1. Visit the site periodically.
- 2. Keep abreast of job activities and developments.
- 3. Encourage the resolution of disputes by the parties.
- 4. When a dispute is referred to it, conduct a hearing (no legal presentation), complete its deliberations, and prepare a recommendations in a professional and timely manner (as per sample format)

Sample Format of Adjudicator's Recommendation

[Project Name] Recommendation of Adjudicator

Dispute No. XX [NAME OF DISPUTE]

Hearing Date: _____

Dispute

Description of dispute. A one or two sentence summation of the dispute.

Contractor's Position

A short summation of the contractor's position as understood by the Adjudicator.

Employer's Position

A short summation of the Employer's position as understood by the Adjudicator.

Recommendation

The Adjudicator's specific recommendation for settlement of the dispute. (*The recommended course is consistent with the explanation*).

Explanation

(This section could also be called Considerations, Rationale, Findings, Discussion, and so on.)

The Adjudicator's description of how each recommendation was reached.

Respectfully submitted,

Date : _____

Date : _____

Date : _____

Section X - Contract Forms

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms for Performance Security, ES performance security if applicable, and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder after contract award.

NOTIFICATION OF AWARD

Letter of Acceptance

[on letterhead paper of the Employer]

[The Letter of Acceptance shall be the basis for formation of the Contract as described in ITB Clause 47. This Standard Form of Letter of Acceptance shall be filled in and sent to the successful Bidder only after evaluation of bids has been completed, subject to any review by the World Bank required under the Loan Agreement.]

.....[date].....

To: [name and address of the Contractor]

This is to notify you that your Bid dated *[insert date]*... for execution of the *[insert name of the contract and identification number, as given in the PCC]*.... for the Accepted Contract Amount of *[insert amount in numbers and words]*, as corrected and modified⁵ in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our Agency.

You are requested to furnish the Performance Security, plus additional security for unbalanced bids in terms of ITB Clause 41, and ES Performance Security in the form detailed in ITB Clause 50 for amounts⁶ of Rs., and Rs. specified therein, within 21 days of the receipt of this letter of acceptance, and visit this office to sign the contract, failing which action as stated in ITB Clause 50.2 will be taken in accordance with the Conditions of Contract. The securities shall be valid up to 28 days from the date of completion i.e. up to and shall be as per the Performance Security Form and the ES Performance Security Form, included in Section X - Contract Forms, of the bidding document.

[Choose one of the following statements:]

We accept that ______ *[insert the name of Adjudicator proposed by the Bidder]* be appointed as the Adjudicator⁷.

[or]

⁵ Delete "corrected and" or "and modified" if not applicable. See Notes on Standard Form of Agreement, next page.

⁶ Insert amounts for (i) Performance Security, plus additional security for unbalanced bids in terms of ITB Clause 41; and (ii) ES Performance Security respectively.

⁷ To be used only if the Contractor disagrees in the Bid with the Adjudicator proposed by the Employer in the Instructions to Bidders, and has accordingly offered another candidate.

We do not accept that ______ *[insert the name of the Adjudicator proposed by the Bidder]* be appointed as the Adjudicator, and by sending a copy of this Letter of Acceptance to ______ *[insert name of the Appointing Authority]*, the Appointing Authority, we are hereby requesting such Authority to appoint the Adjudicator in accordance with ITB 51.1 and GCC 23.1⁸.

We note that as per your bid, you do not intend to subcontract any component of work.

[OR]

We note that as per your bid, you propose to employ M/s. as sub-contractor for executing

We have reviewed the Work methodology submitted by you along with the bid in response to ITB Clause 16 and our comments are given in the attachment. You are requested to submit a revised Program including ES requirements as per Clause 30 of General Conditions of Contract within 14 days of receipt of this letter of acceptance.

Authorized Signature:	•
Name and Title of Signatory:	•
Name of Agency:	

⁸ To be used only if the Contractor disagrees in the Bid with the Adjudicator proposed by the Employer in the ITB, has accordingly offered another candidate, and the Employer does not accept the counterproposal.

Issue of Notice to proceed with the work

(letterhead of the Employer)

_____ (*date*)

То

_____ (name and address of the Contractor)

Dear Sirs:

Pursuant to your furnishing the requisite securities as stipulated in ITB clause 50.1, insurance policy as per GCC 13, Work methodology as stated in letter of acceptance and signing of the contract agreement for the Work of ______@ a Bid Price of Rs. ______, you are hereby instructed to proceed with the execution of the said works in accordance with the contract documents.

Yours faithfully,

(Signature, name and title of signatory authorized to sign on behalf of Employer)

Attachment: Contract Agreement

Contract Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made theday of, between, between [name of the Employer] (hereinafter "the Employer"), of the one part, and [name of the Contractor].....(hereinafter "the Contractor"), of the other part:

WHEREAS the Employer desires that the Works known as [name of the Contract].should be executed by the Contractor, and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution and completion of these Works and the remedying of any defects therein,

The Employer and the Contractor agree as follows:

1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.

2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents.

- (i) This Agreement
- (ii) the Letter of Acceptance
- (iii) the Contractor's Bid including completed schedules and priced schedule of activities
- (iv) the addenda Nos _____(if any)
- (v) the Particular Conditions
- (vi) the General Conditions of Contract, including appendix;
- (vii) Employer's Requirement
- (viii) the Drawings
- (ix) Design Methodology Work Program, Methodology, Quality Assurance Program, the ES Management Strategies and Implementation Plans, and Code of Conduct for Contractor's Personnel (ES)
- (x) Joint Venture Agreement [for JVs only]; and
- (xi) any other document **listed in the PCC** as forming part of the Contract.

3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as specified in this Agreement, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute the Works and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

4. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of India on the day, month and year specified above.

Signed by:	Signed by:
for and on behalf of the Employer	for and on behalf the Contractor
in the presence of:	in the presence of:
Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date	Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date

Performance Security - Bank Guarantee

[including Additional Performance Security for unbalanced bids]

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

To: _____ [name of Employer]

[address of Employer]

 WHEREAS ______ [name and address of Contractor⁹] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No. _____ dated ______ to execute ______ [name of Contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract");

AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Applicant shall furnish you with a Bank Guarantee by a recognized bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with his obligations in accordance with the Contract;

AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Applicant such a Bank Guarantee;

NOW THEREFORE we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you, on behalf of the Applicant, up to a total of ______ [amount of guarantee¹⁰] ______ [in words], such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of ______ [amount of guarantee] as aforesaid without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand for the sum specified therein.

We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Applicant before presenting us with the demand.

⁹ In the case of a JV, insert the name of the Joint Venture

¹⁰ An amount shall be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the percentage of the Contract Price specified in the Contract less provisional sums, if any, plus additional performance security for unbalanced bids if any, and denominated in Indian Rupees.

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Applicant shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

This guarantee shall be valid until¹¹, and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

Signature and seal of the guarantor	
Name of Bank	
Address	
Date	

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹¹ Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 53.1. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Employer's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee

Environmental and Social (ES) Performance Security ES – Bank Guarantee

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

To: _____ [name of Employer]

[address of Employer]

 WHEREAS ______ [name and address of Contractor¹²] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No. _____ dated ______ to execute ______ [name of Contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract");

AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Applicant shall furnish you with a Bank Guarantee by a recognized bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with his Environmental and/or Social (ES) obligations in accordance with the Contract;

AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Applicant such a Bank Guarantee;

NOW THEREFORE we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you, on behalf of the Applicant, up to a total of ______ [amount of guarantee¹³] ______ [in words], such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of ______ [amount of guarantee] as aforesaid without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand for the sum specified therein.

We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Applicant before presenting us with the demand.

¹² In the case of a JV, insert the name of the Joint Venture

¹³ An amount shall be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the percentage of the Contract Price specified in the Contract less provisional sums, if any, and denominated in Indian Rupees.

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Applicant shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

This guarantee shall be valid until¹⁴, and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

Signature and seal of the guarantor	
Name of Bank	
Address	
Date	

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

¹⁴ Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 53.1. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Employer's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee

Advance Payment Security

Demand Guarantee

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Advance Payment Guarantee N	Jo	[insert guarantee	reference number]
Date	[insert date of issue of t	the guarantee]	

 [name of Employer]
 [address of Employer]
 [name of Contract]

Gentlemen:

In accordance with the provisions of the Conditions of Contract, Subclause 53.1 ("Advance Payment") of the above-mentioned Contract, ______ [name and address of Contractor¹⁵] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") shall deposit with ______- [name of Employer] a bank guarantee to guarantee his proper and faithful performance under the said Clause of the Contract in an amount of ______ [amount of guarantee¹⁶] ______ [in words].

We, the ______ [bank or financial institution], as instructed by the Applicant, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligator and not as Surety merely, the payment to ______ [name of Employer] on his first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without his first claim to the Applicant, in the amount not exceeding ______ [amount of guarantee] ______ [in words].

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between ______ [name of Employer] and the Applicant, shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

¹⁵ In the case of a JV, insert the name of the Joint Venture

¹⁶ An amount shall be inserted by the bank representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and denominated in Indian Rupees.

This guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under the Contract until ______ *[name of Employer]* receives full repayment of the same amount from the Applicant. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

Yours truly,

Signature and seal:	 	
Name of Bank:	 _	
Address:	 	
Date:		

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

Retention Money Security

Demand Guarantee

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

	[Bank's name and address of issuing branch or office]
Beneficiary:	[Name and Address of Employer]
Date:	
RETENTION MONEY	GUARANTEE NO.:

We have been informed that _____ [name of contractor¹⁷] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. _____ [reference number of the contract] dated ______ with you, for the execution of _____ [name of contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, when the Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for the Works and the first half of the Retention Money has been certified for payment, payment of ______ *[insert* the second half of the Retention Money] is to be made against a Retention Money guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we _____ [name of Bank] hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you the sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of ______ [amount in Rupees] (______) [amount in words¹⁸] upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation under the Contract without cavil or argument.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the payment of the second half of the Retention Money referred to above must have been received by the Applicant on its account number ______ at _____ [name and address of Bank].

¹⁷ In the case of a JV, insert the name of the Joint Venture

¹⁸ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the second half of the Retention Money or if the amount guaranteed under the Performance Guarantee when the Taking-Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the Retention Money, the difference between half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security.

This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, 21 days after the date when the Employer has received a copy of the Defects Liability Certificate issued by the Project Manager. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

[Signature(s) and seal of the guarantor]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.